2022 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE

Report Form Guide

Issued November 2022

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Thomas Vilsack, Secretary
Research, Education, and Economics

Dr. Chavonda Jacobs-Young, Acting Under Secretary
National Agricultural Statistics Service

Hubert Hamer, Administrator
This page left intentionally blank.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

General Information	
	4
Legal Requirement	5
Who Is Required to Complete an Agriculture Census Report Form?	5
Why Accurate Reports Are Important	5
Sections by the General Form, Short Form, Hawaii Form and American Indian Form	6
The Report Form	9
Common Reporting Problems	9
Operating Arrangements	10
How to Correctly Complete Your Census Report Form	12
The Cover Page	13
Section 1. Acreage in 2022	14
Section 2. Land Use in 2022	17
Section 3. Land Rented or Leased From Others for Cash	21
Section 4. Land Use Practices	21
Section 5. Irrigation	22
Section 6. Crop Insurance, Conservation Reserve Program And Other Government Progra	
Section 7. Type of Organization	
Section 7. Type of Organization	24
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	
	26
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 28
Section 8. Personal Characteristics Section 9. Hay and Forage Crops	26 28 29
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 28 29 30
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 28 29 30
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 28 39 35 37
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 28 29 30 35 37
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 29 30 35 37 38
Section 8. Personal Characteristics	26 29 30 35 37 38 39

Section 19. Aquaculture	44
Section 20. Poultry	45
Section 21. Colonies of Honey Bees	47
Section 22. Other Livestock	47
Section 23. Livestock Products	49
Section 24. Production Contracts and Custom Feeding	49
Section 25. Organic Agriculture	50
Section 26. Practices	51
Section 27. Food Marketing Practices	53
Section 28. Fertilizers, Chemicals, and Soil Conditioners Applied	54
Section 29. Renewable Energy	55
Section 30. Machinery and Equipment	56
Section 31. Farm Labor	57
Section 32. Production Expenses	57
Section 33. Market Value of Land, Buildings, Machinery, and Equipment	61
Section 34. Income from Farm-related Sources	62
Section 35. Agricultural Activity Within the Borders of American Indian Reservations, Pueblos, and Service Areas	63
Section 36. Conclusion	63
Appendix A	65
General Report Form and Instruction Sheet	65

INTRODUCTION

This *Report Form Guide* provides detailed information and examples on how to complete the 2022 Census of Agriculture report form. It is intended to serve as a supplement to the instructions that are provided on the report form and the instruction sheet (see Appendix A) that are enclosed with every report form mail packet.

The first agricultural census was conducted in 1840 and history shows us that most farmers and ranchers are cooperative in supplying the information needed. Many of the questions on the report form are not difficult to answer; however, some questions may require the respondent to reference their records or to give an estimate when the exact answer is unknown or not readily available. An estimate is always encouraged rather than leaving a section or question blank.

A few farmers and ranchers may not have received a report form because we do not have their correct address or because they only recently started farming and, as a result, their names do not appear on our mailing list. Anyone who produced crops or livestock or received government payments associated with agricultural activity at any time during 2022 and did not receive a report form by February 6, 2023, should call 1-888-424-7828. Telephone operators will collect the name, address, and phone number associated with the operation, review the mail list, and collect the data for the operation so it may be added. Data collected from the agricultural operation will be included in statistical summaries. As with all information collected by the United States Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS), federal law requires individual answers be kept confidential.

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex (including gender identity and expression), marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, political beliefs, genetic information, reprisal, or because all or part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD).

To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Stop 9410, Washington, DC 20250-9410, or call toll free (866) 632-9992 (English) or (800) 877-8339 (TDD) or (800) 377-8642 (English Federal-relay) or (800) 845-6136 (Spanish Federal relay). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

This page left intentionally blank.

GENERAL INFORMATION

A census of agriculture is conducted to measure agricultural activity and productivity for each county and state of the United States. A national census of agriculture was first conducted in 1840 and conducted every 10 years thereafter until 1920. Since 1982, the Census of Agriculture has been conducted on a 5-year cycle for years ending in 2 and 7.

The 2022 Census of Agriculture is the 30th federal census of agriculture and the sixth conducted by the United States Department of Agriculture's (USDA) National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS). It covers land use, net income, producer and operation characteristics, production and sales of agricultural products during 2022, inventory of livestock, poultry, and other animals as of December 31, 2022, and many other farm-related items.

The enumeration of all farms and ranches requires the identification of individual reporting units called operations. For census purposes, "THIS OPERATION" refers to the farm, ranch, or other agricultural activity controlled or operated by the person, farm, or business indicated on the front page of the report form. The decisions about who is the operator and what acreage to include in this operation can be made by reviewing the name and address area and completing Section 1, ACREAGE IN 2022, Items 1 through 4 of the report form. The acreage in this operation, as defined for the census, may not always be the same as the acreage used by other agencies in considering or counting farms and ranches for other purposes.

For census purposes, the individual who was involved in decisions, or producer, is the person, such as a hired manager, business manager, or other person primarily responsible for the onsite, day-to-day operation of the farm or ranch business in 2022. This may have been accomplished by either doing the work or directly supervising the work. The producer may have worked land they owned, land rented for cash from others, acreage rented on a crop-share basis, land operated rent free, or land operated under a combination of several such arrangements. To obtain consistent data from the census, when differences in terms or definitions exist, census terms and definitions in this *Report Form Guide* should be used. If a satisfactory explanation is not provided, call the toll-free help line at 1-888-424-7828 for assistance.

Every report form (even those sent to individuals no longer farming or not associated with agriculture) needs a response and should be returned in the preaddressed return envelope enclosed with the mail package to:

Census of Agriculture 1201 East 10th Street Jeffersonville, IN 47132

If a person is in doubt as to whether the report form pertains to them, a form should be completed and mailed in the return envelope with notes on the front page explaining the status of the operation. There may be situations that are inadequately covered in existing instructions. In these cases, a description of the situation should be written on the front page of

the report form. This will enable NASS staff to make proper decisions regarding the data. Notes about any unusual situations are helpful. If a note is written on a separate piece of paper, include the Survey Code, located above the bar code in the address area on the cover page of the report form. The Survey Code is needed in case the sheets become separated from the report form. A toll-free help line (1-888-424-7828) is also available to respondents Monday through Friday to help answer any questions.

LEGAL REQUIREMENT

Response to the 2022 Census of Agriculture is required by law under Title 7, United States Code. By the same law, a census report is kept confidential and used only for statistical purposes. The strict enforcement of the confidentiality provisions of the law receives major emphasis in every phase of NASS operations. Only sworn employees have access to the individual reports. The census publications provide no information about an individual farm operation. Under the same law, individual farm data cannot be given to any representative of the federal, state, or local Government or non-government agency for any purpose.

WHO IS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE AN AGRICULTURE CENSUS REPORT FORM?

A reply is needed from EVERYONE who receives a report form, including persons who operated a farm, ranch or other agricultural operation in 2022, anyone who has any agricultural activity, as well as those who were not involved in agriculture. If you had no agricultural activity during 2022, this should be noted on the form, and the form returned.

All persons receiving a census report form, including landlords, tenants, partnerships, corporations, institutions, and others, should complete the acreage questions (items 1, 2, 3, and 4) of section 1. Answers to these questions determine whether there is acreage in this operation. If acreage is reported in item 4, it is necessary to complete the remaining sections of the report form for this operation. See Section 1 instructions in this *Report Form Guide* for additional information on this subject.

WHY ACCURATE REPORTS ARE IMPORTANT

The data reported on the census forms are compiled and published by various classifications for counties, states, and the United States. The statistical totals are available to the public as a basis for more efficient and effective decision making.

Census of agriculture statistics are used as benchmarks for annual crop and livestock estimates. Service agencies that work with farmers and ranchers use census data as an aid in distributing their products and services. Much of the statistical data used in farm-oriented publications and by farm organizations are based primarily on census of agriculture data. Congress uses the data when considering farm legislation. USDA agencies use the data to study trends and emerging issues in agriculture. In some cases, federal and state funds are allocated among the counties based on census data. Therefore, it is very important that data for each county be as complete and accurate as possible.

When farmers count their cattle, record crop yields, track fertilizer applications, etc., they are taking a census of their farming activities and productivity. Farmers realize that their results must be accurate and complete. In a like manner, NASS is taking a count of agricultural production and resources for 2022.

SECTIONS BY THE GENERAL FORM, SHORT FORM, HAWAII FORM AND AMERICAN INDIAN FORM

Sections	General Form (long form) 22-A100	Hawaii Form 22-A101	American Indian form 22-A300	Short Form 22-A400
Acreage In 2022	Section 1, Page 2	Section 1, Page 2	Section 1, Page 2	Page 1
Land Use in 2022	Section 2, Page 3	Section 2, Page 3	Section 2, Page 4	Page 2
Land Rented or Leased from Others for Cash	Section 3, Page 4	Section 3, Page 4		
Land Use Practices	Section 4, Page 4	Section 4, Page 4	Section 3, Page 5	Page 2
Irrigation	Section 5, Page 4	Section 5, Page 4	Section 4, Page 5	Page 2
Crop Insurance, Conservation Reserve Program and Other Government Programs	Section 6, Page 5	Section 6, Page 5	Section 18, Page 15	Page 2
Type of Organization	Section 7, Page 5	Section 7, Page 5	Section 5, Page 6	
Personal Characteristics	Section 8, Page 6	Section 8, Page 6	Section 6, Page 7	Page 4
Hay and Forage Crops	Section 9, Page 8	Section 10, Page 8	Section 8, Page 9	Page 2
Cultivated Christmas Trees, Short Rotation Woody Crops and Maple Syrup	Section 10, Page 8	Section 9, Page 8	Section 16, Page 15	Page 2
Field Crops	Section 11, Page 9	Section 14, Page 12	Section 7, Page 9	Page 2

Nursery, Greenhouse, Floriculture, Sod, Mushrooms, Vegetable Seeds, and Propagative Materials	Section 12, Page 10	Section 11, Page 9	Section 16, Page 15	Page 2
Vegetables, Potatoes, and Melons	Section 13, Page 11	Section 12, Page 10	Section 9, Page 10	Page 2
Fruits, Nuts, and Berries	Section 14, Page 12	Section 13, Page 11	Section 16, Page 15	Page 2
Cattle and Calves	Section 15, Page 13	Section 15, Page 13	Section 12, Page 12	Page 3
Hogs and Pigs	Section 16, Page 14	Section 16, Page 14	Section 11, Page 11	Page 3
Horses, Ponies, Mules, Burros, and Donkeys	Section 17, Page 14	Section 17, Page 14	Section 13, Page 13	Page 3
Sheep and Goats	Section 18, Page 15	Section 18, Page 15	Section 10, Page 11	Page 3
Aquaculture	Section 19, Page 15	Section 19, Page 15	Section 16, Page 15	Page 3
Poultry	Section 20, Page 16	Section 20, Page 16	Section 14, Page 13	Page 3
Colonies of Honey Bees	Section 21, Page 17	Section 21, Page 17	Section 15, Page 14	Page 3
Other Livestock	Section 22, Page 17	Section 22, Page 17	Section 15, Page 14	Page 3
Livestock Products	Section 23, Page 17	Section 23, Page 17	Section 15, Page 14	
Production Contracts and Custom Feeding	Section 24, Page 18	Section 24, Page 18	Section 16, Page 15	Page 3
Organic Agriculture	Section 25, Page 19	Section 25, Page 19	Section 16, Page 15	
Practices	Section 26, Page 19	Section 26, Page 19	Section 20, Page 16	
Food Marketing Practices	Section 27, Page 20	Section 27, Page 20	Section 19, Page 16	
Fertilizers, Chemicals, and Soil Conditioners Applied	Section 28, Page 20	Section 28, Page 20	Section 23, Page 19	
Renewable Energy	Section 29, Page 21	Section 29, Page 21	Section 16, Page 15	

Machinery and Equipment	Section 30, Page 21	Section 30, Page 21	Section 24, Page 19	
Farm Labor	Section 31, Page 21	Section 31, Page 21	Section 17, Page 15	
Production Expenses	Section 32, Page 22	Section 32, Page 22	Section 21, Page 17	
Market Value of Land, Buildings, Machinery, and Equipment	Section 33, Page 23	Section 33, Page 23	Section 25, Page 20	
Income From Farm- Related Sources	Section 34, Page 23	Section 34, Page 23	Section 22, Page 18	
Agricultural Activity Within the Borders of American Indian Reservations, Pueblos and Service Areas	Section 35, Page 24	Not Applicable	Section 1, Page 3	
Conclusion	Section 36, Page 24	Section 35, Page 24	Section 26, Page 20	Page 4

THE REPORT FORM

The remainder of the Report Form Guide will reference the General Form (22-A100) only.

COMMON REPORTING PROBLEMS

Five major reporting problems have frequently caused difficulties in collecting complete and accurate information for the census. These include:

- 1. Landlords reporting for tenants For landlords, report land operated by tenants or sharecroppers only in section 1, item 3, as "Number of acres RENTED or LEASED TO OTHERS." Crops grown, livestock raised, farm labor, and expenditures for the land rented to others should not be reported on the landlord's report. In cases where land is rented from others, used rent free, or worked on shares for others, the tenant or sharecropper is the operator and should receive and complete their own report form. The tenant's or renter's report form includes the land rented from and/or worked on shares for one or more landlords. The entries on the tenant's report form for crops harvested, value sold, and number and value of livestock products should include the landlord's shares, as well as the tenant's shares. Separate report forms should be filed by each tenant or sharecropper.
- 2. Comparing total acres of cropland harvested with the sum of the acres of each individual crop harvested The total of all crop acreage from sections 9 through 14 should be equal to or greater than the acreage reported for cropland harvested in section 2, item 1a.

The sum of crop acres harvested can be greater than the acreage of cropland harvested when more than one crop was harvested from the same field (double cropping) during 2022. As an example, if 40 acres of wheat and 40 acres of soybeans were harvested from the same field in 2022, this would make 80 acres of crops harvested from 40 acres of cropland harvested.

- 3. **Reporting partial-year operations correctly** With the continuing changes in the agricultural community, there may be questions as to who is responsible for completing the report form. During 2022, if there was a change of ownership or the addressee is deceased or no longer farming, then the report form should be completed for that part of 2022 in which the addressee operated the farm or ranch. Make updates to the address label, as needed. In addition, respondents should complete section 36 and include the address and name of the person who used the land in this operation for the remainder of 2022. If the addressee died during 2022, complete the report form and please provide any necessary comments on the cover page. Please call our toll-free help line (1-888-424-7828) if you have any questions.
- 4. Person named on label did not have multiple farming operations but received two or more agricultural census forms Complete only one report form for this operation and return the extra form(s) with the completed form. Write "Duplicate" beside the address area, on the cover page of the extra form(s).
- 5. **Farm Income and Farm-Related Income** Sometimes it may be necessary to break out sales of farm products from services provided with those sales. The farm product receipts

should be reported in the proper commodity section and the service portion of the receipts should be reported as customwork or recreational income or other farm-related income in section 34. An example of this type of separation is a recreational fee for hunting versus the value of the game animal that was raised on this operation and released and hunted. Game farms that raise pheasants for fee for hunting is one type of operation. In this example, a portion of the hunting fee equivalent to the market value of the pheasants that were raised in captivity and released for hunting on this operation should be reported in the "Poultry" section 20, item 5, code 0910, and the remaining portion of the fee reported in "Income from Farm-Related Sources," section 34, item 4.

Report the amount received for non-equine breeding (stud) fees in the "Livestock Products" section 23, item 2. Equine breeding fees are recorded in "Horses, Ponies, Mules, Burros, and Donkeys" section 17, item 5.

OPERATING ARRANGEMENTS

Multiple farming operations - A census report form should be completed for each separate and distinct agricultural operation. For example, if a person was the sole proprietor and operator of one agricultural operation, the senior partner (person in charge) in an agricultural partnership, and manager of a third agricultural operation, three separate report forms should be completed and returned by this operator. A separate report form is required for each distinct agricultural operation (farm, ranch, feedlot, greenhouse, etc.) for which separate records of operating expenses and sales, livestock, and crop acreage and production are normally maintained.

Partnership operations - For partnerships, the person in charge of the day-to-day operation should complete the report form for the entire partnership farming operation.

If members of the partnership operate their own farm(s) separately from the partnership operation, a report form should be completed for each separate operation in addition to the original partnership operation. If members of the farming partnership, other than the person in charge, received report forms and they had no farming operations of their own, write a brief explanation on the report form such as "Senior partner, John Doe, has reported for the partnership of Doe Brothers; I have no other farming operations of my own," and mail it to us in the return envelope.

Land rented from others on shares - If the respondent rented or leased land from others on shares, report all of the operation's data, including the landlord's share of the production, sales, and expenses so the census report form will be complete for this operation. If the landlord's share of the total sales is not known, provide the best estimate of the value of the landlord's share of the production when it was removed from this operation and the landlord took possession. Crops produced and livestock and poultry inventories should include the landlord's and contractor's shares.

Report landlord paid expenses in section 32. If a landlord's expense contribution is not known, include the best estimate of the expense amount in section 32 and indicate in the margins of that page that the value reported for that item includes an estimate of the landlord's share.

Production contracts and custom feeding - A *production contract* is an agreement between a grower and contractor (integrator) that specifies that the grower will raise an agricultural commodity and that the contractor will provide certain inputs such as feed, fertilizer, etc. The grower receives a payment or fee from the contractor, generally after delivery, which is usually less than the full market price of the commodity. The contractor takes possession of the raised commodity at the end of the growing period. Do not report marketing contracts, futures contracts, forward contracts, or other contracts based strictly on price in section 24.

If crops or livestock were raised and moved from the farm under a production contract, report the amount of the specified commodity that was raised and moved under a production contract in the unit requested in section 24, item 2.

If the respondent had contracts with more than one integrator or contractor for a single commodity, combine the production of all contracts and report the total units produced for that commodity in the proper category in items 2a through 2l. If there were multiple contracts to produce different commodities, report the amount of each commodity produced under each contract(s) in the proper categories of items 2a through 2l. For items 2a through 2l, report the total amount the contractor(s) paid for producing the commodity(ies). Indicate the inputs that were partially or completely paid or provided by the contractor(s) in item 3 and write the contractor(s) name(s) in item 4. Report the quantity sold or moved from this operation in the appropriate sections 9 through 23, but exclude the value of commodities produced under a production contract from "Value of Sales" in sections 9 through 23. The dollar amounts paid by a contractor or integrator for expenses are NOT to be reported in section 32, "Production Expenses." However, expenses paid by the contract grower to raise a contracted commodity should be reported in section 24.

If crops were raised and moved under a production contract, report the area harvested and/or other specified information for the crops in sections 9 through 14. If livestock were raised and moved under a production contract, report in sections 15 through 23 the inventory and total number moved during 2022 in the response area for the number sold or moved in 2022.

Farming operations carried on by household members - On the report form for the operator, include any farming operations carried on by members of their family or by other persons living in the household, if they worked the land or kept livestock or poultry. Likewise, report land used or livestock or poultry kept by a son or daughter for a 4-H or Future Farmers of America (FFA) project on the report form for that operation. Persons, including members of the family, living in the household and having separate agricultural operations should report their operations on a separate report form. If a separate report form was not mailed to the respondent for their separate operation(s), please call the toll-free help line at 1-888-424-7828, to request forms for additional operations.

Corporations and institutions - A report form is required for all agricultural operations operated by corporations, government facilities, schools, hospitals, prisons, experimental stations, grazing associations, and other institutions. Report forms were mailed to the manager of the agricultural operation of these organizations for completion.

For institutions only, report as sold the value (or best estimate) of any agricultural products, such as vegetables, fruits, eggs and milk, produced on land operated by the institution and consumed by the persons in the institution. All other sales associated with the agricultural operations of the institution should be reported as "Value of Sales." Report the area harvested of any of the crops produced and consumed by the persons in the institution, along with the rest of the requested information for each crop in those sections.

HOW TO CORRECTLY COMPLETE YOUR CENSUS REPORT FORM

- 1. Use blue or black ink to complete the form.
- 2. Enter responses to all questions in the appropriate answer cells, on the correct line, and in the units requested (dollars, bushels, tons, etc.). Write any explanations outside the answer spaces or on a separate sheet of paper. If a separate sheet of paper is used, include the Survey Code that is located above the bar code in the address area on the cover page of the report form.
- 3. If exact figures are not available, enter best estimates. The respondent may write "est." for estimated in the shaded area near the answer cell but not in the answer cell itself. An estimate is much more useful than an omitted answer.
- 4. For all dollar items, enter only whole dollars. DO NOT ENTER CENTS.
- 5. Enter whole numbers except for some acreage items where tenths are requested. For those items, report to the nearest tenth of an acre. Some common fractions which can be reported in tenths are:

Report:

1/8 as 1 tenth	1/3 as 3 tenths	2/3 as 7 tenths
1/6 as 2 tenths	3/8 as 4 tenths	3/4 as 8 tenths
1/4 as 3 tenths	5/8 as 6 tenths	5/6 as 8 tenths

Some of these conversions are not exact, but they are close enough for practical reporting purposes.

6. Write numbers within the answer cells without extraneous marks on the numbers.

- 7. Report total quantities and not averages, unless properly noted.
- 8. If an answer to an item is No or NONE, enter an "X" or a check mark (v) in the "No" or "None" box provided.
- 9. Some sections have a skip pattern which directs the respondent to the next section when they have a "No" answer to the screening questions. Please follow the instructions on the report form for the skip patterns. For sections of the form which do not apply to the operation, mark the "No" box in the screening question at the beginning of the section and then follow the skip pattern.
- 10. It is possible a respondent may receive a report form that does not list all the crops produced on the operation. See individual crop sections for instructions on how to report those crops.

THE COVER PAGE

The cover page of the 2022 census report form contains the mail label which includes information about the operation name and address and general instructions for the report form. The information above the bar code contains the Survey Code which must be used to report over the Internet. The Survey Code is unique for each operation on the census mail list. If partner names are known, they are listed below the address area. Respondents may make corrections, additions, or deletions to the partner names, if needed.

The due date of February 6, 2023 is in the top margin of the page. The form number, in the upper left hand portion of the address area, identifies the version number. For the 2022 Census of Agriculture, there are four forms which will be used. They include:

22-A100 General Form

22-A101 Hawaii Form

22-A400 Short Form

22-A300 American Indian Form

If the respondent has additional questions or concerns, the toll-free number for assistance is listed near the bottom of the page. The response cells on the left side of the cover page are for office use only.

An area is designated for the respondent to print their name, enter their phone number (including the area code), enter the date the form was completed and enter their E-mail address. If there are any questions about this form, please call 1-888-424-7828.

This report form guide, other instructions, and frequently asked questions are available at www.agcensus.usda.gov. A wide variety of agricultural statistics are available from the National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS) on the Internet at www.nass.usda.gov.

SECTION 1. ACREAGE IN 2022

The purpose of this section is for recording all land (acreage) owned, rented, or used by the addressee, spouse, or by the partnership, corporation, or organization during 2022 named on the front of the form. This section will determine the acres operated for this farm or ranch. These acres in section 1, item 4 are referred to as "this operation" for the remainder of the report form. Report land in this section in whole acres only.

Item 1 – Number of acres owned - Include all land owned by the addressee, spouse, or both, a partnership, corporation, or organization under deeded title (lien free or mortgaged), purchase contract, homestead law, or as an heir or trustee of an undivided estate, even if all or part of it was rented to others in 2022. Include all separate fields and tracts of cropland, pastureland, woodland, wasteland, farmsteads, roads, ponds, etc.

Exclude any unrelated residential or commercial land or land in other countries. If the home is on a separate piece of land, it should be included only if there were some agricultural operations on this separate land or if some farm equipment was kept there.

Item 2 – Number of acres rented or leased from others - Include land worked on shares, used rent free, in exchange for services or payment of taxes, regardless of location, and all land rented that was only used for part of 2022, etc.

Include federal, state, and railroad land ONLY if it was leased to the addressee, a single tenant, on a per-acre basis during 2022.

Exclude land used under private, Government grazing, or special license on a per-head or animal-unit month (AUM) basis (Taylor Grazing, Section 3 (BLM) and USDA Forest Service land). Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Section 15 land leased by your operation with a specified acreage tract should be included here even though your fees to BLM are paid on an AUM basis. Exclude pastured cropland or pastureland used or rented on a per-head basis or for only part of the year (for example, winter wheat acreage leased for grazing this operation's livestock for one month).

Item 3 – Number of acres rented or leased to others - Include all land rented to, leased to, subleased to, or used by others in 2022, regardless of whether the addressee owned the land or rented it from others and subleased it to a third party. If no owned land was rented or leased to others, mark an "X" in the "None" box.

Include land worked on shares by others for the addressee, even if the addressee supplied some supervision, equipment, fertilizer, or other materials.

Exclude the following from item 3:

Acres in the Conservation Reserve (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), Farmable
 Wetlands Program (FWP), or Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) or other

federal or state conservation programs for which the addressee makes the day-to-day decisions.

- Land grazed on a permit, per-head, or animal-unit month (AUM) basis.
- Pastured cropland or pastureland used or rented to others on a per-head basis for only part of the year. This land should be reported as part of this operation. The livestock inventory should be reported on the cattle owner's report form. For example, in the plains states, a neighbor grazes cattle on your wheat field on a fee per-head or fee per-month basis. Even though the land was used by the neighbor for a month or two, the land should be included on your census report form if you were the operator of the land or the person responsible for planting and harvesting the wheat crop. If this arrangement was in place on December 31, 2022, the cattle inventory is reported on the neighbor's (cattle owners) report form.
- Land from which another person buys a crop that is ready for harvest.
- Land rented or leased to others for part of the year.

Item 3a – How many acres rented or leased to others did this operation own? - Report acreage if any owned land was rented or leased to others in item 3. Report land in whole acres only. If no owned land was rented or leased to others, mark an "X" in the "None" box.

Item 4 – Total acres operated - The entry here will be the sum of all land owned, item 1 (Box A), plus land rented or leased FROM OTHERS, item 2 (Box B), minus the land rented or leased TO OTHERS, item 3 (Box C). The result will equal the total acres in this operation for 2022 (Box D). It is very important to establish the correct acres for this operation in item 4 (Box D) since the rest of the report form questions apply to this acreage entry.

Item 5 – Total acres operated, Item 4 (Box D) = 0 or did you rent all your land to someone else? - If the value for the total acres operated equals zero (0), and the operation did not raise or own any livestock, aquaculture, or poultry in 2022, first confirm this by reading scenarios 1 through 3 below and update the section 1 acreages, if needed. If acreage in item 4 is still zero, then skip to section 36.

Item 6 – Did this operation pay to use any land on a fee per head or animal unit month (AUM) basis? For the census of agriculture, grazing land rented on a fee per head or animal unit month (AUM) basis, including public lands the operation has grazing rights, sole use, or year-round use of are not considered part of the operation. These acres should not be included in the total acres operated, item 4 (Box D).

When the acreage entry in item 4 is "0" and:

1. The addressee grew any crops, harvested maple sap, owned bees, owned sheep, or raised any livestock or poultry in 2022, complete the report form.

- 2. All land was operated by a renter or sharecropper, explain the situation briefly, "All land rented out," etc. If any of the land rented to others was owned, complete section 1, item 3a (number of owned acres rented) and then skip to and complete section 36. Mail the report form in the return envelope.
- 3. If the addressee did not have any agricultural activity on owned or rented land at any time during 2022, answer the questions below. Remember to consider any agricultural production or sales that were only for part of 2022.
 - i. At any time during 2022, did you plant, grow, or cultivate any crops or plant or grow any greenhouse or nursery crops for sale or future sales for yourself or under contract for someone else? For example: grains, oil seeds, hay, tobacco, cotton, vegetables, fruit, herbs, or other crops, flowering or foliage plants, mushrooms, bedding plants, cut flowers, seeds, sod, or Christmas trees.

Yes - Update section 1 acreage and complete the report form

No – continue

ii. At any time during 2022, did you have 100 or more acres of pasture?

Yes – Update section 1 acreage and complete the report form

No – continue

iii. At any time during 2022, did you or will you raise or produce any livestock, poultry, or animal specialties (including animal products) for yourself or under contract for someone else? For example: cattle, hogs, sheep, horses, poultry, aquaculture, lab animals, mink, goats, llamas, fish, bees, emus, other livestock, or animal specialties.

Yes - Update section 1 acreage and complete the report form

No - continue

iv. Did you receive payments in 2022 for participation in any federal or state farm programs? For example: CRP, WRP, FWP, or CREP payments, loan deficiency payments, disaster payments, EQIP, CSP, or any other federal agricultural program payments.

Yes – Update section 1 acreage and complete the report form

No – If you answered No to all the questions above, explain briefly your situation, such as "retired" or "sold farm" or "quit farming" and include the date any change in the operation occurred in the space below section 1. Then skip to and complete section 36. Mail the report form in the return envelope.

Item 7 – In what county was the largest value of your agricultural products raised or produced? - The principal county is the county where the largest value of the agricultural products sold or delivered was raised or produced. The data will be tabulated and published in this county. Please print the principal county, the two letter state abbreviation, and the number of acres from this operation that were located in that county. All acres in the principal county should be reported here, not just land which is cropland harvested.

Item 7a – Agricultural activity in any OTHER county - If the acres in this operation (section 1, item 4) are located in more than one county, print the names of the additional county(ies), the state(s), and the number of acres in each additional county in these response cells. Up to three counties may be reported with the associated acreage in this item. The number of acres in items 7 and 7a should equal the number of acres in item 4 but if the acres in this operation are in more than four counties, report the four counties that have the largest value of production.

SECTION 2. LAND USE IN 2022

In section 2, report how the land in section 1, item 4, this operation, was used during 2022. Reminder: the land rented **to others**, as reported in section 1, item 3 is **not** part of this operation and should not be reported in this section.

Land used for multiple purposes - In general, the land use items have been arranged in what is normally considered a decreasing order of importance. In this section, each acre in this operation should be reported only once, even though the land may have been used for more than one purpose. See explanations below. Total acres reported in this section, item 5 (Box E), should equal the total acres reported in section 1, item 4 (Box D).

Double-cropping - If more than one crop was harvested from the same land in 2022, report the acreage only once in item 1a as "Cropland harvested." For example, if wheat was harvested from a 40-acre field in 2022, and then soybeans were planted and harvested from the same field in 2022, report only 40 acres of cropland harvested in item 1a. However, when reporting acres of the individual crops harvested in section 11 "Field Crops," the 40 acres of wheat and the 40 acres of soybeans should both be reported on separate lines.

Interplanted crops - If a crop was interplanted in an orchard and harvested, report the acres for the specific crop in the appropriate crop section. For example, if a vegetable crop was interplanted among trees in a 5-acre orchard, report the portion of the 5 acres devoted to vegetables in section 13 "Vegetables, Potatoes, and Melons" and report the total 5 acres for the orchard in section 14 "Fruit, Nuts, and Berries. Again, include only 5 acres once in section 2, item 1a, "Cropland harvested."

Crops, grown in alternating strips - If two crops were grown at the same time in alternating strips in the same field, report the acreage devoted to each crop in the appropriate crop sections in the report form. If a 50-acre field was planted in corn and soybeans, with 16 rows of corn followed by 16 rows of soybeans, 25 acres should be reported for corn and 25 acres should be reported for soybeans in the area where these crops are preprinted or listed in section 11.

Crops grown in alternating strips with idle land or summer fallow - If a field had a crop grown in alternating strips with unharvested grass planted to control erosion, report the acreage devoted to the crop in the appropriate crop section, include these acres in item 1a, and report the acreage devoted to the unharvested grass in section 2, item 1d "Cropland idle or used for cover crops."

Skip row planting with idle land or summer fallow - "Skip" row planting involves leaving a space between the rows for conserving moisture, soil conservation, tillage practices, movement of machinery and equipment between the rows for spraying and harvesting of the crop, etc. See the examples below.

Example 1. If a crop was planted in "skip" rows with a cover crop for soil improvement, report the harvested portion of the field in the appropriate crop's section and also include these acres in this section, item 1a, "Cropland harvested." Include the acres in soil improvement in this section, item 1d, "Cropland idle or used for cover crops."

Example 2. If "skip" rows were in cultivated summer fallow, report the harvested portion of the acres in the appropriate crop's section and include these acres in this section, item 1a, "Cropland harvested." Include the acres in cultivated summer fallow in this section, item 1c, "Cropland in cultivated summer fallow."

Cropland

Item 1a – Cropland harvested - Includes all acreage from which crops were harvested in 2022 and land in fruit and nut trees and vines, bearing age acres and nonbearing age acres in an orchard, land in berry production, groves, or vineyards being maintained for production. The acreage of cropland harvested will include:

- Field crops (corn, wheat, barley, oats, sorghum, soybeans, cotton, tobacco, etc.)
- Hay and forage crops (dry hay, haylage, silage, greenchop, etc.)
- Christmas trees (whether harvested or not in 2022), short rotation woody crops, fruit trees, nut trees, and grapevines (include bearing age acres and nonbearing age acres of trees and vines whether harvested or not in 2022)
- Nursery, greenhouse, floriculture, sod, mushrooms, vegetable seeds, and propagative material.
- Vegetables, potatoes, and melons
- Any other acreage from which a crop was harvested even if the crop was considered a
 partial failure and the yield was very low.
- The sum of acres reported harvested in section 9 (Hay and Forage Crops), plus the acres in production of Christmas trees and short rotation woody crops in section 10 (Cultivated Christmas Trees, Short Rotation Woody Crops, and Maple Syrup), (but do not include

woodlands used for maple taps, they are reported in item 3) section 11 (Field Crops), plus the total square feet under glass (converted to acres) and acres in the open in nursery products in section 12 (Nursery, Greenhouse, Floriculture, Sod, Mushrooms, Vegetable seeds, and Propagative Materials), item 2, and section 13 (Vegetables, Potatoes, and Melons) plus the total acres in fruit, nuts and berries in section 14 (Fruit, Nuts, and Berries), item 2, minus the acreage of land from which two or more crops were harvested (acres double-cropped), equals "Cropland harvested," section 2, item 1a.

• For Hawaii only, the sum of acres reported in sections - 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14, plus the total square feet, under glass in section 11 (converted to acres) minus the acreage of land from which two or more crops were harvested (acres double-cropped), equals "Cropland harvested," item 1a.

Item 1b - Cropland on which all crops failed or were abandoned - Include:

- All land on which a crop failed (except fruit or nuts in an orchard, grove, or vineyard or berries being maintained for production) and no other crop was harvested and which was not pastured or grazed.
- Acreage not harvested because of low prices or labor shortages (except fruit or nuts in an orchard, grove, or vineyard being maintained for production).
- If some, but not all, of the crop acreage was harvested, the harvested acreage should be reported in item 1a, and in the appropriate crop section. The remainder of the acreage should be reported in this item provided it was not used for pasture or grazing.

Item 1c – Cropland in cultivated summer fallow - Includes cropland in cultivated summer fallow or chemical fallow. It may have been only treated with herbicides, only tilled, or a combination of these practices to control weeds and conserve moisture and not seeded for harvest in 2022. Include cropland summer fallowed in 2022 and planted to a crop (i.e. winter wheat, etc.) for harvest in 2023.

Item 1d – Cropland idle or used for cover crops or soil improvement but NOT harvested and NOT pastured or grazed - Cropland idle includes any other acreage which could have been used for crops without any additional improvement and which was not reported elsewhere in item 1. Include:

- Land used for cover crops or soil improvement but not harvested or grazed.
- Land in Conservation Reserve Program (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), Farmable Wetlands Program (FWP), Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP), or other federal or state conservation programs that was not hayed or grazed in 2022.
- Land occupied with growing crops for harvest in 2023 or later years but not harvested or summer fallowed in 2022 (except fruit or nuts in an orchard, grove, or vineyard or berries

being maintained for production). Examples are acreage planted in winter wheat, strawberries, etc., for harvest in 2023 and no crop was harvested from these acres in 2022.

- Fruit or nut orchards or vineyard abandoned and not maintained for production.
- Land in "skipped" rows between rows of crops or field strips should be reported here if the land was not used for any other purpose. It should not be reported in item 1a, "Cropland harvested."

Exclude acreage from which crops were harvested or planted and intended to be harvested or used for pasture or grazing.

Pastureland

Item 2a – Permanent pasture and rangeland - This land use item includes pastureland and rangeland, other than woodland pasture or cropland, normally used for pasture or grazing. It usually includes land referred to as meadow, prairie, or range and consists of various types of grasses, such as bunch grass, shortgrass, buffalo grass, bluestem, bluegrass, switch grass, etc. It also includes land predominantly covered with brush or browse. Pastureland or rangeland containing desert shrubs, sagebrush, mesquite, greasewood, mountain browse, salt brush, cactus, juniper, pinion, etc., are to be reported here. Also, include grazing lands that were improved by seeding, liming, fertilizing, irrigating, drainage, or controlling brush or weeds.

Item 2b – Woodland pastured - Report all woodland or timber tracts, natural or planted, used for pasture or grazing. Exclude:

- Land planted for Christmas tree production should be reported in item 1a.
- Cut over or deforested (clear cut) land improved for pasture should be reported in item 2a.
- Pastureland or rangeland containing desert shrubs, sagebrush, or mesquite land. This land should be reported in item 2a.

Item 2c – Other pasture and grazing land - Include:

- Land pastured or grazed which could have been used for crops without any additional improvements. Additional improvements include removal of rocks, terracing, removing trees, etc. before crops may be planted or hay harvested.
- Land in planted crops that was hogged-off, pastured, or grazed and not harvested for grain or hay.

Exclude from item 2c acres of corn, sorghum, soybeans, hay, and cowpeas that were hogged-off or grazed **after** harvest. Report these harvested acres only once in item 1a.

Item 3 – Woodland not pastured - Include:

- Cut over and deforested land with new or remaining growth that has future value as wood products and was not pastured in 2022.
- All other woodland, including tapped maple trees (sugar bush).

Item 4 – All other land - Include all other land occupied by building sites, farmsteads, windbreaks, lanes, roads, ponds, owned or leased water used for aquaculture production, barn lots, gardens for home use, wasteland, etc. Include tidelines actively managed for aquaculture production, whether owned or rented from others. Also, include all land in this operation that does not fit the definition of the other land use categories listed in items 1, 2, and 3 above.

Item 5 (Box E) – Total Acres - This is the total of all entries reported for items 1 through 4. Item 6 - The total acres reported in Item 5 should be the same as the acreage reported in section 1, item 4 (Box D).

SECTION 3. LAND RENTED OR LEASED FROM OTHERS FOR CASH

Report the number of acres for each type of land (non-irrigated cropland, item 2, irrigated cropland, item 3, and permanent pasture, grazing or grassland, item 4), that were rented on a per acre basis for **cash** in 2022. Acres reported in this section should be included in section 1, item 2.

Include:

Acres rented/ leased on a per acre basis for cash.

Exclude:

- Acres rented/leased for a share of the crop or livestock.
- Acres rented/leased on a fee per head, per pound of gain, or AUM basis.
- Acres rented/leased that includes dwelling and buildings along with farmland.
- Acres rented/leased free of charge.

Additionally, do not report the same land multiple times and report the land in the category by the primary purpose in which it was rented.

SECTION 4. LAND USE PRACTICES

Item 1a – Tile drainage is a type of drainage system that removes excess water from the soil below the surface.

Item 1b – Ditch drainage systems are designed to provide primarily surface drainage.

Item 1c – A conservation easement (also called conservation covenant, or conservation restriction) is a power invested in a qualified private land conservation organization (often called a "land trust") or government (municipal, county, state or federal) to constrain, as to a specified land area, the exercise of rights otherwise held by a landowner as to achieve certain conservation purposes. Some examples of conservation goals include maintaining and improving water quality, perpetuate the growth of forests, maintain wildlife habitat and migration corridors, and protecting scenic vistas visible from roads and other public areas.

Item 2a – No-till farming practices is cropland used for production from year to year without disturbing the <u>soil</u> through <u>tillage other than planting</u>. Do not include as no-till, land that was not planted in 2022 such as existing orchards, land in berries, nursey stock, or hay harvested from existing grassland or alfalfa that was established prior to 2022. No-till is an agricultural technique which increases the amount of water that infiltrates into the soil and increases organic matter retention. In many agricultural regions it can reduce or eliminate <u>soil erosion</u>.

Item 2b – Conservation or reduced tillage leaves crop residue cover on the soil to conserve moisture and prevent erosion. This may involve the use of a chisel plow, field cultivators, or other implements. Conservation tillage leaves 30% or more of the soil surface covered by crop residue after planting, while reduced tillage leaves between 15% and up to 30% of the soil surface covered.

Item 2c – Intensive or conventional tillage leaves less than 15% of the soil surface covered by <u>crop residue</u>. Intensive tillage often involves multiple operations with implements such as a moldboard, disk, and/or chisel <u>plow</u>.

Item 2d – A cover crop is a <u>crop</u> planted primarily to manage soil <u>erosion</u>, <u>soil fertility</u>, soil quality, water, <u>weeds</u>, <u>pests</u>, and diseases on non-CRP acres. Grasses planted between orchard tree rows should be reported as a cover crop. Exclude grasses harvested for hay.

Item 4 – Precision agriculture practices are practices that utilize technology to improve agricultural productivity or efficiency by connecting the practice to a digital environment for crop or livestock production. Several examples of precision agriculture practices are use of global positioning (GPS) guidance systems, GPS yield monitoring and soil mapping, variable rate input applications, use of drones for scouting fields or monitoring livestock, electronic tagging, precision feeding, and robotic milking. Precision agriculture practices are not limited to these examples.

SECTION 5. IRRIGATION

In section 5, report how many acres of the land in section 2 were equipped for irrigation and how many acres received irrigation in 2022.

Cropland used as pasture - Land where crops were harvested that was also grazed in the same year should be considered cropland and reported in item 2.

Multiple applications – If land is irrigated multiple times throughout the year, whether for the same crop or for a new crop or purpose, the land should only be counted once in either item 2 or 3, depending on the type of land irrigated.

Livestock - Water used for watering livestock or raising aquaculture should not be included in section 5. Cropland that was irrigated to grow a harvested crop in 2022, such as rice, that was later used to raise aquaculture should be reported under item 2.

Irrigation Infrastructure and Equipment – Refers to the presence of pipes, dams, canals, ditches, flooding (controlled or not), sprinkler systems, drip trickle systems, etc. which an operation can utilize to supply water to land for the irrigation of crops or pasture. Land with irrigation infastructure and equipment that is used exclusively for aquaculture operations, as a livestock drinking source, or for cleaning of livestock pens should not be counted.

Item 2 – Report the number of harvested acres which were irrigated one or more times in 2022. These acres should be included in section 2, item 1a.

Item 3 – Report the number of acres of pastureland, rangeland, failed cropland and any other non-harvested land which were irrigated one or more times in 2022. Include CRP and all other non-harvested cropland which were irrigated in 2022. These acres should be included in section 2; items 1b, 1c, 1d, 2a, and 2c. Do not include acres from Section 2; items 2b, 3, or 4.

Item 4 – Report the number of acres of land on this operation that have irrigation systems or equipment. Include all acres irrigated in 2022 and acres that were not irrigated in 2022 but could have been irrigated, regardless of water rights. These acres should include Items 2 and 3 from Section 5 alongside any other acres from Section 2; items 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, 2a, and 2c that had access to irrigation but were not irrigated for the current year.

Item 5 – Intention - Report "Yes" or "No" if the irrigation systems or equipment are intended for use on this operation in the future. Select "Yes" if any agricultural land on this operation was irrigated in 2022 or if any land will be irrigated in the future using infastructure and equipment on this operation. Select "No" if this operation will not use the irrigation infastructure and equipment currently available on this operation.

SECTION 6. CROP INSURANCE, CONSERVATION RESERVE PROGRAM AND OTHER GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS

Item 1 – Report the acres in this operation that were covered under federal, private, or other forms of crop insurance during 2022 for cropland and grazing land. Acres reported here should be included in section 2.

Item 2 – Report the number of acres in the Conservation Reserve Program (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), Farmable Wetlands Program (FWP), or Conservation Reserve

Enhancement Program (CREP), on September 30, 2022. Record the total payments received during 2022 for participation in item 2a.

Under the CRP, farm and ranch operators have successfully bid to place cropland in a 10-15 year contract. Operators with a CRP contract receive annual government payments for the acreage identified in the contract. Acres reported here should be included in section 2.

Include only the annual rental component here. Signing incentive payment (CRP-SIP), practice incentive payment (CRP-PIP), cost shares, and other payments should be included in item 3, other federal payments.

Item 3 – Report other federal agricultural program payments. Include disaster payments, market loss payments, national dairy market loss payments, non-insured assistance program payments (NAP), Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) payments, Conservation Security Program (CSP) payments, livestock programs, and any other federal programs. Exclude any type of insurance payments received for losses. Crop and livestock insurance payments that were received by this operation are reported in section 34, "Income from farm-related sources."

Item 4 – Report state and local government agricultural program payments. Exclude the state and local portion of CREP payments, if they were reported in item 2.

Item 5 – Report the amount received for placing commodities under a Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) loan during 2022. Report the amount of the CCC loan, even if the loan was redeemed or forfeited prior to December 31, 2022. Include Austrian winter peas, barley, canola and other rapeseed, corn, cotton, crambe, dry edible peas, flaxseed, honey, lentils, wool, mohair, mustard seed, oats, peanuts, rice, safflower, sesame seed, chickpeas, sorghum, soybeans, sunflower seed, and wheat. Exclude CCC loans to build crop storage facilities.

Item 6 – Report the amount paid (minus any interest and storage charges) to repay Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) loans in 2022. Report interest paid on these loans in section 32, item 13b. Record storage expenses associated with CCC loan repayment, if any, in section 32, item 16.

Item 7 – The National Appeals Division (NAD) reports directly to the Secretary of Agriculture and is independent of other parts of USDA. Its sole mission is to provide fair and timely hearings and appeals to USDA program participants.

Any person who receives an adverse program decision from USDA's Farm Service Agency, Risk Management Agency, Natural Resources Conservation Service, or the three USDA Rural Development agencies may file an appeal with NAD.

SECTION 7. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION

Item 1 - Report whether the operator and/or other members of the operator's household and/or other persons related to the operator by blood, marriage, or adoption held more than 50 percent of

the total farm asset ownership interests of this operation. Persons related to the operator by blood, marriage, or adoption may live outside the operator's household. **DO NOT** include landlords, contractors, or lenders as those with ownership interest.

Item 2 – Report number of households who shared the net farm income from this operation.

Item 3 - Indicate if the operation was organized as a Limited Liability Company (LLC) under state law. A LLC may fall into any of the categories listed in Item 4.

Item 4 - Mark the type of operation that best describes this operation and any corresponding "Yes" or "No" questions.

Family or individual operation – Exclude partnerships and corporations - Mark this box if this operation was operated by an individual, or an individual and family, or by spouses. Include farms or ranches that were family operations but were not incorporated or operated as partnerships.

Partnership operation (include family partnerships) - Mark this box if this operation was run by two or more persons in partnership. Do not include farms or ranches run by spouses (unless there was a formal agreement other than marriage license or vows). Partnerships include organizations where two or more persons have agreed to share contributions (capital and effort), decision-making, liabilities, and the distribution of profits. For partnerships, answer the "Yes"/"No" question as to whether the partnership was registered under state law.

Incorporated under state law - Mark this box if incorporated under state law. A corporation may be defined as a legal entity or artificial person created under the law of a state to carry on a business. It includes corporations but not cooperatives. Cooperatives should be marked as item 4, "other." For corporate entities, answer both "Yes"/"No" questions. A family-held corporation has more than 50 percent of its stock owned by persons related by blood or marriage.

Other - Mark this box if this operation was an estate or trust, government facility, grazing association, cooperative, American Indian Reservation, institutional farm, non-profit, etc. Check the "Yes"/No" boxes for the subcategories as they apply to this operation. Some examples are:

- Estate Undivided property still in or subject to probate.
- Trust The farm is operated by a person as trustee for someone else who is not of age, or
 may be in a hospital, institution, or is otherwise unable to carry on their own business.
 Estate or trust may also be defined as a fund of money or property administered for the
 benefit of another individual or organization.
- **Government Facility** Facilities operated by federal, state or local governments such as fish hatcheries. This also includes publicly run institutional operations such as schools, prisons, government research farms, etc.

- American Indian Reservation Farms or ranches owned by and/or part of an American
 Indian Reservation and operated for the general benefit of Reservation residents. Farms or
 places operated by American Indians owning or having allotted land should be reported in
 the same manner as any other farm, ranch, or place.
- Other The farm is operated by a religious entity, non-profit, cooperative, experiment station, etc. If this operation was operated as a cooperative, it is defined as an enterprise or association created and formed jointly by the members. Experiment stations are operated primarily for research and perhaps, but not necessarily, in conjunction with a university. Enter the specifics about the operation in the specify type response box.

SECTION 8. PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS

This section collects data on persons responsible for management decisions for this operation, including hired managers. In the event there is more than one person involved in decisionmaking, four columns have been provided to record the names and characteristics of up to four persons. If there were more than four persons, answer for the four individuals most involved in the decisionmaking for this operation.

Item 1 - Report how many men and women were involved in decisions for this operation.

Item 2a – Full Name - Identify the persons(s) in the columns provided and respond to each item for each person. If there were more than four operators, identify the four most senior producers in the columns.

Exclude hired workers unless they were a hired manager or a family member who was also involved in making decisions for the operation.

Print the name(s) of the person(s) in the response area.

Item 2b – Sex of person - Indicate if the person listed at the top of the column is male or female.

Item 2c - Report the age of the person listed at the top of the column on December 31, 2022.

Item 2d - Mark the appropriate box as to whether the person listed at the top of the column is of Spanish, Hispanic, or Latino origin or background, such as Mexican, Cuban, or Puerto Rican, regardless of race.

Item 2e - Mark one or more race categories to indicate what the person listed at the top of the column considers himself/herself to be.

Item 2f - At which occupation did the person spend a majority of his/her worktime in 2022 - If the person listed at the top of the column spent the majority (50 percent or more) of their work time in this farming or ranching operation in 2022, mark the "Farm or ranch work" box. The "Other" box should be marked for persons spending less than 50 percent of their worktime in farming or ranching operations.

- **Item 2g** In the opinion of the person listed at the top of the column, mark whether the operator is retired.
- **Item 2h Off-farm work** Report how many days the person(s) worked at least 4 hours per day **off** this operation for pay in 2022. Include time spent working on someone else's farm. Mark the appropriate box.
- **Item 2i** Mark whether the person listed at the top of the column lived on this operation at any time during 2022.
- **Item 2j** Report the first year the person listed at the top of the column began to operate any part of THIS operation on a continuous basis through 2022.
- **Item 2k** Report the first year the person listed at the top of the column began to operate ANY farm operation.
- **Item 2I Served in U.S. armed forces** For the person listed at the top of the column, mark the appropriate box indicating the current status of military service, if any.
- **Item 2m** For column 1, report the number of persons living in the person's household. For columns 2, 3, and 4 report the number of persons living in each person's household, but enter "0" if this person was counted as a household member in a previous column.
- **Item 2n** Indicate whether the person listed at the top of the column was a hired manager for this operation.
- **Item 3a Day-to day decisions** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated day-to-day decisions for this operation on December 31, 2022.
- **Item 3b Land use and/or crop management decisions** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated in land use and/or crop management decisions for this operation on December 31, 2022.
- **Item 3c Livestock decisions** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated livestock management decisions for this operation on December 31, 2022.
- **Item 3d Marketing decisions** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated in marketing decisions for this operation on December 31, 2022.
- **Item 3e Record keeping and/or financial management** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated in record keeping and/or financial management for this operation on December 31, 2022.
- **Item 3f Estate planning or succession planning** For the person listed at the top of the column, check the box if this person participated in estate planning or succession planning for this operation on December 31, 2022.

SECTION 9. HAY AND FORAGE CROPS

Include hay, haylage, grass silage, baleage, or greenchop cut from cropland pastures or CRP land. Any pasture or CRP land that had hay cut from it in 2022 should be reported as "Cropland harvested" in section 2, item 1a.

If two or more cuttings of the same crop were made from the same field, i.e., all cuttings harvested as dry hay or as haylage, then report the acreage only once for acres harvested and any irrigated harvested acres. Report the total tonnage from all cuttings combined in the "Total Tons Harvested" column. Dry hay is reported as "Tons, dry" and haylage, grass silage, and greenchop are reported as "Tons, green."

If haylage, grass silage, or greenchop was cut from the same land from which dry hay was cut, report the acreage and production for that land which was cut for dry hay under the appropriate dry hay category and the acreage and production under the appropriate haylage, silage, or greenchop category. For example, if 20 acres of alfalfa were cut for hay and then the same land was used to produce alfalfa haylage, report 20 acres and the tons harvested of hay in "Alfalfa and alfalfa mixtures for dry hay," and 20 acres and the green tons harvested of haylage in "Haylage or greenchop from alfalfa or alfalfa mixtures."

Report quantity harvested in tons. Example: If 400 square bales of hay were produced, estimate the average weight of the bales and convert total quantity harvested to *tons* (the requested unit of measure).

(70 pounds * 400 bales) divided by 2,000 pounds = 14 tons

Exclude the acreage and production when straw was produced, but if the straw is sold, report the value of the straw sales under the appropriate grain from which it was produced in section 11.

Item 2 – All land from which dry hay, haylage, grass silage, or greenchop was cut or forage was harvested - Report the total acres from which hay and forage crops were harvested and any irrigated harvested acres from this operation. If different harvesting methods were used on the same acreage or when multiple cuttings of the same harvesting method were used, report the acreage only ONCE. Only acres harvested and irrigated acres harvested are needed here. Report the tons harvested in items 4-7. Exclude corn silage, sorghum silage, and straw.

Item 3 – Hay and forage sold - Report the total value of sales of hay, grass silage, haylage, and greenchop in this item. Do not include as sales hay and forage that was fed on this operation. Do not report straw sales here. Report the straw sales in the appropriate type of grain from which it was made. For example, if wheat straw was sold, include the sales with the wheat for grain value of sales in section 11.

Item 4 – Alfalfa and alfalfa mixtures for dry hay - Report only the acres and dry tons of alfalfa harvested or cut for hay and any irrigated harvested acres. Report the dry weight in tons at the

time the hay was removed from the field for storage or feeding. If the production in tons is not known, report the number of bales and the estimated average bale weight.

Item 5 – Haylage or greenchop from alfalfa or alfalfa mixtures - Report acres harvested, tons harvested green, and any irrigated harvested acres of haylage or greenchop (hay cut and fed green) of alfalfa and alfalfa mixtures. If haylage or greenchop from alfalfa or alfalfa mixtures was cut from the same land from which dry alfalfa hay was cut, also report the acreage and production for the acres which were cut for alfalfa dry hay in item 4.

Item 6 – Other dry hay - Report the acres, tons harvested, and any irrigated harvested acres of hay made from small grains or small grain mixtures. Include hay made from small grains and alfalfa mixtures where the quantity harvested was predominantly from small grains. Report all dry hay made from such crops or mixtures as clover, lespedeza, fescue, timothy, Bermuda grass, Sudan grass, sorghum cut for dry hay, sorghum-sudan crosses, orchard grass, soybeans, peanuts, etc. Report the total acres harvested, tons harvested, and acres irrigated of all such crops or mixtures. If the production in tons is not known, report the number of bales and the estimated average bale weight.

Item 7 – All other haylage, grass silage, and greenchop - Report the acres, tons harvested green, and any irrigated harvested acres of haylage, grass silage, and greenchop (hay cut and fed green) made from such crops or mixtures as small grains, clover, lespedeza, fescue, timothy, Bermuda grass, sudangrass, sorghum-sudan crosses, orchardgrass, soybeans, peanuts, etc. When reporting haylage, grass silage, and greenchop, include acres and total quantities from all cuttings, whether harvested from land previously cut for dry hay or from land used mainly for pasture. Report alfalfa haylage in item 5 in this section.

SECTION 10. CULTIVATED CHRISTMAS TREES, SHORT ROTATION WOODY CROPS, AND MAPLE SYRUP

Item 2 – Cultivated Christmas trees cut and to be cut - Report the total acres of Christmas trees grown for cut Christmas trees as "Acres in Production" whether harvested in 2022 or for future harvest. "Number of Trees Cut" should be only those trees harvested in 2022. If there were acres in production, but no trees cut in 2022, report the acres in production and enter "0" for "Number of Trees Cut." Also, "Acres in Production" should be included in section 2, item 1a, "Cropland harvested."

Report acres of Christmas trees harvested as live nursery stock (balled and burlapped) in section 12, code 0488, "Nursery stock."

Report the total value of sales of cut Christmas harvested and sold from this operation during 2022. Do not include in the values of sales craft items such as wreaths.

Item 3 – Short rotation woody crops - Report the total acres of short rotation woody crops as "Acres in Production" whether harvested in 2022 or for future harvest. Also, "Acres in Production" should be included in section 2, item 1a, "Cropland harvested."

A short rotation woody crop is a tree that grows from seed to a mature tree in 10 years or less. These are trees for use as paper or pulp, or as engineered wood or for ethanol. The wood is too soft to be used directly for lumber. Exclude nursery stock or trees that will be harvested for lumber, fence posts, telephone poles, etc. Print the crop grown in the specify crop box provided.

Acres Irrigated - In section 10, items 2 and 3, report the total acres in production that were irrigated at least once in 2022.

Report the total value of sales of short rotation woody crops harvested and sold from this operation during 2022. Report timber and pulp wood sales in section 34, item 3.

Item 4 – Maple syrup - Not applicable to Hawaii - Report the total number of taps in 2022 and the gallons of syrup produced from the sap harvested from these taps. If sap was sold, estimate the number of gallons of syrup it would have produced. Also, report the acres of tapped maple trees in section 2, item 3 (Woodland Not Pastured). Do not include syrup produced from sap purchased from others.

Report the value of maple syrup and maple sap sold from this operation in 2022. Exclude from the value of sales any syrup produced from sap purchased from others.

SECTION 11. FIELD CROPS

This section collects information on harvested tobacco, small grains, field seeds, and row crops. Report quantity harvested in the requested unit of measure. Report acres from which field crops were harvested in item 2. Acres from which more than one crop were harvested are reported separately in item 3 but only counted once in item 2.

To report a field crop harvested in 2022, locate the field crop name in the table or in the list below the table. Use the information provided (name, unit of measure, and code) to fill the blank write-in spaces in the table. Be sure to enter the correct crop code in the second column.

Report any other field crop harvested in 2022 but not listed in this section or anywhere on the report form in this section. Print the crop name in the first column and crop code "0752" in the second column. Report the acres harvested, total quantity harvested (in pounds), and harvested acres that were irrigated.

Institutions - Crops grown and harvested by an institution (school, prison, hospital, etc.) and consumed by the persons in the institution should be reported as crop "Acres Harvested." Report the quantity consumed of each crop as "Total Quantity Harvested." Also, use the estimated market value when the crop was consumed to derive the value of sales for the applicable section.

Partial acreage harvested in a field - If only some of the acres within the field were harvested, report only the acres actually harvested and not the total acres in the field. As an example, if 3 acres of corn drowned out in a 20-acre field of corn and 17 acres of corn were harvested for

grain, report the 17 acres harvested in section 11. The remaining 3 acres, if not summer fallowed, hayed, or grazed, should be included in section 2, item 1b, "Cropland on which all crops failed or were abandoned."

Acres not yet harvested - If a planted crop would normally be harvested before December 31, 2022 (corn, soybeans, etc.) but harvest was/will be delayed until 2023 because of weather conditions, equipment problems, etc., it should be included in "Acres Harvested," the estimated production included in "Total Quantity Harvested," and the portion of the acres harvested that were irrigated, if any, included in "Acres Irrigated."

Total production harvested - Report the total quantity harvested in the unit of measure specified for each crop. If the unit of measure is different in the respondent's records than the unit of measure requested on the report form, convert the total quantity harvested to the requested unit of measure. Enter quantity harvested data on the same line as the crop's acreage harvested. Note that sections 9 and 11 are the only sections that request the total quantity harvested for crops. Report cut Christmas trees in section 10. Report maple syrup produced in section 10.

Example: If 240 tons of sunflower seed were harvested, convert to *pounds* harvested. (240 tons multiplied by 2,000 pounds = 480,000 pounds.)

Acres irrigated that were harvested - Acres irrigated are acres on which water was applied by any artificial or controlled means, such as sprinklers, furrows and ditches, spreader dikes, flooding, or sub-irrigation pipes. Include the harvested field crop acres where lagoon waste water from livestock operations was distributed by a sprinkler or flood system.

Gross Value of Sales - Report the value of all crops sold or moved from this operation in 2022 on the appropriate line(s), excluding the fees received from raising commodities under a production contract. Report the value of crops when sold or moved from the operation during 2022 regardless of the year crops were harvested or raised. Report value(s) in whole dollars. The cents are preprinted on the report form.

Report gross values of the crops, including the value of the landlord's share, before marketing charges, hauling, cleaning, drying, storage, taxes, etc., are or were deducted. Include payments received in 2022 from cooperatives or marketing organizations for crops produced on this operation regardless of the year in which the crops were harvested. Also, include as sales the estimate of the value of any crop removed from this operation in trade of services, such as hay bales in exchange for labor or other services. If the sale price or market value is not known, provide the best estimate of the market value when removed from this operation.

Exclude the value of the commodities produced under a production contract or custom feeding arrangement which are reported in section 24. Exclude grain produced on this operation and fed to livestock on this operation. Exclude proceeds from Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) loans or Loan Deficiency Payments (LDP). They are reported in section 6.

Report the value of straw produced on this operation **and sold.** Report the straw sales in the appropriate type of grain from which it was made in item 3. For example, if wheat straw was sold, include the sales with the wheat for grain value of sales. Do not report the acreage of straw separately in code "752", the acreage is recorded in the grain harvested from which the straw is produced. Do not report the tons of straw produced in the report form. Straw production is not needed.

Shares - If the operator rented land from others or worked land on shares for others, include the value of the landlord's share of any products sold or moved from this operation. Estimate market value, if necessary.

Partnership - If this is a partnership operation, include the total value of all products sold or moved from this operation for all partners.

Co-ops and pool-type arrangements - If a crop was sold through a co-op or other organization (generally a pool-type arrangement) which makes payments in several installments over a period of time, report the total value received in 2022. This value should relate to the gross market value of the crop before deduction of any production or marketing expenses, such as planting, harvesting, hauling, and processing. These expenses are to be reported in section 32.

Harvesting costs - Whenever crops were harvested by cooperatives or others and the operator received a price for their product which did not include the cost of harvesting, hauling, etc., report the gross value to include those costs. Also, report these costs in section 32 in the appropriate item.

Exclude sales from non-farm related activities, such as trading and speculation or livestock dealer activities. Exclude value of sales from land rented to others or worked on shares by others.

Corn - Report the acres of corn harvested for grain, seed, silage, or greenchop.

Report:

- Sweet corn for seed, code 461, in section 13, sweet corn. Report sweet corn for seed acres harvested in acres harvested for fresh market.
- Sweet corn harvested for fresh market or processing, code 461, in section 13.
- Popcorn, code 662, in section 11.
- Blue corn, code 067, in section 11, Corn for grain or seed.
- Purple corn, white corn, etc. code 067, Corn for grain or seed in section 11.

Wheat, oats, barley, and rye - Report acres of wheat, oats, barley, and rye harvested for grain or seed from this operation in 2022 in section 11. Report acres of wheat harvested for grain or seed by class (Winter, Durum, Other Spring), as requested on the report form. Winter wheat,

winter barley, and oat acres harvested and quantity harvested should be reported for the crop harvested in 2022 (not the acres planted in the fall of 2021). White wheat may be winter or spring wheat. Do not report white wheat in code 752. Mixed grains should be reported under code 0752, "Other field crop" (report the quantity harvested in pounds). Report small grains harvested for hay, haylage, baleage, silage, or greenchop in 2022 in section 9.

Do not report the acres or quantity produced of straw baled from small grain crops that were previously harvested for grain or seed. Report straw sales in the appropriate type of grain from which it was made. For example, if spring wheat straw was sold, include the sales using code 728.

Cotton - Report acres of cotton harvested as either Pima, code 644 or Upland, code 581. Report the quantity harvested in bales. If cotton was grown in a skip-row pattern, report only the acres of cotton harvested and not the land occupied by the skip rows.

Report total value of sales of cotton and cottonseed sold or moved from this operation during 2022. Include the value of any cotton or cottonseed given to landlord(s) as rent. Include payments received in 2022 from cooperatives or marketing organizations for crops produced on this operation regardless of the year in which the crops were harvested.

Dry edible beans, dry edible peas, and lentils - Report the information requested for acres harvested on this operation as follows:

Crop Code:

Chickpeas/Garbanzo	. 2816
Dry edible beans (excluding lima)	554
Lentils	635
Lima beans	557
Dry Southern/cowpeas	584
All other dry edible peas	659

Herbs Dried - Include Clary sage in item 620. Report Clary sage as pounds of sclareol (oil) extracted. The producer is paid for the sclareol (oil) that is extracted and not the weight of the dry matter harvested. This is similar to mint in which production is reported in pounds of oil.

Hops - In reporting the total acreage, include tenths of acres.

Peanuts - Report all types of peanuts for nuts harvested on this operation. Peanuts cut for hay should be reported in section 9 as "Other dry hay" or "All other haylage."

Potatoes and sweet potatoes - Report the acreage and the total quantity of potatoes and sweet potatoes harvested from this operation in section 13. Exclude home use.

Sorghum - Include:

- Sorghum or milo harvested for grain or seed, silage, or greenchop
- Sorghum or milo harvested by cutting the heads from stalks and used for feed un-threshed as sorghum for grain
- Acres from which sorghum or milo was harvested for grain, seed, or silage then grazed after harvest
- Sorghum for syrup, code 704

Soybeans - Report soybeans harvested for beans or seed. Report soybeans cut for dry hay in section 9 as "Other dry hay" and soybeans cut for greenchop, haylage, or silage as "All other haylage, grass silage, and greenchop."

Sugarbeets - Report separately the acreage of sugarbeets for sugar, code 719, and the acreage of sugarbeets for seed production, code 716.

Sugarcane for sugar or seed- Sum the acreage of sugarcane grown for seed and the sugarcane grown for sugar and report the acreage, code 2290. Estimate if necessary.

Tea - Report "mint for tea leaves" in code 767. Report other types of tea in code 752.

Tobacco - Report all types of tobacco harvested from this operation in 2022. In reporting the total acreage, include tenths of acres. If skip rows or sled rows were used, include as harvested only the acreage occupied by the harvested tobacco.

Report the total value of sales of tobacco sold or moved from this operation during 2022 regardless of the year the tobacco was grown. Include payments received in 2022 from cooperatives or marketing organizations for crops produced on this operation regardless of the year in which the crops were harvested.

Report tobacco transplants that were **grown and sold** from this operation in section 12, item 4, code 1004.

Wild Crops - Wild crops must be 'grown' on land that is owned or leased and is part of 'This Operation.' We collect data for wild blueberries, wild rice, wild hay, and native pecans. These crops are grown on the operation and have input costs. Do not collect data on any 'wild gathered' crop unless they are grown on the operation and their growth was actively managed by the operator and there were input costs in the crop's production.

If unsure about whether a crop or livestock item is 'wild gathered' versus 'grown' or 'raised':

- The commodity has to be grown/raised on land or water controlled by the producer.
- The respondent must actively manage the growth of the commodity.

 The producer must have input costs in growing/raising the commodity such as seed, fertilizer, or chemicals and it was not gathered on public lands or waters on which another individual may also gather the same or similar commodities.

Examples of a raised commodities: Wild hay harvested. Wild blueberries harvested from bushes that are on land owned or rented and part of the land in this operation.

Livestock examples: Salt water clams, geoducks, are raised in leased mudflats. There are input costs with raising the larvae to small clams that are 'planted' by the operator on leased mudflats inside PVC pipes to protect from predators. Oysters raised in cages on manmade platforms anchored in salt water bays.

Examples of commodities NOT counted: Wild medicinal roots, wild ginseng, pine straw, wild mushrooms, etc. gathered from public land or private land that is part of the operation that did not have input costs associated with raising them.

SECTION 12. NURSERY, GREENHOUSE, FLORICULTURE, SOD, MUSHROOMS, VEGETABLE SEEDS, AND PROPAGATIVE MATERIALS

Review the crop types listed at the bottom of the page before completing this section. Report all of the area for these crops grown for sale or future sale on this operation under glass or other protection, including tunnel production, or in the open, whether wholesale or retail. Include those sold on consignment. Exclude greenhouse vegetables grown for home consumption. Report food crops temporarily covered for early germination, frost protection, etc. in section 13. Report vegetable seeds grown without glass or protection in section 13.

Item 2 - Report the total area on which nursery, greenhouse, floriculture, mushrooms, vegetable seeds, and propagative materials were grown as square feet under glass or other protection. Report the area of these crops that were irrigated in 2022 as square feet and/or whole and tenth acres. Report the total area only once in item 2 regardless of how many crops were grown for sale from the same area. If more than one type of crop was grown for sale from the same area, report each crop separately in item 4.

Item 3 - Report the total area on which nursery, floriculture, sod, mushrooms, and propagative materials were grown in the open as acres to the nearest tenth acre. Report the area of these crops that were irrigated in 2022 as acres to the nearest tenth acre. Report the total area only once in item 3 regardless of how many crops were grown for sale from the same area. If more than one type of crop was grown for sale from the same area, report each crop separately in item 4. For sod, report the acres in production and the acres harvested. Acres planted to grass intended for sale as sod in subsequent years, but not harvested in 2022, should be included in the area in production in 2022.

Item 4 - Print the crop type name, corresponding crop code from the list below the table, the area grown for sale, and value of sales for this crop type. Do not duplicate the area grown for

sale for each crop type in the "Square Feet Under Glass or Other Protection" in item 2 and "Acres in the Open" in item 3.

Area under protection refers to plants grown under a structure (such as glass, fiberglass, plastic, or saran) for the **entire** growing season. Crops covered only temporarily to be further grown in the open should not be included for area under protection.

- If the same crop was grown for sale more than once, such as mushrooms, report the square footage only once. In the case where different crops were grown on the same benches or beds, report the area for each crop grown for sale.
- For crops grown in hot beds, benches, or cold frames, report only the square feet of the beds, benches, or frames and not the walkways or storage areas. An example might be where crops are grown in stacked trays 3 tiers high. In this case, calculate the square footage of one tier and multiply the footage by 3. (If a tier equals 160 square feet, multiplied times 3 levels equals a total 480 square feet).
- For sod, report area grown for sale only as "Acres in the Open."
- If more than one type of crop was grown for sale from the same area, report each crop separately in item 4.
- Report tobacco transplants that were grown and **sold** from this operation using code 1004. Exclude tobacco transplants that were grown and then transplanted on the same operation.
- Report vegetable transplants that were grown and sold from this operation for transplanting to fields on another operation using code 1006.
- Report vegetable transplants that were grown and sold from this operation for household gardens using code 0479.
- Report acres grown for sale of live Christmas trees (balled and burlapped, potted, etc.) grown on this operation using code 0488. Cut Christmas trees are reported in section 10, item 2.
- Blueberries raised and sold for transplanting are reported in Nursery stock, code 0488.
- Report the total value of sales (at point of first sale, wholesale/retail value) for those crops
 grown on and sold directly from this operation. Report only the wholesale value of crops
 grown on this operation and sold through a retail outlet which is not part of this operation
 or if the retail outlet is considered a separate business establishment. Estimate values, if
 necessary.
- Exclude crops bought for resale without additional growing, such as plugs and started plants or garden center items, such as pot liners, chemicals, and fertilizers.

SECTION 13. VEGETABLES, POTATOES, AND MELONS

Review the crops listed at the bottom of the page before completing this section. Report all of the area for vegetable, potato, and melon crops harvested on this operation. Include yams with sweet potatoes. Include vegetable seeds grown in the open in item 4. Exclude vegetables, potatoes, and melons grown for home consumption.

Report strawberries in section 14, code 0536. Report dry edible peas, dry edible beans, dry lima beans, lentils, and chickpeas in section 11. Vegetables grown under glass or other protection should be included in section 12.

Item 2 - Report the total harvested acres and irrigated harvested acres of vegetables, potatoes, and melons in whole and tenth acres. Report the area only once regardless how many crops were harvested from the same area. If more than one type of crop was harvested from the same area, report each crop separately in item 4. See example below.

Example: If 20 acres of squash were harvested from a field and the same field was replanted in squash and harvested again, report only 20 acres of land from which vegetables were harvested in item 2, but report 40 acres harvested in item 4, squash, code 0459. Report the 40 acres in the appropriate columns for fresh market or processing.

Item 3 - Report total value of sales of vegetables, potatoes, and melons sold or moved from this operation during 2022. Include the value of sales for fresh market or processing and sales to consumers, wholesalers, canners, freezers, dehydrators, or other processors or buyers. Report total value of sales of vegetables grown under glass or other protection in Section 12. Exclude the value of the commodities produced under a production contract.

Production Contracts - Report the acreage of all vegetables and melons grown under production contracts but exclude, from this section, item 3, the value of the commodities produced under a production contract. The dollar amounts received from the contractor for commodities produced under a production contract are reported in section 24.

Two or more pickings of the same crop - Report the acres harvested only once even when two or more pickings were made from the same field.

Institutions - Crops grown and harvested by an institution (school, prison, hospital, etc.) and consumed by the persons in the institution should be reported as crops harvested. Also, estimate the value of the crops consumed and include this value in the "Gross Value of Sales" in item 3.

Potatoes and sweet potatoes raised and sold for seed - Report the acreage of potatoes and sweet potatoes raised and sold for seed as acres harvested for fresh market.

Vegetable seeds grown in the open without protective cover – Report vegetable seeds grown in the open as harvested for fresh market using the vegetable crop code for which the seed will be grown.

Item 4 - Report the crop listed in the table at the bottom of the page. If a harvested crop's name is not listed in the table, write in the crop name, and other vegetable code 0475, the total acres harvested, the acres harvested for fresh market, and the acres harvested for processing. Report all acreage in whole and tenth acres.

Reminder: If there are multiple plantings, but not multiple pickings, of the same crop on the same acres, report the sum of the acres for each commodity grown. For example, an operation that planted 5 acres of lettuce and harvested, and then planted another 5 acres of lettuce on the same acres and harvested, should report 10 acres of lettuce.

SECTION 14. FRUITS, NUTS, AND BERRIES

Review the crops listed at the bottom of the page before completing this section. Report the acreage if there were bearing or non-bearing age fruit, tree nuts or berry plants which were maintained for current or future commercial production. Exclude acreage of trees and vines which were abandoned or used for home use.

Native pecan trees are the only native or "wild" tree nuts that are reported. Exclude acreage and sales of black walnuts.

Report total value of sales of fruit and tree nuts raised and sold or moved from this operation during 2022.

Item 2 - Report the total acres and irrigated acres of trees, berries, and vines for fruits and nuts in whole and tenth acres. In the total acreage, include bearing age acres and nonbearing age acres and bearing age acres not harvested due to unsatisfactory prices, labor shortages, etc. If native pecan tree density is less than 20 trees per acre, divide the number of pecan trees by 20 and enter that value as the number of total native pecan acres. Exclude abandoned acres of trees or vines that were not maintained for production and young trees and vines designated for future transplanting and replacement. Report these acres of young trees in Section 12, Code 0488, "Nursery stock."

In Section 14, item 2, report the total bearing and nonbearing acres that were irrigated at least once in 2022.

Item 3 - Review the crops listed at the bottom of the page before completing this section. Report all of the area for fruits, nuts and berries harvested on this operation. Write in the crop name, corresponding crop code from the list at the bottom of the page, total acres, bearing age acres, and nonbearing age acres. Report any other non-citrus fruits, other citrus fruits, or other nuts harvested in 2022 but not listed in this section or anywhere on the report form in this section. For crops not listed in the table, print the crop name in the first column and the corresponding "Other" crop code "0261", "0315", "0363", or "0539" in the second column. Report the total acres, bearing age acres, and nonbearing age acres.

Report all acreage in whole and tenths acres. The total acres of all trees and vines is equal to the acres of bearing age trees plus the acres of nonbearing age trees. Nonbearing trees that

were planted as replacements for trees that died in bearing blocks should have an estimate of the land that they occupied reported in the nonbearing acres column.

Operations that process fruit and vegetables for sale should report only the "farm" value of the product sold.

Example: A vineyard that processes its grapes into wine would report only the value of the grapes that were harvested in 2022 and used to produce the wine, not the value of the wine sold in 2022. The same would be true for fruits or berries that were processed into cider, jams, jellies, or wine.

SECTION 15. CATTLE AND CALVES

Report inventories of all beef and dairy cattle and calves on this operation on December 31, 2022 and number of cattle and calves sold or moved from this operation during 2022. Inventories should include cattle owned by you on land used rent free or on public, private, or industrial property under a grazing permit, per head, or AUM basis. Include cattle located on or fed on this operation for others on a custom or contract basis. Include cattle and calves on this operation that were owned by members of the family, i.e. 4-H and FFA project cattle and calves raised on this operation that were owned by a son or daughter. Include Beefalo.

Exclude any cattle owned that were being custom fed in feedlots operated by others on December 31, 2022. Do not report the sales of animals bought and then sold within 30 days.

Item 2a – Beef cows - Report the number of beef cows on this operation on December 31, 2022 that were kept for beef production. Report beef heifers that had calved by December 31, 2022. Report milk cows in item 2b. Beef heifers that had not calved by December 31, 2022 should be reported in item 2c. Steers, calves, and bulls should be reported in item 2c.

Item 2b – Milk cows - Report the number of cows of any breed kept for milk production on this operation on December 31, 2022. Include dry milk cows and dairy heifers that had calved by December 31, 2022. Milk heifers that had not calved by December 31, 2022 should be reported in item 2c.

Item 2c – Other cattle - Report the combined number of steers, calves, and bulls, as well as the number of heifers that had not calved by December 31, 2022. Include number of cattle and calves of all ages that were grazing or being fed for others on a custom or contract basis on December 31, 2022 on this operation.

Item 2d – Total cattle and calves - Report the total number of cattle and calves of all ages on this operation on December 31, 2022. Items 2a, 2b, and 2c should add to the number reported here.

Item 3a – Calves sold - Report the number of calves weighing less than 500 pounds that were sold or moved from this operation during 2022.

Do not include animals that were moved from this operation:

- Moved to another operation to graze on winter wheat for a month or two and then returned to this operation
- Moved for short term grazing on corn stubble and then returned to this operation
- Moved for the summer to public or private grazing land and then returned to this operation
- Moved for the summer to private or grazing association land and then returned to this operation

Item 3b – Cattle sold - Report all the cattle and calves weighing 500 pounds or more that were sold or moved from this operation during 2022.

Do not include animals that were moved from this operation

- Moved to another operation to graze on winter wheat for a month or two and then returned to this operation
- Moved for short term grazing on corn stubble and then returned to this operation
- Moved for the summer to public or private grazing land and then returned to this operation
- Moved for the summer to private or grazing association land and then returned to this operation

Item 4 – Sales of cattle and calves - Report the total value of cattle (beef and dairy cattle for breeding stock, fed cattle, beef and dairy cull animals, stockers and feeders, beefalo, veal calves, etc.) sold or moved from this operation in 2022 without deducting production or marketing expenses (cost of feed, livestock purchased, hauling and selling, check off fees, etc.). Exclude dollar amount received from cattle and calves produced under production contracts.

Include those animals moved from this operation to a feedlot for further feeding. The reported value of these animals should be the value at the time they were moved from the operation.

Item 5 – Sales of milk from cows - Report the total value of sales of milk from cows sold or moved from this operation in 2022 without deducting production or marketing expenses (cost of feed, livestock purchased, hauling and selling, etc.). Exclude the value of sales from other dairy products.

CATTLE IN FEEDLOTS - Include steers and heifers for slaughter market that were fed a ration of grain or other concentrates that are expected to produce a carcass that will grade select or better. Exclude cattle that were pastured only, being backgrounded, fed for home use, or veal. Exclude cows and bulls. Include steer calves and heifer calves.

Item 6a - Of the cattle on hand reported in item 2c, report the total steers and heifers that were on feed December 31, 2022, and were or will be shipped directly from your feedlot to slaughter market. Exclude veal calves that were fattened primarily on milk, dairy cows that

were fed only the usual dairy ration before being sold, and any cattle and calves being preconditioned, backgrounded, or fed a warm-up ration.

Item 6b - Of the cattle sold during 2022 **reported in item 3b**, report the steers and heifers sold weighing 500 pounds or more that were shipped directly from your feedlot to slaughter market. Exclude any of your cattle being custom fed in feedlots operated by others. Exclude cattle sold as feeders. Exclude dairy cows fed only the usual dairy cow ration before being sold. Exclude cows and bulls.

SECTION 16. HOGS AND PIGS

Report all hogs and pigs on this operation on December 31, 2022. Include hogs grown for others on a contract basis. Include hogs on this operation that were owned by members of the family, such as 4-H and FFA project hogs raised on this operation that were owned by a son or daughter. Contractors should only report hogs on land they operate. If the addressee is a contractor or integrator and in 2022 grew no hogs other than those raised for him/her by contractees, do not report any hogs in inventory or any hogs sold. If the addressee was a contractor or integrator and grew hogs himself/herself and had hogs grown for him/her by others, report only the hogs which he/she raised on this operation. Exclude hogs grown for the addressee by someone else on another operation under contract.

Item 2 – Total hogs and pigs - Report the total number of hogs and pigs of all ages on this operation on December 31, 2022. Include those being fed or kept for others under a production contract or an agreement.

Item 3 – Hogs and pigs sold - Report the total number of hogs and pigs sold or moved off the operation, including feeder pigs, in 2022.

Item 4 – Gross value of sales - Report the total value of swine sold or moved from this operation in 2022 without deducting production or marketing expenses including check-off fees (cost of feed, swine purchased, hauling and selling, etc.). Exclude dollars received for hogs and pigs produced under production contracts.

Item 5 – Type of operation - Mark the one type which best describes this operation.

- A farrow-to-wean operation sells or moves pigs from the operation soon after they are weaned from the sow, generally at 2 to 5 weeks of age.
- A farrow-to-feeder operation sells or moves pigs from the operation after the pigs are weaned and fed to a feeder pig weight, approximately 35 to 55 pounds.
- A farrow to finish operation farrows and sells or moves pigs from the operation after they
 have reached market weight and are sold or moved directly to slaughter.
- A nursery operation buys pigs for or moves pigs to the operation after they have been weaned and will feed them for a short period of time, after which they are sold or moved from the operation to a finishing operation.

- A finish only operation buys pigs for or moves pigs to the operation at weaning weight or feeder pig weight and feeds them until they have reached market weight and are sold or moved directly to slaughter.
- An "other" hog operation could include operations where a majority of production focuses on raising and selling breeding stock. Print the type of hog operation in the response area.

Item 6 – Describe the producer - Mark the one type that best describes this operation.

SECTION 17. HORSES, PONIES, MULES, BURROS, AND DONKEYS

Equine include horses, ponies, mules, burros, and donkeys. Include equine of all ages and breeds for all uses. Exclude wild horses and zebras.

Item 2 – Horses and ponies owned - Report the number of horses and ponies on this operation which were OWNED by this operation on December 31, 2022. Include as owned all horses and ponies on this operation even if only partially owned by this operation. Report the number of owned horses and ponies **sold** in 2022 and the value of sales.

Item 3 – Horses and ponies not owned - Report the number of horses and ponies on this operation which were NOT owned by this operation on December 31, 2022. Report the horse and pony inventory that were not owned by this operation but boarded by this operation for others. An example is if this operation is a boarding stable or racetrack. Report the number of horses and ponies not owned which were **sold** in 2022 and the value of sales.

Item 4 – Mules, burros, and donkeys - Report the inventory of all mules, burros, and donkeys on the operation on December 31, 2022 regardless of ownership. Report the total number of mules, burros, and donkeys sold during 2022 and the value of sales.

Item 5 – Horse breeding or stud fees, semen and other equine products - Report the value of equine breeding service fees or stud fees including sales of semen or other equine products sold in 2022. Include these items for services from horses, ponies, burros and donkeys.

SECTION 18. SHEEP AND GOATS

Include:

- Sheep and goats on public or industrial property under a grazing permit
- Sheep and goats on land used rent free by this operation
- Sheep and goats grown or fed on this operation for others on a custom or contract basis

Exclude:

Sheep and goats grown or fed by someone else on a custom or contract basis

Item 2 – Sheep and lambs - Report the total number of sheep and lambs on this operation or custom fed, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022. Report the number of sheep and lambs sold or moved from the operation during 2022 and the value of sales. For animals moved off the operation but not sold, the reported value of these animals should be the value at the time they were moved from the operation.

Item 2a – Hair sheep or wool-hair crosses – Of the sheep reported in item 2, report the number that were hair sheep or wool-hair crosses in inventory on December 31st, 2022.

Item 3a – Angora goats and kids - Report the total number of Angora goats and kids on this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022. Report the number of Angora goats and kids sold or moved from the operation during 2022 and the value of sales. Include only Angora goats and kids raised for the production of mohair.

Item 3b – Milk goats and kids - Report the total number of milk goats and kids on this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022. Report the number of milk goats and kids sold or moved from the operation during 2022 and the value of sales. Include only milk goats and kids raised for the production of milk.

Item 3c – Meat goats, other goats and kids - Report the total number of meat goats and all other goats and kids on this operation not reported in item 3a or item 3b, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022. Include Angora goat breeds and milk goat breeds if they are being raised only for meat production.

Item 4a – Wool shorn - Report the total pounds of wool shorn (whether sold or not) and total pounds of wool sold or moved from the operation in 2022. Include pounds shorn whether or not the sheep are currently on the operation. Include the weight of tags shorn in pounds of wool shorn.

Item 4b – Mohair clipped - Report the total pounds of mohair clipped (whether sold or not) and total pounds of mohair sold or moved from the operation in 2022. Include pounds clipped whether or not the goats are currently on the operation.

Item 4c – Milk from sheep and goats - Report the value of sheep and goat milk sold or moved from the operation in 2022 without deducting production or marketing expenses (cost of feed, livestock purchased, hauling and selling, etc.). Exclude the value of sales of cheese and other processed milk products.

SECTION 19. AQUACULTURE

Aquaculture is defined as the farming of fish, crustaceans, mollusks, and other aquaculture products. The aquaculture production reported in the census requires some form of intervention in the rearing process and requires inputs such as seeding, stocking, feeding, protection from predators, etc. It also requires ownership of the stock being cultivated and harvesting that is conducted in a controlled environment by this operation. Fish, shellfish, and other aquaculture products, where no inputs or intervention was provided, that are caught or harvested from non-controlled waters or beds (public lakes, rivers, bays, or streams) are considered wild caught and **should not** be included as aquaculture production. Aquatic plants should be reported in section 12, Nursery, Greenhouse, Floriculture, Sod, Mushrooms, Vegetable Seeds, and Propagative Materials. Algae is included here in section 19, Aquaculture.

Examples of controlled environments include:

- Ocean-raised fish in pens, cages, etc.
- Leased, owned, controlled, or managed beds including exclusive use of public water area for shellfish
- State, federal, reservation, and privately owned fish hatcheries
- Tanks for the shedding of soft-shelled crabs

The area of the controlled environment of this operation should be included in section 1, item 1 or 2 and item 4. The area of land and water area associated with these production areas should be included in section 2, item 4 and item 5.

Review the aquaculture types listed at the bottom of the page in the report form before completing this section. Print the name of the aquaculture type and the corresponding code from the list at the bottom of the page. Report pounds **OR** number sold of all species sizes and/or eggs of one species type under the corresponding aquaculture type and code. Do not report pounds **AND** number of the same species. For example, if you raised trout and sold some as food size and some as fingerlings report all food size and fingerlings under Trout, code 0863, and report all the pounds **OR** number sold or moved from this operation in 2022.

Report the pounds or number sold or moved from this operation whether wholesale, retail, or on a contract basis or consignment. Include the aquaculture raised by federal, state, reservation, and privately owned hatcheries and sold or moved for stocking public waters or distributed for conservation purposes. Estimate the market value for the value of sales if

distributed and not sold. Report the gross value of sales for each aquaculture type sold or moved from this operation. Exclude aquaculture grown for home consumption.

All other aquaculture and aquaculture products such as frogs, turtles, caviar, eels, alligators, sea urchins, snails, tadpoles, algae, live rock, etc., should be reported as code 0869, (other aquaculture products).

SECTION 20. POULTRY

Report inventories of all poultry including layers and all meat-type birds on this operation regardless of ownership on December 31, 2022. Poultry also includes exotic or game birds such as emus, ostriches, ducks, pheasants, quail, etc. Report the number sold or moved from this operation during 2022. Include poultry raised for others on a contract basis when reporting the inventory and number sold or moved from this operation.

If the number sold or moved from the operation is not known, an estimate should be given. Roasters, capons, and Cornish not used for breeding should be reported in item 3a with broilers, fryers, and other meat-type chickens.

Poultry should be reported by the person who actually raised the birds even though they may not be the person who owns the poultry.

Exclude poultry owned by you but raised by someone else on another operation under contract.

Item 2 – Value of sales - Report the gross value of sales of all poultry (broilers, layers, eggs, pullets, turkeys, ducks, geese, hatchlings, pheasants, poultry products, etc.) sold from this operation in 2022 without deducting production or marketing expenses (cost of feed, livestock purchased, hauling and selling, etc.). Do not report the value of poultry produced under production contracts in item 2. Dollars received from production contracts are recorded in section 24.

Item 3a – Broilers, fryers, and other chickens raised for meat production, including capons and roasters - Report the number of broilers, fryers, capons, roasters, and other meat-type chickens on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those raised under contract. In column 2, report the number sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract. Include only birds raised for meat production. Exclude meat-type hatching layers which should be reported in item 3c.

Item 3b – Table egg layers - Table egg layers are female chickens that can produce a marketable egg suitable for table use or infertile eggs for human consumption. Include layers producing eggs for cartons, breakers, or further processing.

Female chickens that are too young to produce a marketable egg are pullets (report pullets in 3e). Report the number of table egg layers on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those under contract. Include the number of table egg layers in molt. In the second column,

report the table egg layers sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those under contract. Include layers used to produce eggs for home consumption, and "yard chickens." Exclude layers from exotic breeds and game birds.

Item 3c – Hatching layers for meat types - Hatching layers for meat types are layers of meat-type strains that produce fertile eggs that could supply a hatchery to produce meat type chicks. Report the number of hatching supply layers for broilers, roasters, and other meat types on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those under contract. In the second column, report any of the hatching supply layers for meat types sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those under contract. Exclude broilers or other chickens raised for meat production, which should be reported in item 3a.

Item 3d – Hatching layers for table eggs - Hatching layers for table eggs are layers that produce fertile eggs which could supply a hatchery to produce table-egg chicks. Report the number of hatching supply layers for table-egg types on this operation on December 31, 2022 including those under contract. In the second column, report any of the hatching supply layers for table eggs sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those under contract. Exclude layers for table eggs or "market" eggs, which should be reported in item 3b.

Item 3e – Pullets for laying flock replacement - Report the number of chicken pullets for laying flock replacement on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those under contract. In column 2, report the total number sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those under contract. Include the pullets intended for laying flocks of table-egg layers, or hatching supply flocks for meat-type, or hatching supply flocks for table-egg types. Pullets are female chickens which are too young to produce a marketable egg. Female chickens which are mature enough to produce a marketable egg are layers.

Item 4a – Turkeys for meat production - Report the number of turkeys raised for immediate slaughter on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those raised under contract. In column 2, report the number of turkeys for meat production sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract. Exclude turkey hens and toms kept for breeding, which should be reported in item 4b.

Item 4b – Turkey hens and toms kept for breeding - Report the number of turkey hens and toms kept for breeding on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those under contract. In column 2, report the number of turkey hens and toms kept for breeding sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those under contract.

Item 4c – Turkey brooders for further growout on another farm - Report the number of turkey brooders on this operation on December 31, 2022 which were moved or will be moved to another farm for further growout. In column 2, report the number of turkey brooders that have been moved to another farm for further growout during 2022. Turkeys that will be sold or moved from this operation directly to slaughter should be reported in item 4a or item 4b, not in item 4c.

Item 5 – All other poultry - Report the inventory of all other poultry on this operation on December 31, 2022, not accounted for in items 3 and 4. Enter the name of other poultry species in the first column provided. Enter the corresponding code in the second column. Report the inventory and number sold or moved from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract. Birds such as pheasants or chukars used for conservation, restoration, or hunting, such as on a game farm, should be reported only by the operation which raised the birds.

Only the market value of the birds raised is included in the Gross Value of Sales, item 2, and the balance of hunting fees received that is attributed for guide services, lodging, or transportation is reported in section 34, item 4.

Exclude birds such as canaries in section 20 as they are reported in section 22, item 2, "Other Livestock."

Item 6a – Poultry hatched - Report all types of poultry hatched on this operation in 2022. The number hatched includes all poultry hatched on your operation and placed, sold, or destroyed. Do not include poultry hatched on this operation as sold in items 3 through 5, unless raised past the newly hatched stage of development. For example, chicks hatched and moved from this operation the same day should be reported only in item 6, not in item 3.

Item 6b – Type of poultry hatched on this operations hatcheries - For the poultry hatched in item 6a, check the type of the poultry hatched. Check all that apply.

SECTION 21. COLONIES OF HONEY BEES

Item 2 - Report the inventory of honey bee colonies of **honey bees owned, regardless of location** on

December 31, 2022 in column 1. Report the largest number of honey bee colonies owned for all purposes in 2022 in column 2, including colonies from which no honey was harvested. Exclude package bees; they are not considered as separate colonies. Package bees are reported in section 22, item 2. All bees which are not honey bee colonies are reported in section 22. Report the largest number of honey producing colonies owned in 2022 in section 21, column 3.

Report the total pounds of honey collected in 2022, whether or not it was sold. Report the sales of honey in 2022, regardless of which year the honey was produced. Report sales of beeswax, pollen, royal jelly, etc. in section 23, item 2. Report sales of colonies in section 22, item 2.

Fees received from pollination services should be reported in section 34, item 7 as other income.

SECTION 22. OTHER LIVESTOCK

Item 2 - Report all other livestock, animal specialties, and their products not reported in previous sections. Report the inventory of alpacas, llamas, bison, deer in captivity, elk in

captivity, live mink, live rabbits, lab animals, worms, etc., raised in captivity that were on this operation on December 31, 2022. Report the total number sold from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract. Exclude animals and products owned by the addressee but raised on another operation under contract.

- Alpacas Report the inventory of alpacas on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those raised under contract. Report the total number sold from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract, and the value of sales.
- Llamas Report the inventory of llamas on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those raised under contract. Report the total number sold from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract, and the value of sales.
- **Bison** Report the inventory of bison raised in captivity on this operation on December 31, 2022, including those raised under contract. Report the total number sold from this operation during 2022, including those raised under contract, and the value of sales.
- Deer in captivity Report the inventory and number sold in 2022 of deer raised in captivity and include their value of sales. If the deer were raised in captivity on an operation which is a game farm and a hunting fee was received for the deer, allocate the fee between the Value of Sales and Income from Farm-Related Sources in section 34, item 4. Only the market value of the deer is included in the Value of Sales column and the balance of the hunting fee received that is attributed for guide services, lodging, or transportation is reported in section 34, item 4.

Deer "raised in captivity' are deer confined to the operation with fencing that require inputs such as feed, veterinary services, etc. The deer may have been purchased from other producers and transported and cared for within the confines of this operation. Exclude wild deer on the operation.

• Elk in captivity - Report the inventory and number sold in 2022 of elk raised in captivity and include their value of sales. If the elk were on a game farm and a hunting fee was received for the elk, split the fee between the Value of Sales and Income from Farm-Related Sources in section 34, item 4. Only the market value of the elk is included in the Value of Sales column and the balance of the hunting fee received that is attributed for guide services, lodging, or transportation is reported in section 34, item 4.

Elk "raised in captivity" are elk confined to the operation with fencing that require inputs such as feed, veterinary services, etc. The elk may have been purchased from other producers and transported and cared for within the confines of this operation. Exclude wild elk on the operation.

• **Live mink** - Report the inventory and number sold in 2022 of live mink raised on this operation and their value of sales. Mink pelts should be reported only in section 23 item 2.

- **Live rabbits** Report the inventory and number sold in 2022 of live rabbits raised on this operation and their value of sales. Rabbit pelts should be reported only in section 23 item 2.
- Package bees Report the inventory and number sold in 2022. Package bees are
 honey bees sold by the pound, with or without the queen. Inventory should be
 recorded as number of packages, not pounds sold. Nucleus colonies, "nucs", whole
 colonies sold, and individually sold queens should be counted under "Other Livestock"
 with code 4898.
- Bees, other than package bees Report the inventory and number sold in 2022 of all bees other than honey bees. Inventory and sales should be recorded as the number of kits, hives, boxes or sets of bees sold. Solitary bees should not be counted individually, rather as the whole unit they are sold in. For example, bumble bees should be counted by the hive, not by the individual bee. Include leaf cutter bees. Wild caught mason, carpenter, or other bees should be excluded.
- Other livestock Report the inventory of any other livestock and animals raised in captivity for sale on this operation on December 31, 2022 and not previously reported on this questionnaire. Print the name of the livestock, the inventory on this operation on December 31, 2022, the number sold from this operation during 2022, and the value of sales. Include queen bees and nucs. Include honey bee colony sales.

SECTION 23. LIVESTOCK PRODUCTS

Item 2 - Report the production of all livestock products and value of sales including semen, embryos, manure sold, beeswax, bee pollen, feathers, worm castings, or animal products produced and sold from this operation during 2022. Exclude value added products such as cheese, candles and lotions. Print the type of product and indicate the unit (tonnage, pounds, etc. used in reporting the product

SECTION 24. PRODUCTION CONTRACTS AND CUSTOM FEEDING

Report the quantity delivered and the total dollar amount received for ONLY those commodities raised under a production contract or custom fed livestock.

Read the screening question, item 1, carefully to determine whether items 2 through 4 should be completed.

A production contract is an agreement between a grower and contractor (integrator) setting terms, conditions, and fees to be paid by the contractor to this operation for the production of crops, livestock, or poultry.

The grower will raise an agricultural commodity and the contractor will provide certain inputs such as feed, fertilizer, etc. The grower receives a payment or fee from the contractor, generally after delivery, which is less than the full market price of the commodity. The

contractor retains ownership and takes possession of the raised commodity at the end of the growing period.

Exclude marketing contracts, futures contracts, cash or basis forward contracts, or other contracts based strictly on price.

Report the amount of the specified commodity that this operation raised under production contract(s) and moved from this operation in 2022 in item 2. If there were contracts with more than one contractor or integrator for a single commodity, combine the production of all contracts and report the total units produced for that commodity in the proper category in items 2a through 2l. If there were multiple contracts to produce different commodities, report the amount of each commodity produced under each contract(s) in the proper categories of items 2a through 2l. Report in the second column the total amount the contractor(s) paid this operation for producing the commodity(ies).

Veal calves and stockers/feeders should be reported in item 2i, "Other cattle, sheep, livestock, or poultry" and not in item 2f, "Custom fed cattle."

Item 2 - Report the production contract commodities raised and moved from this operation in 2022. Report in the units of measure requested. For items 2i, 2j, 2k, and 2l, print the name of the commodity raised in the area provided, report the quantity moved, and print the unit of measure for the quantity moved in the Unit column (except item 2j). Also, include the quantity moved in their appropriate section(s) of the report form but only report the fee received for producing the commodity in this section. For example, if 1,000 hogs were raised and moved under a production contract, include the quantity moved in Section 16, item 3. But the fee received is **not** included in Section 16, item 4, Value of Sales.

Report the total dollar amount that this operation received in 2022 for producing the commodity(ies) listed in items 2a through 2l. This is NOT the market value of the commodities moved, but is the payment or fee the operator received for the commodities delivered.

Item 3 - Mark all the inputs that were partially or completely paid or provided by the contractor. The items provided by the contractor should be identified in the production contract.

Item 4 - Print the name of the contractor in the area provided. If more than one contractor is involved, write the information in the margin of this page or on separate sheet of paper. If a separate sheet is used, include the Survey Code number from above the bar code in the address area on the cover page.

SECTION 25. ORGANIC AGRICULTURE

Organic production is commodity production that is managed in accordance with the Organic Foods Production Act (OFPA) of 1990. The USDA National Organic Program (NOP) develops, implements, and administers national production, handling, and labeling standards for organic production.

Operations engaged in the production of organic food must produce commodities without the use of synthetic fertilizers, herbicides, pesticides, genetic engineering (biotechnology) growth hormones, or irradiation. These practices are usually required to be followed for a period of three years before the operation can be certified as an organic operation.

Operations or portions of operations that produce or handle agricultural products that are intended to be sold, labeled, or represented as "100 percent organic," "USDA organic," or "made with organic ingredients" or food group(s) must be certified by an accredited certifying agent. Producers and handling (processing) operations that sell less than \$5,000 a year in organic agricultural products do not have to be certified. Although exempt from certification, these producers and handlers must abide by the national standards for organic products and may label their products as "organic."

Item 2 - Check all that apply to describe the operation as it relates to organic agricultural production.

A USDA NOP certified operation has followed the organic production practices outlined above for a period of at least three years and has been certified by a state or private organic certification agency. Write the name of the certifying agency or organization in the space provided.

A USDA NOP exempt operation follows the organic production practices outlined above for a period of at least three years, but sells less than \$5,000 in organic commodity sales per year.

Transitioning acres are land that is transitioning from conventional production to USDA's NOP production practices outlined above. The acres have not met the three year time requirement for organic production.

There are operations which follow organic production practices but do not consider themselves USDA NOP certified or exempt. Operations such as "natural growers" or "pledge producers" may consider themselves in this classification.

Item 3 - Report the value of USDA NOP certified or exempt organically produced commodities sold from this operation in 2022. Producers that also grow and process the organic crops and sell the processed products should report only the "farm" value of the crop used to make the processed product. Do not include commodities sold from transitioning acres or commodities which are not USDA NOP certified.

SECTION 26. PRACTICES

Mark the appropriate "Yes" or "No" response for the practices on this operation during 2022.

Item 1 - If this operation had access to the internet from the farm or producer's residence, check which service(s) were used.

- Check cellular data plan for a smartphone or other mobile device only if the internet can be accessed through the device.
- Check Broadband (high speed) internet for internet access available through a service installed such as cable, fiber optic, or DSL.
- Wifi connections are wireless connections to a router and are not a source of internet
 access. A router can receive internet access via Broadband (DSL/Cable/Fiber), Satellite,
 Cellular Towers, or through other methods such as "towers". Access through Wifi should
 be reported under the service which provides the internet to the router.
- "Other" internet types examples include but are not limited to: "line of site", "point to point", and "microwave".

Item 2a - The Bureau of Reclamation is an agency under the U.S. Department of the Interior that oversees water resource management, specifically as it applies to the oversight and/or operation of numerous water diversion, delivery, and storage projects and facilities.

Item 2b - Rotational grazing is the practice of subdividing pasture into smaller sections and grazing different sections at different times.

Item 2c - Alley cropping is defined as planting crops in strips in the alleys formed between rows of trees or shrubs; silvopasturing is defined as grazing livestock on forage crops or pastures within an actively managed tree or shrub crop area. Forest farming is the intentional management of woodlands to grow non-tree crops such as mushrooms, berries, and root crops under trees. Windbreaks, also known as shelterbelts or hedgerows, are rows of trees and shrubs designed to slow wind creating a more favorable environment for soils, crops, livestock, and wildlife or used for visual screening, odor control, and shade. Riparian forest is a area adjacent to a body of water that contains trees and shrubs that are used for erosion control, bank stabilization, and nutrient runoff.

Item 2d - Biomass is a renewable energy source and such as grasses, wood products, and crop residue for the purpose of making ethanol. Crop residues from crops such as corn, hemp, sorghum and sugarcane, etc. can be used for renewable energy. Exclude grains, oilseeds, and firewood.

Item 2e - On-farm packing facilities include equipment used to package bags, crates, hampers, baskets, cartons, etc. for the handling, transportation, or marketing of vegetables, potatoes, fruits, nuts, berries or other crops.

Item 2f - Veal calves are primarily male calves of dairy breeds. They are usually fed milk and milk by-products such as whey. Veal calves are slaughtered when only a few days old or up to around 30 weeks old.

Item 2g - Include any barn, used or not, on your operation that was built prior to 1960.

Item 3 - This applies to value added products that originated from crop or livestock commodities produced on the operation. Through further manufacture or processing, these items are transformed into products worth more than the originally produced commodity. Check "Yes" if these items were produced and SOLD in 2022.

Item 3a - Report the gross value of the sales of processed or value added products received in 2022.

Item 3b - Enter which processed or value added products were sold from this operation in 2022.

SECTION 27. FOOD MARKETING PRACTICES

Item 1 - Complete this section if this operation produced and sold any crops, livestock, poultry, or agricultural products for humans to eat or drink and sold these directly to the markets in the categories listed in 1a-1d. Include processed food products (also known as value-added food products) produced by this operation. Exclude non-edible products such as hay, livestock fed or raised, cut flowers not intended for consumption, Christmas trees, nursery products; commodities produced under production contracts; and products purchased and resold.

Report gross value of sales in Items 1a-1d and in Item 2 specify the products sold.

Item 1a - Consumers – Individuals who purchased your products from farmers markets, onfarm stores or farm stands, roadside stands or stores, CSA (Community Supported Agriculture), online marketplaces, etc.

Item 1b - Retail markets – Supermarkets, supercenters, restaurants, caterers, independently owned grocery stores, food cooperatives, etc.

Item 1c - Institutions – K-12 schools, colleges or universities, hospitals, workplace cafeterias, prisons, foodbanks, etc.

Item 1d - **Intermediate markets** – Businesses or organizations in the middle of the supply chain marketing locally and or regionally branded products, such as distributors, food hubs, brokers, auction houses, wholesale and terminal markets, food processors, etc.

Item 2 – Specify products sold as reported in Items 1a-1d by entering the these in this box.

SECTION 28. FERTILIZERS, CHEMICALS, AND SOIL CONDITIONERS APPLIED

Report the number of acres that were treated with fertilizers, manure, herbicides, insecticides, fungicides, nematicides, other pesticides, growth regulators, or other chemicals used on this operation during 2022 (rock phosphate, lime, and gypsum are included as fertilizers). Also report acres treated with chemicals to control growth, thin fruit, ripen, or defoliate. For all acres treated with chemicals, it will be necessary to report all acres treated regardless of who provided the materials, i.e., farm or ranch operator, landlord, custom sprayers, cooperatives, or contractors. If more than one application of fertilizer or chemicals was applied, report the acreage only once. Report in whole acres. Exclude the acreage reported in section 2, item 4, "All other land," to which fertilizer and chemicals were applied. Examples include farmsteads, livestock facilities, ditches, fence rows, road banks, etc., to which fertilizer or chemicals were applied.

ACRES TO WHICH FERTILIZER OR SOIL CONDITIONERS WERE APPLIED ON THIS OPERATION

Item 2a – Acres of cropland to which commercial fertilizer or soil conditions were applied in 2022 - Report the acres of all cropland on this operation to which commercial fertilizer or soil conditioners were applied in 2022. Cropland used solely for pasture should be excluded.

Item 2b – Acres of pastureland to which commercial fertilizer or soil conditions were applied in 2022 - Report the total number of acres on this operation of pastureland and rangeland, including cropland pastured and woodland pasture, to which commercial fertilizer or soil conditions were applied in 2022.

Item 3 – Acres of cropland and pastureland on this operation to which animal manure was applied in 2022 - Report the acres to which animal manure was applied in 2022. Animal manure includes beef, dairy, swine, horse, poultry, and exotic animals raised in captivity. Poultry manure includes all egg and meat birds, turkey, and other fowl raised in captivity. Manure includes solid or liquid form. Exclude municipal sludge.

Item 4 – Acres of cropland and pastureland on this operation to which organic fertilizer was applied in 2022 - Report the acres on the operation to which organic fertilizer was applied in 2022. Organic fertilizers include non-mineral material such as peat, chicken litter, compost, green manure, etc. Organic fertilizers include non-mineral material such as manure, peat, chicken litter, compost, green manure, etc.

ACRES TO WHICH CHEMICALS WERE APPLIED ON THIS OPERATION

Report the acres treated with chemical sprays, dusts, granules, and other materials. The same acres can be reported in more than one item listed. If two or more applications of the same chemical were applied to the same acres, report the acres only once. If chemicals were applied to more than one crop raised on the same land, count the acres only once. Report all land treated, even if the crop was later abandoned.

Item 5a - Report the acres treated with chemicals to control insects on crops including hay and pastureland. Exclude acres treated only with parasitic insects or acres to which mechanical methods only were used to control insects.

Item 5b - Report the acres treated with chemicals to control weeds, grasses, or brush. Include acres treated with both pre-emergence and post-emergence applications. Exclude area in ditches, fence rows, road banks, etc., that were treated.

Item 5c - Report the acres treated to control nematodes.

Item 5d - Report acres treated to control diseases (blight, smut, rusts, etc.) in crops and orchards.

Item 6 - Report the acres of crops and orchards treated to control growth, thin fruit, ripen, or defoliate

SECTION 29. RENEWABLE ENERGY

Item 1 - Check the renewable energy producing systems that were on this operation in 2022, regardless of ownership. Include all systems that generate energy, including heat. Include the value of energy sold from this operation in section 34, "Income From Farm-Related Sources," item 7.

Solar panels - A flat panel designed to capture the sun's energy. Include photovoltaic systems which convert light from the sun into electricity and also thermal systems that passively generate electricity. Report if there are solar panels on this operation owned by you or others used to produce electricity. Exclude low wattage solar panels that supply power for just one item, e.g. solar livestock fence or a solar security light.

Wind turbines - A device which converts wind power into electricity. Include wind generators, wind power units, wind energy converters and aero generators. Exclude windmills which do not produce electricity.

Methane digesters - A device which captures biogas resulting from the decomposition of manure, processing by-products, and other materials. Harvested biogas is used as a substitute for natural gas to power engines which generate electricity. It is fed into the natural gas pipeline or flared. Include methane digesters only if in production and used in 2022.

Geothermal/Geoexchange system - A system which captures heat stored in the earth.

Small hydro system - A water driven system which produces electricity by the gravitational force of falling or flowing water. Exclude water driven systems that only provide mechanical power, such as turning a grinding stone for a flour mill.

Other - Any other on-farm device or system not listed above. Exclude gasoline or diesel generators for heating, wood-burning stoves, and pellet-burning stoves.

Item 2 - Check "Yes" if the operation allowed the installation of one or more wind generators and an access road to the equipment in exchange for a payment to the landowner. The landowner does not typically use any energy produced by these generators.

SECTION 30. MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

For the items listed in this section, report the total number usually kept on this operation on December 31, 2022 in the first column and of these, report the number that were manufactured in the last 5 years (from 2018 through 2022) in the second column. Include the number of leased machines used for farm activities and on this operation on December 31, 2022. Mark the "none" box when appropriate. Do not include obsolete or abandoned equipment.

Item 1a – Trucks, including pickups - Report the number of trucks, including pickups, used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Item 1b – Tractors less than 40 horsepower (PTO) - Report the number of tractors with less than 40 horsepower (PTO) used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022. Exclude garden tractors.

Item 1c – Tractors with 40 to 99 horsepower (PTO) - Report the number of tractors with 40 to 99 horsepower (PTO) used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Item 1d – Tractors with 100 horsepower (PTO) or more - Report the number of tractors with 100 horsepower (PTO) or more used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Item 1e – Grain and bean combines, self-propelled - Report the number of self-propelled grain and bean combines (used for harvesting and threshing operations) used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022. Include all grain combines equipped with picking head attachments for corn or grain harvest. Report self-propelled silage and forage harvesters in item 1g. Exclude all pull-type grain and bean combines.

Item 1f – Cotton pickers and strippers, self-propelled - Report the number self-propelled cotton pickers and strippers used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Item 1g – Forage harvesters, self-propelled - Report the number of self-propelled forage harvesters used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Item 1h – Hay balers - Report the number of hay balers used in 2021 or 2022 that were on this operation on December 31, 2022. Include pull type and self-propelled hay balers.

SECTION 31. FARM LABOR

Item 1 - Report the number of paid, directly hired farm or ranch workers, including paid family members, who worked on this operation in 2022. Hired labor includes bookkeepers, office workers doing farm business, maintenance workers, field hands, machine operators, etc.

Item 1a - Report the number of hired farm or ranch workers, including paid family members and office workers, who worked on this operation **less than 150 days in 2022**. Exclude contract labor.

Item 1b - Report the number of hired farm or ranch workers, including paid family members and office workers, who worked on this operation **150 days or more in 2022.** Exclude contract labor.

Item 2 – Migrant workers - Report the number of migrant workers who worked on the operation for any length of time during 2022. Include both hired and contract labor (workers paid indirectly through a contractor). The definition of a migrant worker is a farm worker whose employment requires international or domestic travel that prevents the worker from returning to his or her permanent place of residence the same day.

Item 3 – Unpaid workers - Report the number of workers who worked without a wage or salary on the operation in 2022. Include unpaid non-operator partners or family members who are not operators. Exclude workers reported as producers in Section 8. Record the number of unpaid workers regardless of age or length of time employed.

SECTION 32. PRODUCTION EXPENSES

Report the production expenses paid for this operation in 2022. Include expenses paid by your landlord(s) and expenses connected with performing customwork for others. Tenant farmers should report expenses paid by landlords for the agricultural production on this operation, as well as report their expenses. Do not include expenses paid by contractors for items raised under a production contract. Please report estimates if exact figures are not known. Farm or ranch operators who rent part of their land to others should only report the expenses for the land they actually use themselves. Exclude production expenses for land that was rented to others in 2022.

Include all expenses during the 2022 regardless of when the purchased expense (feed, fertilizer, seed, etc.) was used. Exclude expenses that were not related to the farm business that result from customwork that was an entirely separate business from this agricultural operation and household expenses not related to the farm. Exclude expenses paid by a contractor for contracted production and the cost of feed for animals kept for less than 30 days. Exclude expenses related to non-farm activities such as trading and speculation in the commodities market or livestock trading activities.

Item 1 – Fertilizer, lime, and soil conditioners purchased - Report the cost of all fertilizer used on this operation in 2022. Report all types of fertilizer including rock phosphate, gypsum, lime, manure purchased, and other organic materials. Include the cost of any custom applications.

Item 2 – Chemicals purchased - Report the cost of insecticides, herbicides, fungicides, other pesticides, etc. Include agricultural chemicals and biocontrols for crop, livestock, poultry, and general farm use Include biological pest controls. Include the cost of any custom applications.

Item 3 – Seeds, plants, vines, trees, etc., purchased - Report the cost of seeds purchased for all grains, soybeans, tobacco, cotton, etc. Also, report the cost of transplants, bulbs, propagation material, trees, etc. Estimate the values if necessary. Exclude items purchased for immediate resale or the value of seed grown and used on this operation. Please note, oyster seeds should be reported in Item 5, other livestock purchased.

Item 3a – Cover crop seed - Of the total seed expenses reported in item 3, report the amount of seed expenses paid for the planting of cover crops. A cover crop is a <u>crop</u> planted primarily to manage soil <u>erosion</u>, <u>soil fertility</u>, soil quality, water, <u>weeds</u>, <u>pests</u>, and diseases.

Item 4 – Breeding livestock purchased or leased - Report the total purchase or lease expense of breeding livestock, including dairy cattle, regardless of age during 2022.

Item 5 – All other livestock and poultry purchased or leased - Report the total cost or lease expense of stocker and feeder cattle, calves, sheep, lambs, feeder pigs, fertile eggs, chicks, poults, started pullets, horses, fish, aquaculture, goats, bee colonies, etc., for this operation during 2022. Also note, while young oysters ready to be "planted" in oyster beds are called "seeds," the young oysters are aquatic animals and thus, should be reported under "all other livestock and poultry purchased or leased."

Item 6 – Feed purchased for livestock and poultry - Report the cost of all feed purchased for livestock and poultry production on this operation during 2022. Include grain, hay, silage, mixed feeds, concentrates, supplements, premixes, etc.

Exclude the cost of feed purchased by production contractors and the cost of feed for livestock and poultry fed off this operation.

Item 7 – Gasoline, fuels, and oils purchased for the farm business - Report the total cost for gasoline, diesel, natural gas, L.P. gas, motor oil, and grease products for this operation during 2022. Exclude fuel for personal non-farm use of automobiles by the family, cooking, heating the farm house, and any other fuel expenses not related to farmwork on this operation.

Item 8 – Utilities purchased for the farm business - Report the cost of electricity, farm share of telephone and water purchased in 2022. Include the cost of water purchased for irrigation purposes. Include utility cost for operating irrigation equipment, automatic feeders, farrowing houses, poultry houses, milking equipment, or any other machinery and equipment used for the operation. Internet service which is purchased for the farm business should be reported here. Expenses for household use should, to the extent possible, be excluded.

Item 9 – Repairs, supplies, and maintenance costs for the farm business - Report all expenses for the upkeep of buildings, motor vehicles, and farm equipment. Include the cost of repairs and upkeep of farm machinery, vehicles, buildings, fences, and other equipment used for the farm business. Repairs to equipment used both for the farm business and for performing customwork, if the customwork is not considered an entirely separate business from this operation, should be reported here.

Exclude repairs to vehicles not used on this operation or for equipment used only for performing customwork when the customwork is a separate business. Exclude the cost for construction of new buildings or the cost of additions to existing buildings.

Item 10a – Hired farm and ranch labor - Report the total amount paid for farm or ranch labor including amount paid to regular workers, part-time workers, and members of the operator's family if they received payments for labor. Include costs for social security, workers' compensation, insurance premiums, pension plans, state taxes (paid by the employer), unemployment tax, sick leave or vacation pay, etc., paid by this operation in 2022. Combine all payments whether made by the hour, month, or by the unit of work done and enter the total.

Item 10b – Contract labor - Report the payments to contractors, crew leaders, cooperatives, or any organization hired to furnish a crew of laborers to do a job that may involve one or more agricultural operations. In some cases, a crew leader may furnish some equipment. Harvesting of fruits, vegetables, berries, etc., are commonly accomplished with the use of contract labor and crew leaders.

Exclude expenditures made on a contractual basis for repair or maintenance or for capital improvements, such as construction of farm buildings, installation of fences or irrigation systems, land leveling, etc.

Item 11 – Customwork and custom hauling - Report the cost of customwork done on this operation, such as the use of machinery for spraying, harvesting, plowing, hauling, preparation of products for marketing, grinding and mixing feed, combining, corn picking, grain drying, chopping silage or haylage, etc. Report any expenses for the rental of machinery, such as tractors, tillage equipment, planters, combines, etc., in item 12b.

Exclude the cost of cotton ginning and the cost of applying fertilizers and chemicals. Ginning expenses are reported in this section, item 16. The cost of applying fertilizers and chemicals is reported in this section in item 1 and item 2, respectively.

Item 12a – Cash rent paid in 2022 - Report the cash rent paid for land and buildings on this operation in 2022. Include grazing fees. Exclude the rent paid for operator's dwelling or other non-farm property and the value of the shares of crops or livestock paid to landlords.

Item 12b – Rent and lease expenses for machinery, equipment, and farm share of vehicles - Report the rent and lease expenses for machinery, equipment, and farm share of vehicles used for this operation during 2022. Exclude rental and lease expense of items used only for custom hire.

Item 13a – Interest paid on debts secured by real estate - Report all interest expenses paid in 2022 on debt secured by this operation's real estate for the farm or ranch business on this operation. Include finance charges paid on mortgage loans for land and buildings on this operation.

Item 13b – Interest paid on debts not secured by real estate - Report all the interest expenses paid in 2022 on debt secured by machinery, tractors, trucks, other equipment, fertilizer, feed, seed, livestock, poultry, breeding stock, or borrowed for use as working capital. Also report unsecured signature interest and interest paid on CCC loans.

Exclude:

- Interest on debts not associated with the production of crops or livestock on the farm or ranch, such as land or buildings rented to others, packing sheds, or machinery and equipment used only for customwork that is a separate business from this operation.
- Interest on owner/operator dwelling where the amount is separated from interest on farm land and buildings on this operation.

Item 14 – Property taxes paid in 2022 - Report property taxes, etc., paid on the real estate, buildings, and livestock on this operation in 2022.

Exclude:

- Property taxes on land or buildings rented to someone else.
- Taxes paid by landlords.
- Property taxes paid on other land not associated with this operation, non-farm business property, and homes that were not part of this operation.
- Income and excise taxes.

Item 15 – Medical supplies, veterinary and livestock custom services - Report expenses paid by the operation in 2022 for medical supplies, disposal of livestock carcasses, veterinary and custom services for livestock. Include artificial insemination (AI), branding, breeding fees, caponizing, castrating, custom feeding, hormone injections, performance testing, pregnancy testing, seining, sheep shearing, etc. Exclude manure disposal.

Item 16 – Other production expenses - Report vehicle registration fees, animal health cost, storage and warehousing, marketing and ginning expenses, miscellaneous farm supplies, insurance, beneficial insects, other organic materials for weed or pest control, bookkeeping charges, tax preparation fees, livestock commission fees, farm consultant fees, and farm production costs not previously reported in this section.

Exclude depreciation, expenditures for the purchase of land, buildings, new or used machinery, and health or payroll taxes.

Item 17 – Total production expenses - Add items 1-16 for the total production expenses paid by the operation in 2022.

Item 18 – Landlord production expenses - Report the landlord's share of all the 2022 production expenses listed in items 1 through 16. Tenant farmers should report expenses paid by landlords for agricultural activities on this operation. Farm or ranch operators who rent part of their land to others should not report production expenses on that land. They are to report only those expenses for agricultural operations on land they actually use themselves.

Item 19 – Landlord's share of total sales - Report the landlord's share of total sales for the operation in 2022. Include items here only if the operation rented on a share basis. Include the landlord's share of government payments. Exclude cash rent.

Item 20 – Depreciation - Report the depreciation expenses claimed by this operation in 2022 for all capital assets (estimate 2022 from 2021 if necessary).

SECTION 33. MARKET VALUE OF LAND, BUILDINGS, MACHINERY, AND EQUIPMENT

Item 1 - Report the best estimate of the current market value of land and buildings OWNED, RENTED FROM OTHERS on this operation, and RENTED OR LEASED TO OTHERS. Frequently, the value of land and buildings must be estimated by the operator. This is especially true when reporting the market values of land and buildings rented from others. A real estate tax assessment value should not be used unless that value represents the current market value of the land and buildings. Do not deduct real estate marketing charges from your estimate.

Include the value of the operator's dwelling if part of this operation. Include the value of farm buildings and dwellings used by laborers, fruit packing and vegetable sheds, etc., that are used to prepare products of the farm for marketing.

Exclude major agricultural manufacturing or processing plants, such as cotton gins or sugar mills, and institutional or other associated buildings used for nonagricultural purposes, such as hospitals, dormitories, stores, filling stations, factories, etc. Also, exclude residential real estate and old farmstead houses that remain on a farm property but are now rented to persons not associated with the farm business.

Item 2 – Estimated value of machinery and equipment - Report your estimated current market value of all machinery and equipment used for farm activities on this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022. Report for all machinery and equipment kept on this operation and used for the farm or ranch business during 2021 or 2022. This value should be an estimate of what the machinery and equipment would sell for in the present condition and not the replacement or depreciated value. Include cars and pickups used for the farm business, trucks, tractors, tools, combines, plows, disks, harrows, dryers, pumps, motors, irrigation equipment, dairy equipment, tanks, feeders, grinding and mixing equipment, computers, etc. Include the value of leased equipment that was used for farm activities and on this operation on December 31, 2022.

Do not report share interest; report full value. Machinery kept on this operation for **customwork use only** should not be included here. However, equipment that was used for farm activities and also used for customwork, such as crop dusting airplanes, sprayers, or no-till grain drills, should be included.

Permanently installed equipment such as dairy equipment, feeders and feed mixers, animal hoists, or equipment that is an integral part of a building should be included as a part of the value of land and buildings.

SECTION 34. INCOME FROM FARM-RELATED SOURCES

Report income from activities which use part of the labor, land, equipment, or capital normally used on this operation and which DO NOT constitute a separate operation from this farming or ranching operation. Report the gross dollar amount received before taxes and expenses in 2022. Report value(s) in whole dollars. Exclude income from off-farm employment.

- **Item 1** Report gross dollar amount received for customwork and other agricultural services provided for farmers, neighbors, or others such as spraying, harvesting, plowing, and preparation of products for market, etc. Exclude income if customwork was an entirely separate business from the agricultural operation.
- **Item 2** Report gross dollar amount received for **cash rent or share payments** from renting out farmland and/or buildings, or payments received from lease of allotments. Include payments for livestock pastured on a per head basis, per month basis, AUM basis, etc.
- **Item 3** Report gross dollar amount received for the sales of forest products, including pulpwood, timber, firewood, etc. Exclude sales of Christmas trees, short rotation woody crops, and maple products, which are reported in Section 9.
- **Item 4** Report gross dollar amount received for agri-tourism and recreational services, such as farm or winery tours, hay rides, corn maze fees, hunting, fishing, etc.
- **Item 5** Report gross dollar amount received for patronage dividends and refunds from cooperatives.
- **Item 6** Report the crop and livestock insurance payments **received** by this operation in 2022. Exclude payments received from casualty insurance, vehicle liability, blanket liability policies, and operator dwelling insurance.
- **Item 7** Report the gross dollar amount of other income which is closely related to the agricultural operation, including animal boarding, tobacco quota buyouts and settlements, state fuel tax refunds, renting and leasing farm machinery and trucks to others, farm-generated energy (exclude credit received for net metering), pollination fees, casualty insurance payments, etc. If horse breeding (stud) fees were received, report the horse breeding (stud) fees in Section 17, item 5. Specify the type of income in the space provided.

SECTION 35. AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITY WITHIN THE BORDERS OF AMERICAN INDIAN RESERVATIONS, PUEBLOS, AND SERVICE AREAS

- **Item 1** Report "Yes" to item 1 and complete this section if this operation had cropland or livestock within the borders of an American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area.
- **Item 2** Print the name of the American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area and state where the agricultural activity was located.
- **Item 3** Report how many total acres this operation used for cropland or livestock within this Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area in 2022. Include trust acres used , as well as deeded acres owned or leased from others. Exclude land used on a per-head or Animal Unit per Month (AUM) basis. If all land used on the Reservation is AUM grazing land, then 0 acres is the proper entry.
- **Item 3a** Report how many of the acres reported in item 3 were harvested cropland.
- **Item 4** Mark the appropriate "Yes" or "No" box whether this operation had any livestock on the American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area in 2022. Include livestock on land used on a per-head or animal unit month (AUM) basis. If the response is "No," go to section 36.
- **Item 4a** If the response to item 4 was "Yes," then mark the box of the percent range that best represents the percentage of this operation's livestock that were on the Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area on December 31, 2022. Mark **only one** box.

SECTION 36. CONCLUSION

- **It is** important that we avoid duplication on our list of farms and ranches. Indicate if it is possible that the information on this form for this operation would be reported by another operation or under another name or address. If yes, print the other name, address, city, state, and zip code.
- **Item 2 Additional Farm or Ranch** Indicate whether the principal operator (the individual named on the label) makes any day-to-day decisions for another farm or ranch. If yes, indicate whether a report form was received for this additional farm or ranch in **item 2a** and print the name of the additional farm or ranch and telephone number where the respondent can be reached.
- **Item 2b** Indicate whether all the data for the additional farm or ranch was included in this report form. Do not make changes to the data in this report, regardless of your answer.

This page left intentionally blank.

APPENDIX A.

GENERAL REPORT FORM AND INSTRUCTION SHEET

The general report form and instruction sheet are on the following pages.

UNITED STATES 2022 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE

	Number: 22- /2021) Draft				
	USD/		22-4100		
		, Э Б			
	onal Agricu atistics Ser				
	Return your pleted repo				
1201	sus of Agric East 10th sonville, IN	Street			
OF	FICE USE O	ONLY			
0013					
0011	0012				
0014	0015	0016			
6014	0010	0010			
0021	0022	0023			
			Make correction	ns to na	ame, address, and ZIP code if necessary.
:	Your man To fill out Duplicate	the paper forms?	report is due by February er form, use a black or blue If you received extra Censu	6, 20 ballp is rep	oint pen. oort forms for the SAME farming operation,
P			rms in the same envelope version the person comp		
9912 F	spondent Na	me		9911	Respondent Phone Check if cell phone
30.12				33	
1095 Ra	spondent E-n	nail		9910	Date Completed (MM-DD-YYYY)
L					Check if
9937 Op	peration E-mai	il (if differen	t from above)	9936	Operation Phone cell phone
L					
			THANK YOU FOR YO Questions? Call us toll		
			¿Preguntas? Llámenos libre d	ie carg	os al 1-888-424-7828.
The informs or your ope of Pub. L. h https://www	tion you provide v ration is subject to to. 115–135, codifi cress.usd s.gov/co	vill be used for a a jail term, a fi led in 44 U.S.C. officientiality. Re	statistical purposes only. Your response will be kep the or both. This survey is conducted in accordance. Ch. 35 and other applicable Federal Isree. For mo sponse to this survey is required by Isre under Title	t confider a with the re informs 7 USC 2	nfal and any person who will trily discloses ANY identifiable information about you c Confidential Information Protection and Statistical Efficiency Act of 2018, Title 11 about on how we protect your information please visit: 204(g) Public Law 105-113.
According to OMB control	the Paperwork F of number. The val	teduction Act of iid OMB number	f 1925, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and r is 0535-0228. The time required to complete this data sources, cathering and mainteiring the data of	i a person information sected, ex	n is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a valid on of selection is estimated to average 50 minutes per response, including the time not completing and reviewing the collection of information.

22100010

	(WHOP) rand, pastur	eland, rangeland, w	GOGIIING, III	37.40	HISEBBUR, DIC
				If None	BOX A
Number of acres OWNED.					
Total number of acres RENTED or	LEASED FROM OT	THERS			
NCLUDE * land worked by you on shares		land used on a fire		1	BOXB
 land used rent five in exchange for services, payment of laws, etc. Fideral, State, and rathnast land lease on a per some dash 	ed:	per head or anemal a moreh (ACM) bess.			
And randed or leased by you for cash Number of acres RENTED or LEAS RELLOSE ACRES *worked on whoma by others *subhead *retinated or leased to others for cash used rant flue in exchange for services, payment of taxes, etc.	ED TO OTHERS EXCLUDE ACRES I invalid in Consun I invalid in Farnab I invalid in Consun Frogram (CREP) I runted or I invalid in I invalid or I invalid in I invalid or I invalid in I invalid or I invalid in	when Reserve Program (to Wellands Program ; to Wellands Program ; within Reserve Enhance others plant of the yea and or animal with	ARP) (FWP) coment		вох с
How many acres rented or leas to others (Box C above) did thir operation dwn?	ed file	Number of]	
Enter the figures from the boxes at	ove to determine y	our total acres oper	pted		TINE .
BOX A +	BOX 8	BOX C	=	0046	BOX D
Does the figure in Box D = 0 or do	you rent all your ta	nd to someone else	e.		
☐ Yes - Refer to the instruction	sheet to complete t	his form			
□ No - Continue					
Did this operation pay on a fee per	band or animal uni	month (ALBA) hasi	n to use as	or fame??	
442	time A		e jo uso u		
yes - Continue	- 0	No + Go to tem 7	Do: Kn		Number of Acres
a. If yes, how many acres?		*********	1100 E	0045	
b. DO NOT include these acres in	the boxes above. I	you did, GO BACH		a abientis	
EXCLUDE them from the boxes			A U 1000 - 1000 a		and the second second
Considering the total acres in Box I raised or produced?	Li accive, in what of	uruy was the targes	ii while or i	nia operati	on a agricultural produ
OCCE Principal	County Name		occ State	-0056	Number of Acres
a. If this operation had agricultural	activity in any other	r county, enter the	county nam	m(s), etc.	
Other G	nunty Name(a)		State		Number of Acres
704		3	man.	9067	
3607			002	0068	

		how the acres in Box D on the previous page were used. It acres in the first item that applies.					
• R	офо	it acres only once. It acres in CRP, WRP, FWP, and CREP in the most appropriate land use below.					
1.		opland					
tri.		Cropland harvested					
		MOUNTE					
		Nand from which field crops were harvested or hay was out Nand used for vegetables	Mark		Nea	mber of Acr	**
		 land used for inserty and greenhouses (rounded to the menest acre) land used for ordinards, wheyerds, citrus groves, Christmes trees, short rotation woody crops, muts, note, and bernies (bearing and nonbearing) 076 	2 PH		1000	None Bullion	~
	h	Cropland on which all crops talled or were abandoried – Exclude land in orchards and vineyards		: [
	0	Cropland in summer fallow (cultivated cropland on which no crops or hay were harvested during the 2022 growing season)	. [ı [
	d	Cropland idle or used for cover crops or soil-improvement but not harvested and not pastured or grazed	2 [] [
2.	2.0	sture	-	, [
	7	Permanent pasture and rangeland	-				
	b.	Woodland pastured		1 L			
	9	Other pasture and grazing land (including rotational pasture) that could have been used for crops without additional improvements. 68	. [] [
3.		oodland not pastured					
	* 1	DUDE woodols		-			
		Inber tracts ugarbush	5 C	3			
à.	Al	other land		escal I form			
		2.00E emiliads, home, and buildings					
	*2	ome gardens vestock facilities					
	* 0	ords		-0			
		pads national sit	7 [
				700		TESTIVA	
				100		BOX E	
5.	то	TAL ACRES - Add items 1-4 to determine your total acres operated.	07	m .			
] Y	es - Oc	ntinue		
6.	D	pes Box E above = Box D on the previous page?					
						nd correct igures sho	
				e the s	ame:	T. Sales (Sales)	erre /
		The acres in Box E will be referred to as "this	o op	erat	ion"		
		for the remainder of this form.	20				

L	In 2022, did this operation rent or fease any cropland or pasture acres from others leased on a share basis, per head or AUM basis, free of charge, and rent that inclu-		
	3430 1 Yes - Complete this section 3 No - Go to SECTION 4	200	
2	How many acres of non-irrigated croptand were rented or leased for	I Note	Number of Acres
U	cash? Include fluit, nut, beny, vineyard, nursery, and hey land. 342 How many acres of irrigated cropland were rented or leased for		
	cash? Include fluit, nut, berry, vineyard, nursery, and hay land		
	How many acres of permanent pasture, grazing, or grassland were rented or leased for cash? Exclude Federal, State, and other types of land rented or leased on an animal unit month (AUM) basis	, . [
s	ECTION 4 LAND USE PRACTICES		
1	During 2022, considering the total acres on this operation, how many acres -	Bank 76"	Number of Acres
	a. Were drained by Ble?		
	b. Were artificially drained by disches?		
	c. Were under a conservation easement?		
Ŋ	During 2022, considering the cropland acres on this operation, [on] how many acre	s- r	
	a. Were no-SI practices used?		
	b. Were conservation or reduced tillage, excluding no-till, practices used? as		
	c. Were intensive or conventional tillage practices used?		
	d. Were planted to a cover crop? (Cover crops are planted primarily for managing soil fartility, soil quality, and controlling weeds, pests, and diseases.) Exclude CRP acres	[
	At any time during 2022, did this operation use precision agriculture practices to manage crops or livestock? This would include the use of global positioning (GPS) guidance systems, GPS yield monitoring and soil mapping, variable rate input applications, use of drones for scouling fields or monitoring livestock, electronic tagging, precision feeding, robotic milking, etc.	176K 1	□ Yes 3 □ No
s	ECTION 5 IRRIGATION		
	Were any acres irrigated on this operation or were there any irrigation systems or irrigation equipment available on this operation in 2022?		
	Sprinklers, drip or trickle impation, etc. Disches or furnies, controlled and uncontrolled flooding, etc. Water used exclusively for Water used exclusively for		
	1 100 1 Ves - Continue 3 No - Go to SECTION 6	1	Number of Acres
N	How many acres of harvested cropland were impated?	0 0	
	How many acres of all other land were irrigated? Include pasture and rangetand, CRP and failed cropland, and all other non-harvested cropland	0	
9	How many acres on this operation have irrigation systems or equipment? Include all acres irrigated in 2022 and acres that could have been irrigated in 2022 using the existing irrigation systems available on the operation, regardless of water rights.	, [
	Do you intend to use the irrigation systems or irrigation equipment on this operation		

S	CROP INSURANCE, CONSERVATION RESERVE	PRO	GRAM AN	ID
		Mare 'X'	Nutro	or of Acres
1.	How many acres in this operation were covered under any crop insurance policy in 2022?			
2	How many acres in this operation were enrolled in the Conservation Reserve Program (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), Farmable Wetlands Program (FWP), or Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) on September 30, 2022?			
			- 10	olive
	a. What was the amount received in 2022 for participation in these programs? . sees		s	.00
3	What was the amount received in 2022 for all other Federal agricultural program payments? Exclude any type of insurance payments received		s	.00
400	What was the amount received in 2022 from state and local government agricultural program payments?		S	.00
5.0	What was the total amount received in 2022 from Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) loses for all controdities?		s	.00
8	What was the total amount spent in 2022 to repay CCC loans?		\$.00
7.	Do you know that you have the right to appeal an adverse program decision to USDA's National Appeals Division?	1418	1 🗆 Yes	3 🗆 No
S	CHON 7 TYPE OF ORGANIZATION			
2 3 4	In 2022, was more than 50 percent of this operation owned by an operator's household and/or extended family? Mark "yes" if more than 50 percent of the assets of this operation are owned by one of the operation, members of their household, and/or other persons related to them by blood, marriage, or adoption, including relatives not residing in his/her household. Consider only farm and ranch assets owned - not rented or leased - by this operation, and exclude the assets held by non-family landords and contractors. In 2022, how many households shared in the net farm income of this operation? Was this operation organized as a Limited Liability Company (LLC) under State law? In 2022, what was this operation's legal status for tax purposes? Mark one answer on	. 1623	1 Yes	1 No
1621	Family or individual operation - Exclude partnerships and corporations.			
	Partnership operation – Include family partnerships. Is this partnership registered under state law?	1567	1 🗆 Yes	₃ □ No
	is this a family-held corporation? • Are there more than 10 stockholders?			3 🗆 No
	Other - Estate or trust. Government facility, grazing association or American Indian reservation Other, specify type.		10 NO 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	3 No 3 No

SECTION 8 P	ERSONAL CHARA	CTERISTICS		Ĭ
1. In 2022, how many	men and women were in	wolved in decisions for the	S SAME	- Woman
operation (include	family members and hired ry were a hired manager of	managers)? Exclude hire	d	1574
Answer the follows December 31, 262		individuals who were invi	olved in the decisions for I	his operation as of
	Person 1	Person 2	Person 3	Person 4
	Take .	180	1872	1873
a. Full nume				
b. So:	1926 1	1	1 D Male 2 D Female	1 Male 2 Female
c. What was this person's age on December 31, 2022?	1926.	1585 ags	1506. agv	1615 age
d. Is this person of Hispanic, Lating, or Spanish origin?	Hispanic, Labric, or 1927 - Spanish origin 1 - Yes 2 - No	Hispanic, Latino, of their Spierrah origin	Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin 1 Yes 3 No.	Hapanic Letino, or 1622 Spanish origin 1 Yes 3 No
E. At which occupation did this person spend the majority (50 person of most) of bisher working in 2022? G. this person retred from familing or ranching?	Mark one or more. 2701 White 2702 Black or African American Indian or Alacka harbon Specify IIIba 2 2705 Asian 2704 Asian 1920 Mark one. 1920 Werk one: 2 Farm or parch work 3 Werk one: 3 Werk one: 4 Farm or parch work 3 Werk one: 5 Farm or parch work 6 Werk one: 6 Werk one: 7 Werk one: 7 Werk one: 8 Werk one: 9 Werk one: 9 Werk one: 1824 One: 1824 One: 1825 One:	Mark one or more. 1801	Mark one or more. 1907	Mark one or more. 1616
th. How many theys did mis person work off the farm in 2022? Inchede days in which the person worked at least fear hours per day in an off-tim job. Include work on someone afters farm for pay.	1920 Mack mes. 1	1831 Mark ems. 1	1001 Mark one. 1 None 2 1-49 days 3 50-95 days 4 100-199 days 5 200 days or more	#25 Mark one. None 1 - 48 days.

SECTION 8	ONTINUED -			
OLOHON B	- ASSESSMENT OF THE PARTY OF TH		(
i. Did this person	Person 1, continued	Person 2, continued	Person 3, continued	Person 4, continued
two on this operation at any time in 2022?	1	1 🗆 Vas 🧵 🗆 No	∜ □ ves ≭ □ No	Y O Yes 3 O No
j. In what year did this person begin to operate any part of THIS operation?	1000	1504	5685	1827
In what year did this person begin to operate ANY term operation?	2634	1851	1871	1826
Has this purson ever served on active duty	1633 Mark one. 1 Never served in the military 2 Only on active that for training in the flateness of	1 Never served in the military Conty on active dary for making in the Reserves or	Next one. Next one.	Never served in the military 2 Chy on active ducy to haring in the Baseous of
in the U.S. Armed Forces, Reserves, or National Guard?	National Guard Nos on action say On action duty in the past, but not real rice	National Guard Now on active may On active duty in the part, but not now	Notional Guard Note on active auty On apply of the past, but not you	National Guard Now on active duty On active staty in the post, but not now
in. How many people fixed in this person's household in 2022?	Number fishing in Peasurhold of Person 1 3571	Murither fiving in household of Person 2. Enter '0' if Person 2 was counted in the presence count.	Mamber Irang is houseabled of Person 3. Enter "O" if Person 3 was counted in a previous column.	Number living in fromsehold of Person 4. Enter "O" F. Person 4. was powried in a prisvious column. 1837
is. Was this purson hired and paid a salary or wages to manage this operation?	2576 1	1	1	1
Was this person in mark all that appl	volved in these specific de y.	ecisions as of December :	31, 2022? For each person	and for each item,
	Person 1	Person 2	Person 3	Person 4
a. Day-to-day decimens	1842 1 🗆	3940 I	1844	THAN 1 🔲
h. Land use and/or crop decisions. Industing planting, crop apraying, or other, e.g., grazing	1850 1 🗆	1861 ₁ 🖂	160,	7853 (🖂
c. Livestock decisions, including purchases, sales, braiding, and pasturing.	1654 1 🖂	3655 y 🖂	1650	1657 1 🗆
d. Marketing decisions	1887 - 🗆	3000 y []	1000 L	THERE A
Record liveping and/or financial management.	1776 1 🖂	1277 1 🗆	1776	1779
t. Estate planning or succession planning.	179	1758. E	1750	1790

For items 4 through 7, when both dry hay and haylage were cut from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for that item only once, but report total quantity harvested from all cuttings. Acres	s	ECTION 9 HAY AN	ID FOR	RAGE C	ROPS					
All land from which dry hay, haylinge, grass sitinge. All land from which dry hay, haylinge, grass sitinge. All land from which dry hay, haylinge, grass sitinge. Becord gross value of hay and forage sold from this operation in 2022. Exclude straw, corn silage, and sorghum sitinge. Becord gross value of hay and forage sold from this operation in 2022. Include the value of your fanction's share, marketing changes, saxes, hauling, etc. Exclude dollars for items produced under production contracts. Becord gross value of hay and forage sold from this operation in 2022. Include the value of your fanction's share, marketing changes, saxes, hauling, etc. Exclude dollars for items produced under production contracts. Becord gross value of hay and forage sold from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for that item only once, but report fotal quantity harvested from all cuttings. Afrais. Acres. Harvested Afrais and sitial farmings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres, for the same acres, report for the same acres, report for the same acres, report acres, for the same acres, report for the same	10	WCLUDE • your fundion's share and oro	vo-america		Ð	CLUDE		to others		
2. All land from which dry hay, haylage, grass slage, or green/chop was cut or forage was thereveled in 2022. Exclude staw, corn slage, and sorghum stage		1152 1 Yes - Complete	this sec	tion 1	No - Ga to	SECTION	10			
Security cross value of hay and forage sold from this operation in 2022 include the value of your fandords share, markeling charges, staves, hauling, etc. Exclude dollars for items produced under production contracts. Turn sold for the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings were made from the same acres, report acres for each type. If two or more cuttings. Apres Acres Harvastad From Sales Fr	2	All land from which dry hay	haylage	grass sile	10.		Atres Harvest	ted	Actus Irrepited	
3. Report gross value of hay and forage add from this operation in 2022 Many Many		Exclude straw, com silage,	and sorgi	num silage	1022					
all cuttings. Acres Harvested from all cuttings. Acres Harvested From From Harvested From All Cuttings. Acres Harvested From Harvested From States From Harvested From Harvest	à.	include the value of your tar	ndlord's s	hare mark	eting charges, tax	ors,	// M	ere		. 00
Affaith and situits Mark 7 Agree Harvested Ha	mo	re cuttings were made from the								
4. Affalfa and sefalfe mixtures for dry hay,			MAS TIC			Total Harv	Toms ested	Number of	Average Weight per B	
## Committee of the columns below to this operation in 2022? Were any Christmas trees or woodland crops grown, harvested, or tapped on this operation in 2022? Were any Christmas trees or woodland crops grown, harvested, or tapped on this operation in 2022?	4	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	-				Torm.			
diover, fescus, lespedezic uals, type, fernidity, wheat, witd, Bermude grass, Sudangrass, etc. 4111 Torre, witd, Bermude grass, Sudangrass, etc. 4111 Torre, grass silage, and greenchop. 1022 Torre, grass silage, and greenchop. 1022 Torre, grass silage, and greenchop. 1022 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1023 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1024 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1025 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1027 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1022 Torre, grass silage, and graenchop. 1022 SECTION 10 CULTIVATED CHRISTMAS TREES, SHORT ROTATION WOODY CROPS, AND MAPLE SYRUP 1. Were any Christmas trees or woodland crops grown, harvested, or tapped on this operation in 2022? **NOTION 10 SECTION 10 SECTION 11 For items 2 through 4. fill in the columns below the this operation in 2022. **Include the value of your landford's share, marketing charges, taxes, having, etc. **Include the value of your landford's share, marketing charges, taxes, having, etc. **Exclude from sales dollars for items produced under production contracts. 2 Cultivated Christmas trees - cut or table out. Exclude wild favore in the cut of the production trees. Report frees. Report frees. Report frees. Report frees. Report frees. Section 12 feet wild frees. Section 10 feet wild frees. Section 10 feet wild frees. Exclude misery trees, severgreening for replaining, and seriber. Report rearsery stock in SECTION 12 feet frees. Section 10 feet wild frees. Exclude misery trees, severgreening for replaining, and seriber. Report rearsery stock in SECTION 12 feet frees. Section 10 feet frees.	64	from alfalfa or	0							
7. All other haylage, grass slage, and greenchop. 1878	4.	clover, fescue, lespedezis, cuats, iye, firmitry, wheat, wild, Bermude grass,	n [
AND MAPLE SYRUP 1. Were any Christmas trees or woodland crops grown, harvested, or tapped on this operation in 2022? **NOLLIDE* **Your fanction** share and crops grown under contract 1153 1	7.	All other haytage, grass slage, and					York.			क्र
Include the value of your landlord's share, marketing charges, taxes, hauting, etc. Exclude from sales dollars for items produced uniter production contracts. 2. Cultivated Christmas trees— cut or to be out. Exclude with	**	Were any Christmas trees of NCLUDE * your fancton's share and or 1153 1 Yes - Complete	APLE S ir woodin pa grown ir this sect	SYRUP nd crops gr under contra tion 1	own, harvested, of No - Go to	or tapped of CLUDE Politi grown SECTION	on this operation	on in 2022?	DY CROPS	3,
cut or to be cut. Exclude wild North Production These Cut Initiation Dollars							etc.			
3. Short rotation woody crops - trees with growth cycles of 10 years or less. Excitide nursery trees, evergreens for replanting, and simber. Report nursery stock in SECTION 12 1025 Specify crop 2 1027 Number of Taps Syrup Produced Gross Value of Sales (Collect)	2	cut or to be out. Exclude will harvested trees. Report	H .	If Nome				ated	ons Value of Sa (Dollars)	- 554
trees with growth cycles of 10 years or less. Exclude nursery trees, evergreem for replanting, and tember. Report nursery stock in SECTION 12 Specify grop. 1097 Number of Taps Syrup Producet Gross Value of Sales (Collect)				23 11 [\$:00
Specify crop 2 Number of Taps Syrup Produced Gross Value of Saless (Collect)	17	trees with growth cycles of years or less. Exclude nurse trees, evergreens for replan	10 sey					ated	cas Value of Sa (Dollars)	50
Number of Taps Synup Produced (cross value of Sales)						171		5		.00
4. Mapte syrup			10	97	Number of Taps	39	sup Producest	Gros		
	4.	Maple syrup		00 🗆			Q.	tima \$		/00

SECTION 11 FIELD	CROP						
Were any field crops, suitable You link Your landow's share and Yes - Comp	опре дланг	soybeans, wheat, under contact ction 2	ENGLIAD • crops g • trome c	E prower o	n land numbed to o		
				A	res Harvested	Agres I	rigated
Acres from which field or Report multiple cropped							
Fill in the columns below table, enter the crop nan Report production in the Include the value of your Exclude from sales do	for all field te and code e units spe ur landford	f crops harvested fi e from the list belo- cified next to the c 's share, marketing	w. rop. charges, taxes,	haulin		rops not printed	in the
Enter Fluid Omp Norne	Enter Code	Acres Harvested	Total Producti Harvisited	tim	Acres ingated	Ensus Value (Dods	
Com for grain or seed	0067			Bir.		S	00
Soybeans for beans or seed	0068			Buc		s	00
Wheat, writer for grain or seed	0072		T.	Bii		S	.00
Other field crops, specify below:						A111	
			j,			s	.00
						5	00
						s	.00
			Ī			S	00
						s	00
			Ï			S	.00
If more space is needed, use a s	eparate she	ot of paper.				Mile	
RELD DROPS All hay including white and other	3000	FIELD CROPS Hemp for four (por		CODE	-	rida),	CODE
Insport in SECTION B Attains and (pounds) Bartas grass seed (pounds) Bartas grass seed (pounds) Bartas grass seed (pounds) Bartas grass seed (pounds) Bartanas (hundredweight) Bertgrass seed (pounds) Bertgrass seed (pounds) Brotsegrass seed (pounds) Buckwheat (bushets) Cametras (pounds) Clover, ormean cover seed (pounds) Clover, white obver seed (pounds) Cotton, Pinna (bales) include cottonseed in males of sales only Cotton, Upland (bales) include cottonseed in males of sales only Dill for oil (pounds) Ernmar and spell (bushels) Ernmar and spell (bushels) Ernmar and spell (bushels)	201 079 pains 504 563 568 575 608 614 601 604 586 586 614 644 586 596 644	Dichardgrass seed Peanuts for nuts op Peas, Austrian wirt huistindweight; Peas, dry edible (h Peas, dry southern	(pecandar) undia undia undia undia undia undia ds ds sport to cre a s seed (pounds) undiadeogra() ounds of oil) undiadeogra() ounds) for ones undiadeogra() incompana()	2525 2630 623 625 626 626 636 638 638 557 647 640 650 650 653 655 655 655 655 655 655 655 655 655	Rye for grain o exclude ryegins seemed ryegins Ryeginss seed Saffalwer (pour Sarghum for all exclude sarghum for sarghum for all exclude sarghum for Sarghum for all exclude sarghum for Sarghum for Sarg	is (bushels) repounds) ds) ds) ds) ds) ds) ds) ds) ds) ds)	686 689 682 701 682 10ms) 685 704 719 719 8) 2290 ounds) 776 647 746 684 749 755 686 778
Feature seed (pounds)	600 600	Poscom (pounds s Potatoes - report in Proso millet for gra	SECTION 13	- 662	Wild rice (hund Other seeds, sp	redweight) pecify above (pour p. specify above (p	ds) 770



-	VEGETABLE S						incolvia,	
1	Were any nursery, floriculture, or gre sod, vegetable seeds under protective propagative materials grown for sale germination, frost protection, etc. in 5	enhouse e cover, on this c	crops, inclu food and of peration in 2	ding omame her crops gro	ntal plants, flows wn under profes	ers, mush	r, flower seeds, or	
	WCLLIDE - crops produced, including under contract - Rood crops grown in greenhouses, cave high suncers where crops were always o	s, and		* Xinisha	l <u>E</u> garden, persunal o d plants purchase tile seeds grown i	of from other	en and mistid	
	1 Yes - Complete this sect	ion	□ No	+ Gib to SEC	TION 13			
	2 - 20 W - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	10000		Γ	Square Fee	it Under G	ata or Other Protec	Son:
2.	Report total area and irrigated area on nursery, greenhouse, floriculture, mus	in which throoms,		Wark TXT	Total Area		Irrigated Are	ta.
	and propagative materials were grow glass or other protection in 2022	n under	0	47A 🗆				
				Г		Acres in	the Open	
3.	Report total acres and impated acres nursery, floriculture, sod, mushrooms.		h	- 1	Total Acres	Tentra	Brigated Acres	Yerithi
	propagative materials were grown in open in 2022			ere 🗆				
4.	Fill in the columns below for all nurse	ery ormer	shouse floor	box souther	mushmoms: ww	setable se	eds occum under	
	the table below. • Include the value of your landlord's • Exclude from sales dollars for items							
	w Nursery, Greenhouse, Floriculture, Sed, inferoom, Vegetable Seed, or Proprietive	Einter		oot Under or Other	Acres in the	-	Gross Value of (Dollars)	
	Mutorial Namu	Code		intion	Arres	Tonths	(DOMPS)	
							S	.00
							S	.00
							5	.00
							S	.00
				1			S	.00
							s	.00
I n	ore space is needed, use a seporate sheet	of paper				111		
flu	DRIGULTURE AND BEDDING CROPS		CODE	500				CODE
	dding/Garden plants - annuals, herboo rennials, vegetable plants - Include fran				Name and Address of the Owner, when the Owner, which the Owner,		n future years	
bas	iketii		0479	ASSESSMENT OF THE PARTY NAMED IN	ATIVE MATERIA	According to the Party of the P	5000	CODE
	flowers and out florist greens			The state of the s	ms, rhizomes, a seedlings, liners.		The Property of the Control of the C	1002
Pol	ted flowering plants		0710	THE RESERVE AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY OF THE	edia	ALCOHOL: UNION		. 0882
201/1/	ner floriculture and bedding, specify ab RSERY CROPS	OVE	CODE	Tobacco p	iants sold for tro	maplant to	farm fields	. 1004
Nu	rsery slock - ornamentals, shrubs, sho	de trees	2010115101		ROPS GROWN PROTECTION	UNDER C	ILASS OR	CODE
TO	vering trees, evergreens, live Christma t and nut trees and plants, vines, palm	s treen.			berries	VIVOGIN		1008
dim	amental grasses, and bareroot herbac	eous	0488	Tomatoes Vecetable				0884
701	uatic plants				seeds. transplants to fe			
-	MP		CODE	Other vegi	stables and frest		5	0503
-	mp clones or transplants sold for transp	plant to o		MUSHRO	OM CROPS			CODE
He	mp complete growsmp seeds		2855		s - Report grow epawin - Report			. 0494 2495



SE	CTION 13 VEGETABLE	ES, I	PO	TATOES, A	ND MEL	ONS				
1	Were any vegetables, vegetable soperation in 2022? Report crops s WCLUDE * crops grown under contract				e protection EXCLUS	in SECT	10N 12	ons harve		
	crops grown for seed									
	1101 1 Yes - Complete this	section		3 🔲 No +	Go to SEC	TION 14				
						Acres	Harveste	t i	Acres Imga	met .
2	Acres from which vegetables, pob	ntoen	mod	melans		Acr	0s	Continu	Acres	Fortition
*	were harvested in 2022. Exclude Report multiple cropped acreage	home	gan	tens.	0575					
3.	Report gross value of vegetables, this operation in 2022, Include the	potati	oes.	and melons sol	d from		969	eh "X"	Gross Value of (Doffars)	
	marketing charges, taxes, hauling produced under production contra	etc.	Exa	ute dollars for I	lotts			□ s		.00
4.	Fill in the columns below for all vi- name and code from the table be • If more than one vegetable cro • For two or more pickings of the • Processing refers to vegetables	was same	han	ested from the p, report the are	same acres	s, report a	spres for			ne crop
500	or Vegetable, Positio, or Motors Name	Emu	e	Acres Harves	itid		Harvestee at: Market		Acres Harves Processi	
- II		Cod	ė	Acres	Tonths.	Acr	ed .	Tonths	Acres	Tontha
			7							
_		-	+		+ +	-	-	-		-
			1							
			†							
_		-	+		1			\vdash		-
_			4							24
			7							
			_		1	_		1		-1-
If, en	ore space a needed, use a superitie st	host ut	pap	er.						
100-00	OP NAME COD	-	-	PNAME		CODE	-	NAME		CODE
	chokes - exclude Jerusalem 037 eragus, bearing age 041	B (3	drivin	c rout.		0511	Pappar	s, other the	suda pimientos en ball -	9443
Bea	ins, lima	9 0	inse	ng, cultivated only is		0446			1000	
	ris seem push are pose 038			, fresh out						
Bro	cooli	5 H	une	ydow meltons		0423				
	ssels sprouts			radish					**********	
inac	opa, box choy, etc.)			e, tweat					zucidnini)	
Cat	opa, box choy, etc.) 038 obags, head 039	(F) 14	ethe	e, leaf		0430	Sweet	com		0461
Cab	bage, musterd			a, Romaine						
	taloupes and muskmalons 035 rots 039			nd greens					700	
	diflower. 035	6 0	respon	s, dry		0433	Тыпир	greens		0467
Cos	ery 040	1 0	mon	s, grien		0435	Furnips			0465
	cory 040 lards 040			Y						
De	ards 640 sumbers and pickles 641	¥ 5	OAN.	Çîvnese (sugar,)	inaw)	0405	Other	entistane	specify above	0475
Dell	ton. 041	3 P	ees.	green						
Egg	plant	5 P	cas.	southern (cowper ryed, crowder, etc	M) -	0409				



SE	CTION 14 FRUIT	T, NUTS	S, AN	D BERRIES							1
4.	Were any fruit or nut bree syct upp * crops grown under contra * CO Yes - Complete	es, includi cl	ng grap		EXCLU • above • home	DE doned acres garden, pe	rannal or	home us	ie cropa		
200				FRUIT	AND NUT		1		BER	RES	
2	Acres and imigated acres bearing and nonbearing			Total Acres	1000	auroA. but		Total Ad	HILL STATE OF THE	imputed	Acros
	archards, vineyards, nut	trees.		Acres Ture		STATE OF TAXABLE	16 7	Acres	Tontha	Acres	Tenthu
	and bernes in 2022. Exc home gardens, personal home use.	or	9121						- SCHOOL S		
X.	Report gross value of fru berries sold from this ope include the value of your marketing changes, taxes Exclude dollars for items	eration in a tandlord's hauling.	2022. share, etc.	If Home	Orms	TAND NOT Value of Sa Dollars)	NS .	Maris "SC" Il Monte	(a)	BERRIES as Valve of (Dutars)	Calus /
	production contracts			1329	\$:00		\$.00
4.	Fill in the columns below from the table below. • Include acres even if n				s, damage	from halt,				ome and co	
	Enter Fruit, Nut, or Berry Na	ime	Code	THE RESERVE THE PERSON NAMED IN		-		Tentnu			Tenthu
	0		(C0000)	Acma	Tenthu	Acr	NE.	cennu	-	Actua	centitiii
No. of Lot	ora space is needed, use a s	41100	-	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH		WEST	gagrapies a				
-	N-CITRUS FRUIT	CODE	-	N-CITRUS FRUIT		CODE	NUTS	At 1516	effet)		000E
Apr Avo Bar Chi Chi Chi	book cudos sinos ermoyas ernos, awest ernos, awest for (2021-2022 crop)	0129 0139 0141 0293 0340 0587 0150	Plur plur Plur Prur Prur Ran	supplies noots, pluots, other stapricot hybrids ns segranatus ns stat shotan er non-citrus thuts,		0264 0243 0265 0269 2278	Macada Pecana Pecana Patach Walnut Other o	amia nulti i, improve i, native i ios. s. English suts. spec	od and peed	iing.	0338 0342 0351 0367 0363
Figs	us ,	0165	100	ify above	44114-11	0261	BERR	A STATE OF THE OWNER,			CODE
Gra	pes (include muscadine)	0366	CIT	RUS FRUIT		CODE	Artma Blackto	barries. ontes and	d dewbu	mes -	- 0507
KOM LOSS Lyc Mark City Page Page Page Page Page Page Page Page	garis redes garis ser soyas sion fruit pows ches, cingations	0185 2248 2258 0186 0207 0217 0217 2268 0222	Kuri Limi Tan Tan Ora Ora Ora	petruit cjuota tona ta. galoe gerines (Mandarina nges, Vetencia nges, Other than Va de Navel or dhus thut, specifi). Sancia	0279 0285 0303 0308 0150	Include Bluebe Bluebe Boysen Clarron Elderbe Gooset Logano Mubben	munorb mes, tam mes, wis borries mus is (black bries bernes bernes bernes	erries c f or red).		05/12 05/15 05/18 05/24 05/24 05/24 05/26 25/40 05/30 25/50
Peo	ches freestone rs. Bartlett	0216	1000			CODE	Raspho	mas, at			2570
Pau	rs, other than Barbot	0240	Aim	onda		9321				oove	
Par	sammans		-Che	shruts		0324					



SI	ECTION 15 CATTLE AND CALVES		
340	Did you or anyone else have any cattle or calves, including dairy cattle, on this operation * cartle on mis operation * cartle on putrits or industrial property under a grazing permit * cartle on fund used not free by this operation * cartle grown or had on this operation for others on a sustant or contract basis.	maane	
	1201 . Yes - Complete this section No - Go to SECTION 16		
2.		days by	Number on this operation December 31, 2022
	Beef cows? Include beef helfers that had calved. Exclude helfers that had not calved, sleers, calves, and bulls	None	
	b. Milk cows kept for production of milk? Include dry milk cows and milk helfers that had calved		
	c. Other cattle and calves? Include helfers that had not calved, steers, calves, and bulls		
	d. TOTAL cattle and calves on hand December 31, 2022. Add lines 2a, 2b, and 2c		
1	Of the cattle and calves sold or moved from this operation during 2022, how many were -		Your number sold or moved in 2022
	a. Calves-sold or moved from this operation in 2022 weighing less than 500 pounds?		
	b. Cattle sold or moved from this operation in 2022, including calves weighing 500 pounds or more?		
4	Report gross value of sales of cattle and calves in 2022. Include the value of your landlard's share, marketing charges, taxes, hauling, etc. Exclude dollars for items produced under production contracts.		
	INCLUDE * basif and dairy cattle for breeding stock, and beef and dairy cult anemals * fed cattle, stockers, and feeders * year calves, etc. 1339	п	Gross Value of Sales (Collars)
			110
5.0		ш	S .00
6,	CATTLE IN FEEDLOTS FOR SLAUGHTER MARKET NOLUDE * steem and before for staughter market * steem and before for staughter market * cover and before * table being backgrounded, paskwood only, fod for home that sell grade select or before the cover and before *		
	How many steers and heifers reported in item 2c above were on feed December 31, 2022, and were or will be shipped directly from your feedfol to slaughter market? Exclude cattle being backgrounded 1897.		Number on this operation December 31, 2022
	Now many of the steers and heifers sold during 2022 reported in item 3b above were shipped directly from your feedful to a staughter market?		Number sold or moved #= 2002
	Exclude any of your cattle custom fed in feedfals operated by others. Exclude cattle sold as feeders. Only		

SE	CTION 16 HOGS AND PIG	S			
1.	Did you or anyone else have any hogs only the hogs on the land you operate	or pigs	on this operation in 2022	? If you are a contrac	stor or integrator, report
	NELLIDE • hogs grown for others on a contact basis.		EXCLUDE • host on	wn by someone also on	a custom or contract basis
	1311 1 Yes - Complete this section		■ No - Go to SECTI		
				Mark 107	Number on the operation
			at 2000	il None	-December 31, 2022
2.	Total number of hogs and pigs on hand	neceo	mer-31, 2022	0015 LI	Total number sold or
3.	Number of hogs and pigs sold or move.	d from t	his operation during 2022		moved in 2022
100	including feeder pigs	- 140		6600 🗖	
4.	Report gross value of sales for hogs an				Gross Value of Sales (Ciolars)
	2022. Include the value of your landford hauling, etc. Exclude dollars for items p				\$,0
5:	Mark one item which best describes the	s type o	of operation:		
	Farrow to weart 1942 C] Fam	row to finish	Finish only	1118
	Farrow to feeder] Nur	sery 1346 🗆	Other, specify	
6.	Mark one item which best describes this	s type o	of producer:	1215	
	Independent grower		Contract grower (contra	ictee)	Contractor or integrator
_					
SE	GTION 17 HORSES, PONIE	ES, M	ULES, BURROS, A	AND DONKEYS	140000
1	Old you or anyone else have any horse	s, ponii	es, mules, burros, or dank	eys on this operation	
4	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section	s, ponii	es, mulles, burros, or donk No - Go to SECTI	eys on this operation	
1. Res	Old you or anyone else have any horse	s, ponii	rs, mules, burros, or donk No - Go to SECTI 2	eys on this operation ON 18	
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any horse **247 *	s, ponii in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI charges, bases, haufin	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold	in 2022?
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any horse **247 *	s, ponii n in 202 market	es, mules, burros, or donk No - Go to SECTI Ling charges, bases, haulin	eys on this operation ON 18 g, etc.	in 2022?
f. Res.	Did you or anyone else have any horse **247 *	s, ponii n in 202 market steri "X"	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI charges, bases, haufin	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold	in 2022? Situat Value of Salas in 2022 (Cottan)
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any horse **247 *	n in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI charges, bases, haufin	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold	In 2022? Strom Value of Salas in 2022 (Colum) \$ 0
1. Res.	Did you or anyone else have any home **247 *	s, ponie	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI charges, bases, haufin	oys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	STURE Value of Salas in 2022 (Cotars) S 0 S 0
1. Res.	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section port inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share, Homes and porses CWNED by this operation. 0872 Horses and porses NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Home breeding or stud fees, samon, an (Exclude income from boarding, training	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	Serum Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru) S 0 S 0 Gram Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru)
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any horse 1247 * Yes - Complete this section nort inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share. Horses and porses CWNED by this operation. 8872 Horses and poness NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Horse breeding or stud fees, semon, an	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	In 2022? Drum Value of Salas in 2023 (Collars) S 0 S 0 S 0 Crass Value of Salas in 2023
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section port inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share, Homes and porses CWNED by this operation. 0872 Horses and porses NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Home breeding or stud fees, samon, an (Exclude income from boarding, training	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	Serum Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru) S 0 S 0 Gram Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru)
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section port inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share, Homes and porses CWNED by this operation. 0872 Horses and porses NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Home breeding or stud fees, samon, an (Exclude income from boarding, training	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	Serum Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru) S 0 S 0 Gram Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru)
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section port inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share, Homes and porses CWNED by this operation. 0872 Horses and porses NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Home breeding or stud fees, samon, an (Exclude income from boarding, training	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	Serum Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru) S 0 S 0 S 0 Gram Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru)
1. Res	Did you or anyone else have any home 1247 * Yes - Complete this section port inventory and sales for this operation clude the value of your landlord's share, Homes and porses CWNED by this operation. 0872 Horses and porses NOT owned by this operation. 0822 Mules, burros, and donkeys. 0833 Home breeding or stud fees, samon, an (Exclude income from boarding, training	in 202 market	No - Go to SECTI No - Go to SECTI Cong charges, bases, haufin Number on this operation December 31, 2822	eys on this operation ON 18 g. etc. Total Number Sold in 2022	Serum Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru) S 0 S 0 S 0 Gram Value of Salus in 2022 (Dotaru)



SE	CTION 18 SHEEP AND G	OATS						
**	Did this operation own or custom feed NOLLIDE * sheep and goals on public or malested page goals on land used cost has a sheep and goals on land used cost has a sheep and goals grown or fed on this op on a custom or contract basis.	importy a	ender -	XCLUEN Shoop o	nd gouts	ds in 2022, re grown or fod by ar contract bas	aomeone	
* 1	1102 • Yes - Complete this section of for this operation in 2022, include in the value of sales the value	on .	3 No - Go	o SECT	BON 19	i.		
	f your landlons's share, marketing harges, taxes, hauling, etc.	Mark TX*	Number owned or fed on December			number sold at wed as 2022	Gitt	es Value of Silves (Dokars)
2	Sheep and lambs						5	.00
	a. Hair sheep or wool-hair crosses]			
3	Goats and kids a. Angora goats and kids						s	.00
	b. Milk goats and kids	0			1		s	.00
	c. Meet goats and kids, other goats and kids						5	.00
4.	Sheep and goat products		Total amount on in 2022	duced		amount sold or owd in 2022	, Gri	Ex Váluo of Sales (Detars)
7.1	a. Wool shom			bi.		-	s	.00
	b. Mohair clipped			No.		Sec.	5	00
	c. Milk from sheep and goals rare		amana.	HAVE	3000		8	.00
1. 2.	CTION 19 AQUACULTUR Did you or anyone else have any aquiness. 1157 t Yes - Complete this section of the columns below for all aquacinological include the value of your landford's include all sizes for each type. Include food size, fingerings, fry, as exclude wild-caught products.	on on others ra	3 No - Go I	o SECT	DON 20 2022 R	eport aquatic p		
	Enter Aquaculture Type Cod		fool pounds said or moved in 2022			number and wed in 2022	50	(Dofers)
				91			8	.00
				OF			5	.00
				105			S	.00
				OR			5	00
# m	orn space is needed, use a separate sheet	of paper	3					
AC	UACULTURE CODE	AQUAC	ULTURE		CODE	AGUAÇULT	URE	CODE
Oth ope	Ash	for food, crabs, et Mollusia	pans (crawfish shrimp, softshell (c.) s (clams, cysters, etc coas fish			Sport or game Other aquacu- include algae, cawar, turtles, specify above	turs prod stigators sto.,	



SE	CTION 20 POULTRY			
1.	Did you or anyone else have any poultry, such as chicker this operation in 2022? Include poultry grown for others or	ns, turke n a cont	ys, ducks, emus, ostriches, ract besis.	etc., on
	1217 t 🔲 Yes - Complete this section 3 🔲 No	- Go to	SECTION 21	
2.	VALUE OF SALES - Report gross value of sales for poul and other poultry products. Include the value of your land marketing charges, taxes, flauling, etc. Exclude dollars for under production contracts.	ord a sh	are, if None	Gross Value of Sales (Dollars)
3.	CHICKENS	a di	Number on this operation	Total number said or moved
		Abrit "A" if Home	December 31, 2022	from this operation in 2022
	b. Table egg layers = Include those for home use			
	Hatching layers for meet-types – Include layers for broilers, roasters, and other meat-types			
	d. Hatching layers for table eggs			
	e. Pullets for laying flock replacement			
4	TURKEYS			
	Turkeys raised for meat production - Exclude breeders			
	b. Turkey term and toms kept for breeding 1227			
	c Turkey brooders, immature beds for further growout on another farm	п		
15.	ALL OTHER POULTRY - Fill in the columns below for all Enter the poultry type and code from the table below.		outry on this operation in 20	122.
	Ester Poultry Type	Code	Number on 71s operation December 31, 2022	Total number soil or moved from the operation in 2022
	T more space is needed, use a separate shear of paper. OTHER POULTRY CODE OTHER POULTS	100	CODE OTHER PO	ULTRY CODE
	Bantams 0934 Guintum Chukurs 1275 Hungarian partridg Ducks 0904 Guinches	os		quate 9908 . 9912 7281 9968
6	POULTRY HATCHED a. All poultry hatched in this operation's hatcheries in 20 poults, ducklings, etc. Include poultry custom hatched	22. Inclu	Mark '91' if None ro opin	Number fulltheit or this speciation in 2022
	b. What type(s) of poultry was hatched in this operation 1291		The state of the s	ipply:

SECTION 21 COLO	MIES OF U	ONEV DEEC	0:			7
Did this operation own to		With the Park				
1 Ves - Comp	ele this section	□ No ·	Go to SECTION	22		
0	Number of clames owned on ecomber 31, 2022		Largest number of honey producing colonies owned in 2022	Honey collected in 2022, requireless of location (Pounds)	Gross Value of Hone (Dotar	y and the same
Colonies of honey bees owned					5	00
SECTION 22 OTHE	R LIVESTO	CK				
1. Did you or anyone else !	tave other livest	ock on this operati	ion in 2022?			
+128 1 🖂 Yes - Comp		The second second	Go to SECTION	21		
Fill in the columns below table below include the value of your Exclude from sales dol	for all other live ur landlord's shi	estock on this oper are, marketing cha	ration in 2022. En	ter the livestock ty	pe and code from	n the
Enter Usestick Type	Emur.	Number on this op December 31, 2	oration Total is	indust sold in 2022	Gross Value (Cotan	
		or seconds of the			8	.00
					5	.00
					is .	
	-				S	.00
Secretary and the second secon	TARREST CONTRACTOR	Marian.			S	.00
If more space is needed, use a s		1770			SHIROMO:	UNUSCA
OTHER LIVESTOCK		THER LIVESTOCK			10001100	000E
Abacus Fackage beta Bass, other than boney or package bess. Blace	4790 Eli	in captivity in captivity borutary animals anda	08 48	C Live rabbins 12 (raport pells in Warms	or pells in SECTION SECTION 29) specify above	1108
SECTION 23 LIVES	TOCK PRO	DUCTS				
1. Did you or anyone else :	ete this section	‡ □ No	Go to SECTION	24		
 Fill in the columns below type and code from the t * include the value of yo • Exclude from sales do! 	able below. ur landlord's shi	are, marketing cha	rges, taxes, hauli		the livestock pr	oduct
Emar Liverbook Product Typ	e Enter Code	Quantity Produced	in 2002	Unit 1	Gross Value : ¡Dotan	
					5	.00
					s	.00
I more specific needed, use a s	aparate sheet of a	saper				-
OTHER LIVESTOCK PRODU		CODE	OTHER LIVEST	OCK-PRODUCTS	E .	CODE
Beeswar Breeding fees Embryos For or palls (include mink)		4961 4940 4943 4943	Homs Manury sold	unts not listed, speci		4949 4952 4955 4958



	* [Yes - Con	iplete In	s nection	201	3	No -	Go to SE	ECT	10N 25		r)		
gro	own or oved fr	rais om	or of head led under this opera	producti tion in 2	on cont		and	Miek "X" If None		93.0	ity moved operation 122	Det		Tar	fal distar amount received as 2022 for delivering convencessas under production contracts (Column)
a	Brole	rs a	nd other	meat-typ	e chick	HOS.	1904		i d			time	3304	5	
7b.	Chick	on s	1998				1505					Maker	1506	S	
5	Layer	4					1302					hinte	2002	\$	
d	Puller	s fo	r laying fic	ock repla	cemen	h :-	£ = 1300					Minte	3300	5	
180	Turks	ys .	vario.	(ma)	W-1775	116	1907					timb	1007	S	
ŧ			ed cattle s - Exclude						_						
	for yo	u b	y others.	Canada C	and the same		1000					Name	3006	S	į.
9	Repli	cen	ment dairy	heders.	15515	272	1901					need	1905	\$	
h	Hogs	and	pigs				1500					Need	3000	S	
18			de, sheep pe	üvesto	k, or p	ouilty	te:								
1140							1910			_			3330	5	
1	Grain	s ar	nd oilseed	s – spec	ly type	-		2.1346						1.4	
141		Sel a to	Marine Marine	a arlesso	A PRINCES	70	1	п	-			avi)		9	
	Vege	bable	es and oth	er crops	_		Jane	Living .				District of the last		12	
e de	speci	fy ty	pe -	MITAL AND										_	
-							1312						2312	\$	
1.	Vege		es and off	er crops											
tiel		OCP N					tana			_		- 1	2312	s	
140	Se de	ness	ts final wa	en north	By ne ne	-mnl	-		riday For		tractor(s)			-	
331	-	For		VIE-KEEVEN	1324	O IFA	Seed	un pro-	10000		Supplies				
121	0				1918										
	L	and	eder livest poultry	DCK.		П	Fertilizer and imp		1	ш	Utilities				
133	۵ ا	Bre	eding live	slock	tats		Chemica	sis	1506		Other, or	ecify -	148		
193	2 0	Title I	terinary se	and the second	1321	1-1	Fuels		1915	-	None				



SE	CTIO	N 2	5	C	R	G٨	N	IC	AC	RI	cu	LTU	RE															
10	During																								n (N	OP)	170	
	3601		Yes		Cor	npli	elo	this	ner	ction		1		No	- Go	to	SEC	TION	26									
2.	Report											ly.								- 3	0007	C.	styw	g Ap	enny			
	9860		US	DA	NO)P	cer	tifin	d ar	gan	ic pr	odusi	ion	1		**	125	L										-
	3625								c pro		tion	exem	npn f	rom	certif	ici	tion (попел	opt in	produ	ction	nan	matiy	ĺ				
	3504		Acr	nes	trae	nsit	ani	ing	into	US	DA.	IOP (egn	nic p	rodu	céc	on.											
	2500		Pro	odu	ctici	n:a	cice	ırdir	ng to	us	SDA	NOP	star	ndan	in bu	t N	OT o	ortific	nd or	nichtrig	4	_	-	cs.V			The same	
3.	What v														i în 2	102	27		. 540	Mark of No.	*	s	1000		istia		ates.	.00
SI	CTIO	N 2	6	P	'R	AC	TI	CE	s																			
1	At any			200					200										2227				116323	ernt	er's	resid	denc	æ?
126	u , D	Yes	+ Re	opo	nt ti	ne 1	ypr	ı of	ser	vice	that	was	ute	d to	acce	10	the ir	derre	st. Ma	ek all	that a	apply	r.					
		1265		0 8	eflu	iar tph	dat	in pi		for a				1266		5		n Inte	arnet.			1779		Do	n ti	kinds	ij	
		1221		B	ross ervi	dipp on	nd	(high at	s ca		fibe	terne r opti		1201			iai-up ervice					1268	0	Ot be	her. low	spe	cify	
	10	New	/De	46	ne-	No.	1400	Printer.	Mille		8)								12	100								
2	At any						did	(thi	s ne	wich	fion-																	
	a Re	ceive	e irrec	300	00.1	wat	mr I	HLEH	plied	d by	aU	E B	Jene	u of	Reci	am	ution	proje	cf							er.		
																			****					Ye		3		No
	h. Pro																		Process		172	5.1.		Yes		3		No
	c Pro	fers	or w	ind	bre	pin	1	prve	pas	ture	, or	orest	HAM	ning	ar I	MA	e ripe	man	noresi	W.50	173	C.J.		Ye		2		No
	d. Har																			4555	C129	0 7		Ye		3		No
	e. Har	ve m						g fac	dility	for	dish	ibutir	ig vi	ngeti	bles	p	otato	ns, fo	at, ni	ės,	175			Ye		3		No
						1000		7		916 916				215 215							175	6 1		Ye		3		No
	g Ha	ve a	tian	ith	art v	vas	bu	ilt p	nar	to 1	900	ž									173	0 1		Ye		3		No
3.	During	202	2 di	d ti	his a	ope	rati	on I	proc	duce	and	sell	arry	proc	esse	d e	or vari	ue-ac	ided :	roduc	du fre	om II	5 04	m ac	mau	hurs	al .	
	WCLUI	DE WWW.												EXC.	X.UOV	E p	wchas		nd iva									
	1728		Yes	6 -	Car	ntin	ue)					1		No	G	10	SEC	TiOf	1 27				Geo	CE V	ahao Istiaa		alos	
	a. Ho	w mic value								2 for	the	sales	ol	the p	roce	851	ed.	1111	2.011	27	27	S		- 0	-sarani)	-977		.00
																272	-				STEEL ST							
	b. Ple	ase:	spec	ify	the	pto	oce	sse	d or	val	ue a	dded	pro	doct(s)		L											

S	ECTION 27 FOOD MARKETING PRACTICES			
1	A STATE OF THE STATE OF T	norte di	and month with	on food for
2,8-	humans to eat or drink directly to:			
	 Include processed food products (also known as value-added food products) Exclude non-edible products such as hay, livestock fed or raised, cut flowers no trees, nursery products; commodities produced under production contracts; and 	intend	led for consu	mption, Christmas
			Grine	Value of Spins
a.	Consumers (individuals who purchased your products from 4355 ± ☐ Yes → farmers markets, on-farm stores or farm stands, roadside	4160	\$.00
	stands or stores, CSA [Community Supported Agriculture], online marketplaces, etc.)? 3 No			
b.		4163	\$.00
	caterers, independently owned grocery stores, food cooperatives, etc.)?			
0	Institutions (k-12 schools, colleges or universities, hospitals, 4164 ± 🖂 Yes 💠	4165	s	.00
	workplace cafelerias, prisons, foodbanks, etc.)7.			
11	Intermediate markets (businesses or organizations in the middle of the supply chain marketing locally-and/or regionally-branded products, such as distributors, food hubs.	4167	s	.00
	brokers, audion houses, wholesale and terminal I No			
2	Specify products sold reported above:			
S	ECTION 28 FERTILIZERS, CHEMICALS, AND SOIL COND	TION	EDS ADS	NIED.
T				
To be	other chemicals used on this operation during 2022?	or penso	oues, grows	- roquedione to
	#YOUNDE * not phosphate, line, and gypsum as fertilizer EXCLUDE * pretrivated seeds			
	1568 1 🔲 Yes - Complete this section 3 🔲 No - Go to SECTION 29			
2	Acres to which commercial fertilizer and soil conditioners were applied -	Mars "X" if None	No	other of Acres
	a. Cropland in 2022 - Exclude cropland used only for pasture			
	Pastureland and rangeland acres in 2022 - Include cropland used only for pasture or grazing			
3.	Acres of cropland and pastureland on which animal manure was applied 156/	0		
4	Acres of cropland and/or pastureland treated with organic fertilizer according to USDA's National Organic Program (NOP) standards. 1570		\equiv	
5				
	The same acres can be reported in more than one item below. However, report acres only once for each item, regardless of the number of applications.		Mu	mer of Acres
	a Insects ease			
	b. Weeds, grass, or brush - Include both pre-emergence and post emergence one			
	c. Nematodes			
	d. Diseases in crops and orchards such as blight, smut, rust, etc			
-	Acres of crops treated to control growth, thin truit, open, or defoliate			
0	Peres of crops freezed to control grown, clini trus, riper, or detolution	The state of the s		

	COTION OF					- 40
St	CTION 29 RENEWABLE ENERGY					
1.	During 2022, what types of renewable energy prod. Mark all that apply.	icing s	ystems were on this operati	on, regan	dless of ownership?	
	3614 G	option	nat/Geoexchange system	3618	□ None	
	3615 🗆 Wind turbines 🗀 Si	rust tryc	tro system			
	Methane digesters with D Or	her, sp	ecify -			
2	On the land owned by this operation, were any win	d rights	lensed to others?	week 1	□ van 2 □ N	les :
				661114-60	C. H. WORKSEL W.	
100	CTION 30 MACHINERY AND EQUI				i tan ing u	
N.	For the items listed below, report the number on the and implements used for the farm or ranch business	s in 20	21 or 2022 and usually kep	t on the o	machinery, equipment peration.	
		Mark To	Number of the aperation December 51, 2022	Marx W	Of thise, the number manufactured in the la 5 years (2018-2022)	aut:
	a Trucks, including pickups					
	b. Tractors less than 40 horsepower (PTO) - Exclude garden tractors					
	(PTO) = Exclude garden fractors					
	d. Tractors 100 horsepower (PTO)					
	or more					
	e. Grain and been combines, self-propelled. 5850					
	f. Cotton pickers and strippers, self-propelled					
	g. Forage harvesters, self-propelled essi					
	h. Hay balers					
SE	CTION ST FARM LABOR				·	
1.	What was the total number of HIRED farm or ranch	, marantan	re including maid	788	mx Farmer	1000
	family members and office workers, who -		S100 1 50	1.40	Numbur of Work	gris .
	Worked less than 150 days on this operation in					
2	 b. Worked 150 days or more on this operation in 2 What was the number of foreign and domestic MIG 			. 10042		
	in 2022? A migrant worker is a farm worker whose that prevented the migrant worker from returning to residence the same day, include hired and contract	employ his/he	ment required travel permanent place of	3402	0	
a.	What was the number of UNPAID farm or rench we	orkers,	including			
177	family members and office workers, who worked or	this to	m or ranch?	. 3401	u [
				1110000		

SE	COTION 32 PRODUCTION EXPENSES			
Res	out total production expenses paid by this operation in 2022. **NOCLUDE** ** expenses poid by you and your fundents ** expenses poid by you and your fundents ** expenses not return **any expenses paid to			gg gg
EXI	PENSES PAID BY THIS OPERATION AND ITS LANDLORD(S)	Mark "X" If Name		Dobers
	and other organic materials. Include the cost of any custom application 1501		S	.00
2	Chemicals purchased such as insecticides, herbicides, fungicides, other pesticides, etc. Include the cost of custom application 180		\$.00
3.	or other fees, seed treatments, and seed cleaning cost. Exclude items purchased for resale without addisonal growth		\$.00
	Mark XX Duties	1		
	a. Of the total in item 3, how much was for sover crop seed?			
42	Breeding livestock purchased or leased, regardless of age. Include dairy cattle		\$.00
5.	All other livestock and poultry purchased or leased. Include stocker and feeder cattle, calves, sheep, lambs, feeder pigs, chicks, pullets, poults, horses, fish, goats, bee colonies, etc. Include livestock leasing expense		\$.00
5.	Feed purchased for livestock and poultry, Include grain, hay, silage, mixed feeds, concentrates, supplements, premixes, etc		5	00
7,	Gasoline, fuels, and oils purchased for the familibusiness, Include diesel, natural gas, LP gas, motor oil, grease, etc		\$	20
8	Utilities purchased for the farm business. Include electricity, farm share of telephone, water purchased, etc		\$	00
9.	Repairs, supplies, and maintenance cost for the farm business		5	00
10.	Labor -			
	A. Hired farm and ranch labor. Include employer's cost for social security, worker's compensation, health and life insurance premiums, pension plans, etc. 7510 7510 7510 7510		s	00
	Contract labor. Include expenses for labor, such as harvesting of fruit, vegetables, benies, etc. performed on a contract basis by a contractor, crew leader, etc.		s	.00
33.	Customwork and custom hauling, such as custom planting, harvesting, etc. and custom hauling of grain, livestock, milk, manure, etc		\$.00
12	Rent -		2	100
	a. Cash rent paid in 2022 for land and buildings. Include grazing fees	ш	5	.00
96	share of vehicles. Exclude custom hire		5	.00
34.	Interest paid on debts - a. Secured by real estate		\$	00
	b. Not secured by real entate		5	.00
14	Property taxes paid in 2022 Include farm real estate, muchinery, livestock, etc. for the farm business. Exclude taxes paid by this operation's landlords.		\$.00
15.	Medical supplies, veterinary, and oustom services for livestock include artificial insemination (Al), branding, breeding fees, caponiting, carcass removal, castrating, custom feed processing, homone injections,			
	performance testing, pregnancy testing, saining, sheep thepring, etc. Exclude manure disposal		\$.00
16	Other production expenses, include storage and warehousing, marketing expenses, insurance, vehicle registration fees, etc. Exclude health insurance premiums and payrol/ taxes	п	5	20
	Service and the service and period interest and the service an	Maria.	Live .	20
17.	Total production expenses (add items 1-16)		s	.00

	Mark 1		Dollars	
How much did your landlord(s) pay for the production expenses for this operation in 2022?	1818	s		
What was the value of your landlord's share of the total sales produced by this operation? Exclude cash rent	1349	5		
What was the total depreciation expense claimed by this operation in 2022 for all capital assets? Estimate 2022 from 2021 if necessary	1620	5		
CTION 33 MARKET VALUE OF LAND, BUILDINGS	MACHIN	ERY,	AND EQUI	PMEN
Report your estimate of the current market value of land and buildings reported in SECTION 1.	Mark *		Estimated Mark (Dollars)	
a. All land and buildings owned:	0006 🗆	5		
b. All land and buildings rented or leased from others		\$		
c. All land and buildings rented or leased to others	oom 🗆	s		
What is your estimate of the current value of all machinery, equipment, and implements used for farm-related activities on			Estimated Man	
This operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? WILLIDE - the following if wapt on this operation and used for this form or reach b care * house * hadons * hadons * tools * daily equipment * combines * private * drieks * harrows * migation equipment * pumps * motors * fairles * feeders * grading and moning equipment *		\$		
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	nent etc	-		
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	ment etc. CES or -	in or	Grees O	ollaris
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? ***NOCLUDE** The full owing if kept on this operation and used for this farm or raison is ***care** ***Inches** ***Inches	nant etc. CES or -		Gross D	lollers
This operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? ***NOCLUDE*** the full owing if work on this operation and used for this farm or ranch is **core *** trucks *** tracker*** *** tools *** daily equipment *** combines *** phines *** drinks *** harrows *** migation equipment *** pumps *** motors *** famile *** feeders *** grading and racing equipment *** stryers *** computers ***CTION 34*** INCOME FROM FARM-RELATED SOURCE out the grass dollar amount received before taxes and expenses in 2022 for the grass dollar amount received before taxes and expenses in 2022 for such as plowing, planting, spraying, harvosting, preparing products for market, etc. Exclude if customwork was an entirely separate business from your agricultural operation. Payments received from cash rent or share payments from renting out farmland and/or buildings, or payments from lease of allotments. Include payments for livestock pastured on a per head basis, per month.	rent etc. CES or - rrs. 4	ark 73° Nooni	s	otara
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	cent etc	ark for None		olars
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	CES or - ms. Mr. 1902	ark 73° Nooni	s	ipliars
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	CES or - ms. Mr. 1902	ark 73° Nooni	s	otara
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? *********************************	CES or - ms. M ms. comp		s s	iolara:
this operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2822? *********************************	ment etc. CES or - ms. 46 m. 6002		\$ \$	offatur:
This operation, regardless of ownership, on December 31, 2022? ***NOCLUDE*** the full owing if work on this operation and used for this farm or raison in some some some some some some some some	CES of - mo. 462		\$ \$	otara

SE	AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITY WITHIN THE BORDERS OF AMERICAN INDIAN RESERVATIONS, PUEBLOS, AND SERVICE AREAS
1.	Did this operation use any land for livestock or cropland within the borders of an American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area at any time during 2022? Include owned, deeded, tribal, or allotted land.
	1055 1 ☐ Yes - Complete this section 3 ☐ No - Gp to SECTION 36
2.	Enter the name and state of the American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area where the agricultural activity occurred.
	Resensation, Puetro, or Service Area Name 1952 State
3.	How many total sores did this operation use for livestock or cropland within this Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area in 2022? Exclude land used on a per head or animal unit month (AUM) basis.
	a. How many of these acres were harvested cropland?
f	In 2022, did this operation have any livestock within the borders of an American Indian Reservation. Pueblo, or Service Area? Include livestock on land used on a per head or animal unit morth (ALM) basis.
	1065 Yes - Continue 3 No - Go to SECTION 36
	a. On December 31, 2022, what percent of this operation's livestock was on this Reservation, Pueblo, or Service Area?
	1857 1 □ None 2 □ 26 - 50 percent 2 □ 76 - 99 percent
	2 🖂 1 - 2S percent 4 🖂 51 - 75 percent 4 🖂 100 percent (all livestock)
ŞE	CONCLUSION
1.	Is it possible that the agricultural activity information reported for this operation could also be reported by another operation?
	1080
	Possible Duplicate Name Address
	1001
	City Statu Zo
	1084 J 1086
2	Do you (the individual named on the label) make any day-to-day decisions for another farm or ranch? It is important that the Census of Agriculture accurately accounts for all of your farm or ranch operations. 1088
	Additional Farm or Ranch Area Code and Phone Number Check if out phone
	1000
	a. Did you receive a 2022 Cereaus of Agriculture report form for this additional farm or ranch?
	tokr t □ Yes # □ No
	 b. Did you include all data from this additional farm or ranch on THIS REPORT? Do not make changes to the data in this report, regardless of your answer.
	1001 1 🗆 Yes 🗼 🗆 No
3.	Return your form in the envelope provided. Thank you for your participation.

INSTRUCTION SHEET UNITED STATES 2022 CENSUS OF AGRICULTURE Your report is due February 6, 2023

Who Should Report?

A reply is required from EVERYONE who receives a report form, including persons who operated a firm, ranch, or other agricultural operation in 2022, anyone who has any agricultural activity, as well as those who were not involved in agricultural activity, as well as those who were not involved in agricultural You may complete your report form online. Go to www.agcounts.iisda.gov and enter your unique 12-digit survey code from the Census maining label. More Census information is in the Internet at www.agconsis.iisda.gov.

If you do not complete the form online or return your report form by mail, you will continue to receive contacts from us.

If you were a landlord only and rented out all your land, complete the front page. Section 1, and Section 36 on the back page of the enclosed report form and return it in the preaddressed return envelope. If you were a landlord, but still operated other land yourself, you should complete the entire report form for that land which you operated.

If you had no land, no livestock, and no agricultural operations, return the report form with a note indicating your status on the front of the form below the address label.

Partial Year Operations - If you stopped farming, ranching, or producing agricultural products during 2022, complete the report forms for the portion of the year that you did farm. Write "Supped farming during 2022" and the dule you stopped below the address area. Mail the completed report form in the preaddressed return envelope. If the person whose name is on the label was deceased during 2022, complete the form for the portion of the year that they farmed, and write a note.

Involved in More Than One Operation -If you made decisions for more than one operation, you may have received a report form for each operation. Provide information for each operation on a separate form. To obtain additional report forms, or if you have questions, please call the toll-free help line at 1-888-424-7828.

Partnership Operation - Complete only ONE form for the entire partnership's agricultural operation and include the entire operation on that one form. If you made day-to-slay decisions for mother operation, complete a report form for each separate operation. We have listed all known partners below the address area to assist in defining the operation. Make any necessary corrections to these names.

If you owned farm or ranch land in 2022 that was tille and NOT rented out, you should complete and return the report form. If all the cropland was enrolled in conservation programs like CRP, complete the form and include these acres.

Specialty Commodities - Horses, bees, elk, emus, mink, fish, nursery, hemp, etc., are an important part of the agriculture industry. Report for all commodities, regardless of the amount of production or sales you had in 2022.

Land in Federal conservation programs in 2022 - If you had land in the Conservation Reserve Program (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), Farmable Wetlands Program (FWP), or Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) and you made the decisions on the acres, include the conservation land on the report form in Sections 1, 2, and 6.

Received More Than One Report Form for the Same Operation - If you received more than one report form for the same operation, complete only ONE form per operation. Write "Duplicate" below the address area of each extra form. Return all forms in the same return envelope with your completed form so that we can correct our records.

Entering Your Responses - Use BLUE or BLACK INK only. Enter your response in the unit requested, i.e., dollars, bushels, tons, etc. When reporting dollars, report in whole dollars only. Convert fractions to decimals. Please print clearly and keep numbers and letters within the white boxes. Mark all applicable Yes/No and None boxes with an "X".

SECTION 1 - ACREAGE IN 2022

Your unswers in this section will determine the land (Acres in "THIS OPERATION") referred to throughout the report form, include all land owned, rented, or used by you, your spouse, or by the partnership, corporation, or organization named on the fruit page of the form, regardless of location or use during 2022, even if only for part of the year. Include cropland, non-tillable land, land in government programs such as Conservation Reserve Program (CRP), Wetlands Reserve Program (WRP), etc., pastureland and rangeland, woodland and idle land, farmstends, buildings, and structures. Include only actively managed tidelands Exclude residential or commercial land. Report land in whole acres.

Item 1 (Box A) - Report all land owned in 2022 whether held under deed, purchase contract or mortgage, homestead law, or as heir/heiress or trustee of an undivided estate. Include all land owned by your and/or your sponse, or by the partnership, corporation, or organization named on the front of the form.

Hem 2 (Box B) - Report all land rented or leased front others by you or your operation. Include water area leased for aquaculture production. Exclude land used under private, Government grazing permits, or on a fee per head or attimud unit month (AUM) basis (Taylor Grazing, Section 3 Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and USDA Forest Service land). BLM Section 15 land leased by your operation with a specified acreage tract should be included here even though your fees to BLM are paid ou an AUM basis.

Henr J (Box C) - Include all land rented out to others for any purpose if it was part of the acreage reported in Items 1 and 2. Your tenant(s) will receive a form to report production for the land they rent. Do not report land placed in conservation programs as acres rented to others. Do not report land used by others on a fee per fixed or animal unit month (AUM) basis.

Rem 3a - Report all land owned by the operation and rented or leased to others.

Rem 4 (Box D) - This is all land you operated at any time in 2022.
Land use in Section 2 should be reported for these acres.

Item 5 Total acres equals zero (0) - After completing Section 1, if the acres in hem 4, BOX D equal zero and you did not raise or own any fiveatock, aquaculture, or poultry in 2022, write a description of land use in the space by question 5. Complete Section 36 and mail the report form in the return envelope.

Item 6 - Exclude BLM Section 15 land leased on a per head or AUM basis.

SECTION 2 - LAND USE IN 2022

The total acres from Items 1 - 4 entered in BOX E should equal the total acres in Section 1, Item 4, BOX D. These acres represent "this operation" for this Census report. If these two numbers are not the same, please GO BACK and CORRECT your figures. Do not report any crops grown on land rented or leased to others or worked by others on shares during 2022.

Land used for more than one purpose - Do not report the san acreage in more than one of the listed categories. If part or all of your land was used for more than one listed purpose in 2022, report that land only in the first purpose listed. For example, if you planted and harvested a grain crop and grazed the crop residue in the fall, report the land in Item Ia, cropland harvested. Do not report those acres again in Item To pasture or grazing land. CRP/WRP and other conservation programs - Report these acres in the Items in this section that best describe them. For example, CRP land may be reported in cropland harvested. cropland idle, or woodland not pastured depending on its use. Item In - Land maintained for orchards or vineyards is included even if the crop failed or the trees or vines are not of bearing age. Abandoned acres of orchards or vineyards which are not maintained for production should be reported in Item Id. Harvested cropland includes acres of trees for fruit, nuts, and berries along with acres of grape vines, Christmas trees, and short rotation woody crops in production. Do not include the area harvested for timber or firewood. If more than one crop was

harvested from the same land in 2022, report that land as cropland harvested only since.

Hem 1h - Include land you intended to harvest but had to abandon or where the crop failed.

Hew Ie - Include cropland left unseeded for the 2022 hurvest and tilled summer fallow, or treated with herbicides to control weeds and conserve moisture. Include cropland summer fallowed in 2022 even though it may have been planted to wheat, etc., for the 2021 hurvest.

Bem 4 - Include tidelines actively managed for aquaculture production, whether owned or rented from others. Include other water area leased for the production of aquaculture.

SECTION 3 - LAND RENTED OR LEASED FROM OTHERS FOR

Report for cropland and pastureland leased on a per acre bases for each only. Exclude flex and share rent arrangements. Also, exclude aquaculture arrangements. For each rental agreements that include itselfings and buildings, only report the acres of cropland and pastureland.

SECTION 4 - LAND USE PRACTICES

Hem 1h - Land drained by ditches refers only to manmade ditches installed to improve drainage, not natural waterways.

Item Ic - A conservation easument limits the right to develop the land, now and in the future.

Hems 2a through d - Include all coopland acres planted in the operation with the practice, not just cropland harvested. Conservation tillage leaves 30 percent or more of the soil surface covered by crop residue after planting. Reduced tillage leaves between 15 and up to 30 percent of the soil surface cover by crop residue. Conventional tillage has leaves less than 15 percent of the soil surface covered.

SECTION 5 - DOUGATION

Report land equipped for irrigation and its use. Exclude land used for aquiculture unless the same land was used to grow crops as well. If the same land is irrigated multiple times, it should only be counted once.

tiem 2 - Report all acres of (trigated harvested cropland, including acres with orchards (bearing or not), acres with perennial crops, and land with crops under protection.

Rem 3 — Report all acres of irrigated other land, including pasture, rangeland, failed cropland, and all other non-harvested cropland. Excludes woodlands, woodland pasture, wastelands, livestock facilities, pounds, and roads.

Dem 4 - Include all acres irrigated in 2022 (lients 2 and 3) and acres that could have been irrigated in 2022 using the existing irrigation systems available regardless of water rights.

SECTION 6 - CROP INSURANCE, CONSERVATION RESERVE PROGRAM AND OTHER GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS

Hem 1 - Report all acres covered by any crop insurance policy in 2022. Include land in pasture insurance programs, and acres covered by guaranteed revenue policies.

Hems 3 and 4 - Exclude insurance payments received or any loan/program amount that must be repaid.

Item 5 - Report the amount received for commodities placed under a Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) loan during 2022. Include any amount received, even if the commodity was redeemed or forfested prior to December 31, 2022. Exclude CCC loans to build crop storage facilities.

Item 6 - Report the total amount to repay CCC loams in 2022, regardless of the crop year the loan was made.

SECTION? - TYPE OF ORGANIZATION

Them 2. The number of bouneholds that share in the net farm income are those households involved with the day-to-day decisions and not those households that received funds because they are landfords, custom equipment operators, or provide other supplies that are listed in Section 32, Production Expenses.

Use the following definitions to determine the type of organization for this operation. An operation organized as a Lamited Liability Company (LLC) may fall into any of the cutexories.

Family or individual operation - Farm or business organization controlled and operated by a family or an individual (sole proprietor). Include family operations that are not incorporated and not operated under a partnership agreement. Report family corporations under "incorporated under state law."

Partnership operation - Two or more persons who conduct an operation together and share work and profits. Co-ownership of land by spouses or joint filing of income tax forms by spouses does not constitute a partnership unless a specific agreement to share contributions, decision making, profits, and fiabilities exists. Production under contract or under a share rental agreement does not constitute a partnership.

Incorporated under state law - A corporation is a legal entity or artificial person created under the laws of a state to carry on a business, including family corporations. Exclude cooperatives, even if they are incorporated.

Other - Estate or trust, government facility, grazing association, American Indian Reservation, university farm, prison farm, institution run by a government or religious entity, cooperatives (an incorporated or unincorporated enterprise or an association created and formed jointly by the members), etc.

SECTION 8 - PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS

This section collects information about the persons making decisions for this operation.

Item 1 - Erner the number of men and the number of women involved in decisions for this operation. Do not report minor-aged children who only worked on the farm.

Item 2 - Complete one column for each person involved in making decisions for the farming operation for up to four persons. If there were more than four, answer for the four individuals most involved in the decision making for this operation.

REPORTING VALUE OF SALES

Report the value of all crops and livestock sold from this operation in 2022 in the appropriate commodity section. Report the sales in 2022 regardless of the year crops were burvested or raised. Include the value of your landlord's share of the commodities harvested. Report livestock as sold that you owned and moved to someone else's operation for further feeding, such as cartle. Report the gross value before the deduction of expenses, marketing charges, hauling fees, other fees, or income taxes, Include payments received in 2022 from cooperatives or murketing organizations for crops produced on this operation regardless of the year in which the crops were harvested. Also, include as sales your estimate of the value of any crop or livestock. removed from this operation in trade of services, such as baled hay for labor or other services. Report the total value you received for animals and poullry sold from this operation in 2022, without deducting production or marketing expenses (costs for feed, livestock purchase price, hauling, selling, etc.).

Exclude:

- Proceeds from CCC loans or other government payments.
- The value of sales of any cuttle, hoga, or poultry owned by you but kept and sold from a location you did not operate.
- The value of commodities grown under a production contract.

SECTION 9 - HAY AND FORAGE CROPS

Include hay and forage from alfalfa, wild or native grasses, and hay or forage from clovers, small grains, soybcans, and peanuts. Report production in tons or, for dry lay, bales and weight per bale. Any pasture or conservation land that had hay cut from it should be reported as cropland harvested in Section 2, Item 1a.

SECTION 18 - CULTIVATED CHRINIMAS TREES, SHORT ROTATION WOODY CROPS, AND MAPLE SYRUP

Item 2 - Acres in production of cultivated Christman trees include both those to be harvested in future years in well as those harvested in 2022. Trees cut should include only those trees cut in 2022.

Them 3 - A short rotation woody crop is a tree that is harvested in 10 years or less. These are trees for use by the paper or pulp industry or as engineered wood. Exclude trees cut for timber. Acres in production of short rotation woody crops include both those liarvested in 2022 and future years. Acres harvested should include only those harvested in 2022.

Item 4 - Producers should report number of taps and gallons of syrup. If sap was sold, estimate the number of gallons of syrup it would have produced. Report the acres of tapped maple trees in Section 2. Item 3, woodland not pastured.

SECTION II - FILLD CROPS.

Acres harvested - Enter the acres harvested in 2022. Round fractions to whole acres, except for tobacco and hops, where tenths should be reported.

Crops names not listed – For those seed or field crops not listed in the table that fall into the Other seeds (code 770) or Other field crops (code 752) entegories, please specify each crop on a separate line in the table along with the requested data.

Total production harvested - If your unit of measure is different than the unit requested on the report form, convert your figure for the production harvested to the unit requested. If the harvest was incomplete by December 31, 2022, estimate the total production to be harvested.

Acres irrigated - Report the irrigated harvested acres only once, even if the crop was irrigated multiple times during the growing season.

Double crupping - If two or more crops were harvested from the same land (double cropping), report the total acres and production of each harvested group.

of each harvested crop.

Interplanted crops - If two crops were grown at the same time in alternating strips in the same field, report the acreage of the field used for each crop.

Skip row planting - If a crop was planted in an alternating pattern of planted and non-planted town, such as two rows planted and two rows skipped, report the acreage occupied by the crop and report the skipped portion as cropland idle in Section 2, them 1d. If you rented land under a share arrangement, include your landlord's share of the crop in value of seles.

SECTION 12 - NURSERY, GREENBOUSE, FLORICILITIES, SOD, MUSIROOMS, VEGETABLE SEEDS, AND PROPAGATIVE

Report Christmas trees grown on this operation and solid live as nursery stock, code 0488. Exclude crops bought for resule without additional growing, and garden center items, such as chemicals and fertilizers. Report all acres of Christmas trees in production for cut Christmas trees and the number cut in 2022 in Section 10, Item 2. Report vegetable seeds grown under protection. Report vegetable seeds not grown under protection in Section 13.

SECTION E3 - VEGETABLES, POTATOES, AND MILLONS

Them 4 - Report acres harvested for individual crops. If the same crop was planted more than once during the year on the same field, report the sum of the acres harvested during 2022. For example, if 4 acres were planted to lettuce and harvested, then replanted to lettuce and harvested, report 8 acres of lettuce in hem 4 but only 4 series in from 2. Report vegetable seeds grown without protective cover in hem 4 using the crop code that best describes the vegetable and record it in the fresh market category.

SECTION 14 - FRUIT, NUTS AND BERBIES

If nonbearing trees and vines are intermixed with bearing trees and vines, estimate area fire each category. Exclude abandoned acres of orchards or vineyurds. Abandoned acres not maintained for production should only be reported in Section 2, Item 1d. Bearing age acres are the acres of trees or vines that produced any fruit or nat crop in 2022 or previous years. If fruit and nut trees and vines were interplanted with other crops, report only the total acres for the orchard in Section 14, and the total acres of each interplanted crop in their appropriate section(s).

Berries- Report all acres on which berries were grown in 2022.

SECTIONS 15, 16, AND 20 -CATTLE AND CALVES, HOCS AND PIGS, AND POLLTRY

Include all animals on this operation on December 31, 2022 owned by you, raised by you under contract, or kept by you for others. Include animals owned by you on unfraced lands, National Forest Land, Indian Reservation Land, cooperative grazing association land, or rangeland administered by the Bureau of Land Management on a per head, animal unit month (AUM), or lease basis. Animals in transit on December 31, 2022, should be reported by the person who had control of the animals on that day. Animals on a fee per head or animal unit month basis shauld be registed by the animal owner and not the landowner.

Contract and custom feeding operations - Report numbers of all animals or poultry on this operation on December 31, 2022. Animals and poultry kept on a contract or custom basis and moved or sold from this operation in 2022 should be reported as sold. Do NOT include fees received for commodities produced under a production contract in the value of sales. In addition, report in Section 24- Production Contracts and Custom Feeding on the appropriate line the quantity delivered of custom fed livestock or production contract livestock and poultry and the dollar amount received from the contractor.

Cattle, hogs, and poultry to exclude from the report form - Exclude animals or poultry kept on land rented to others or kept under a share arrangement on land rented to others. Exclude animals quartered in feedlots that were not located on this operation. Do not report the sales of animals bought and then resold within 30 days.

Number sold - Report all animals and pouliry sold or moved from this operation in 2022, regardless of ownership or who shared in the receipts. Include animals sold for a landlord or given to a landlord or others in trade or in payment for goods or services. Do not report number sold of any hogs and pigs, cattle and calves, or poultry owned by you that were kept and sold from a location that you did not operate.

Number moved from this operation - For animals and poultry moved from this operation to another, such as for further feeding, report them as "sold." Cattle moved are not considered sold if they were moved to another operation for a short term, such as for winter wheat or corn stubble grazing, or during the winter to public grazing land. Exclude animals when moved for grazing on public or private AUM.

Cattle in feedlots - Exclude the following for this item: cattle and calves sold or moved off the operation for further feeding, veal calves or any calves weighing less than 500 pounds, cull or dairy cows fed only the usual dairy ration before being sold, and all cows and bulls.

SECTION 17 - HORSEN, PONIES, MULES, BURROS, AND DONKEYS

Exclude horses owned by this operation but stubled elsewhere. Horses, mules, burnes, and donkeys that are on this operation should be reported regardless of ownership. Exclude feral equine.

SECTION 18 - SHEEP AND GOATS

Report goats based on utilization regardless of breed. Report pounds of wood shurn and mohair clipped in 2022 only

SECTION 19 - AQUACULTURE

Include all sizes for each type. Report each type solid or moved on a separate line and specify whether the sale was fish eggs, fry, fingerlings, food size, or a combination. Convert units such as bushels, bags, or gallions to number or pounds. Do not deplicate the same quantity sold in both the pounds and number columns.

SECTION 21 - COLONIES OF HONEY BEES

Hem 2 - Report the number of bee culonies owned regardless of location. Report the pounds of honey collected in 2022 whether sold or not sold. Report sales of packaged bees, nucleus colonies, whole colonies, queen, and all non-apis bees (bumble, leaf outer, cir.) in Socion 22. Item 2. Report sales of honey bee products such as wax, pollen, and propolis in Section 23, Item 2. Report pollination fees in Section 34, Item 7.

SECTION 24 - PRODUCTION CONTRACTS AND CUSTOM

Commodities raised under a production contract should be reported in Section 24 and included in Sections 9 through 23. The money received as a production contract fee is reported in Section 24 and a under Total fully prepared to product and production of the contract feet in Section.

money received as a production contract fee is reported in Section 24 only, under "Total dollar amount received" and not in Sections 9 through 23. Please report amount of the specified commodity that you ruised

Please report amount of the specified commodity that you ruised and delivered under production contracts in Item 2. If you had multiple contracts to produce different commodities, report the appropriate amount of each commodity produced under each contract in the proper categories. Exclude marketing contracts, futures contracts, forward contracts, or other contracts based strictly on price. The contractor should not report commodities that were produced by the grower.

SECTION 25 - ORGANIC AGRICULTURE

Item 3 - Report the total sales of NOP organically produced items. Include gross value of agricultural sales before expenses or toxes. Exclude sales of crops and livestock from transitioning land. Exclude the value of processed or value-added items.

SECTION 26 - PRACTICES

Hem 1 - Include internet access for farm use if either the operation or the producer's residence has access. Access includes internet via a cellular data plan on a smartphone or mobile device.

Hem 2c - Alley Cropping is the growing of annual or perennial

crops between rows of trees. The agricultural crop generates annual income while the tree crop matures. <u>Solvopature</u> combines timber, fivestock, and firrage production on the land. Trees provide longer-term returns, while livestock generates an annual income. <u>Forest farming</u> is the intentional management of woodlands to grow non-tree crops such as munkrooms, berries, and nost crops under trees. <u>Windbreoks</u> are rows of trees and shrubs used to allow wind to protect soil, crop, or fivestock, or for visual screening and shade. <u>Rivarian farest buffers</u> are natural or planted trees, shrubs, and grasses adjacent to water bodies to protect water resources from non-point source pollution.

SECTION 27 - FOOD MARKETING PRACTICES

Include only edible agricultural products sold directly for humansto eat or drink, such as fruit, eggs, milk, meat, etc. Report only products grown or raised on this operation. Exclude products that you bought and resold within 30 days and non-edible products such as live animals, bay, cut flowers, nursery products, etc.

SECTION 28 - FERTILIZERS, CHEMICALS, AND SOIL

CONDITIONERS APPLIED

Fertilizer - Report acres on this operation on which commencial fertilizer was applied during 2022 only once, even if multiple applications were made.

Chemicals - Include acres on which custom application of chemicals was applied. If multiple applications of chemicals for the same purpose (for example, herbicides) were applied in the same acres, report the airrage only unce. If chemicals were applied for different purposes, report the acres for each purpose on which the chemicals were applied. Estimate the acreage for spot treatments.

SECTION 29 - RENEWABLE ENERGY

Rem 1 – Report renewable energy producing systems, regardless of ownership. Exclude woodburning stoves and densified becomes-producing systems. Include the value of energy sold from this operation in Section 34, Item 7.

SECTION 30 - MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

Report the total on this operation, or normally on this operation and normally used on this operation, in the first column. Do not report obsolete or abandoned equipment. In the second column, report only the number manufactured in the last five years.

SECTION 31 - FARM LABOR

Report the number of past and unpaid farm or ranch workers who performed agricultural labor on this operation in 2022. Exclude contract labor except where specified (see frem 2). Include family members (gaid and unpaid). Include workers such as bookkeepers, office workers, maintenance workers, etc., if their work was primarily associated with agricultural production on this operation.

Item I - Include any short term of temporary workers who may have worked only a few days. Exclude contract labor.

Item 2 - Report the number of migrant workers who worked on the operation for any length of time during 2022. Include both hired and contract labor. The definition of a migrant worker is a farm worker whose employment requires international or

domestic travel that prevents the worker from returning to his or ber permanent place of residence the same day.

SECTION 32 - PRODUCTION EXPENSES

Include farm production expenses paid by you or your landlord(s) for crops, livestock, or positive produced on this operation in 2022 in Broms 1 through 16. Include expenses associated with the generation of farm-related income reported in Section 34. Include expenses incurred in 2022 even if they were not paid in 2022. Estimate if exact figures are not known.

Contract growers or custom feeders - Do not report as production expenses the value of inputs provided by the contractor or livestock owner. Identify the items that were contractor provided in Section 24, Item 3.

Item 2 - Include surfactants and will unif other products used to increase a chemical's effectiveness.

Item 6 - Report the purchase cost of all grains, silage, hay, commercially mixed and prumixed feeds, ingredienta, concentrates, etc., fed to livenock or poultry on this operation. Contract livestock and poultry growers should not report the value of feed that was provided by a contractor. Do not report the value of feed mixed and fed on this operation as an expense.

Rem 9 - Include the cost of repairs and upkeep of farm machinery, vehicles, buildings, fences, and other equipment used in the farm business. Include expenses for repairs to machinery and equipment used only for customwork if income from those machines is reported at Section 34. Exclude repairs to vehicles not used in the farm business. Exclude expenditures for the construction of new buildings or the cost of additions to existing buildings.

Item 18a - Include labor expense for the farm business for gross salaries and wages, commissions, disminant pay, vacotion pay, and bonuses paid to hired workers, family members, hired managers, administrative and clerical employees, and salaried corporate officers. Include cost for benefits such as employer's social security contributions, unemployment compensation, worker's compensation, insurance, employer paid life and medical insurance expense, pensium plans, etc.

Item 10h - Include the labor couts of workers furnished on a contract basis by labor contractor, crew leader, or cooperative for harvesting vegetables or fruit, shearing sheep, or similar farm activities. Report costs for repair work done by a construction contractor in Item 9. Report the cost of customwork or machine hire in Item 11.

Hem 12a - Exclude tent paid for operator dwelling or other nonfarm property. Exclude the value of shares of crops or livestock paid to landfords.

Item 13 - Report all interest expenses paid in 2022 for the farm business. Include interest paid on CCC loans in Item 136. Exclude interest associated with activities not related to production of crops or livestock on this operation, such as land or buildings rented to others, packing sheek, or feed mills that provided services to others. Exclude interest on owner/operator dwelling where the amount is separated from the interest on the land and buildings on this operation.

Hem 14 - Include real estate property taxes you paid on the acres and buildings you owned and used in the farm business and property taxes on equipment of livestock. Exclude property taxes on land or buildings rented to someone else, or property taxes paid on other property not associated with the farm business.

SECTION 33 - MARKET VALUE OF LAND, BUILDINGS,

MACHINERY, AND EQUIPMENT

Item 1 - Estimate the value of the land, houses, burns, and other buildings for each of the three listed categories if they were sold in the current market. The real estate tax assessment value about the used unless that value represents a full market value assessment and the land, house, and buildings could reasonably be assumed to be sold at that price. Report the total value, not the value on a per acre basis.

Item 2 - The estimated market value refers to all machinery and equipment kept primarily on this operation and used for the farm business. Report the value in its present condition, not the replacement or depreciated value, include mobile implements, hand tools, and office supplies. Permanently installed equipment or equipment that is an integral part of a building should be included as a part of the value of land and buildings and reported in them 1.

SECTION 34 - INCOME FROM FARM-RELATED SOURCES

Report gross dollar amounts received before taxes and expenses.

Item 2 - Exclude remal income from nonfarm property.

Item 3 - Include only those forest products cut from this operation, not items cut from other nonfarm timber acreage. Exclude income from a saventill business. Report sales of Christmas trees, maple syrup, or sap products in Section 10.

Item 7 - Include pollination fees.

SECTION 35 - AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITY WITHIN THE BORDERS OF AMERICAN USDIAN RESERVATIONS, PLEBLOS, AND SERVICE AREAS

Complete this section if any of your cropland or livestock was on an American Indian Reservation, Pueblo, or service area in 2022. Include trust acres used, as well as deeded land or land leased from others that was on the Reservation.

SECTION 36 - CONCLUSION

Item I - If the agricultural activity on your operation might be identified under a different name than is printed on the front of the form (for example, a farm name or another partner), please provide these names.